
Any person needing special accommodations to participate in the above noticed meeting should contact 
the Blaine County Housing Authority three days prior to the meeting at (208) 788-6102. 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
REGULAR MEETING 

January 19, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. (Immediately at the Conclusion of the Annual Meeting) 
Via Teleconference www.zoom.us/join 

Phone Number: (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID: 837 9109 6983 

Password: 83333 

Agenda  
1. Call to Order and Roll Call
2. Agenda Review
3. Comments from Partner Organizations & the Public
4. Comments from Liaisons from Elected Bodies
5. Discussion/Action Items

A. Discussion of Costs related to obtaining outside legal counsel Doc 5A 
B. General Discussion of Costs related to improvements at 703 S. Main Street, Ketchum, ID to

allow for full capacity usage
Doc 5B 

C. Update on Pending move of Executive Director office to Hailey City Hall
D. Setting Meetings for 5-Year Strategic Planning Sessions
E. Discussion of Consent Agenda Format (bill approvals)

6. Commissioner Reports

7. Consent Agenda 
A. Approval of December 15, 2021, BCHA Regular Meeting Minutes Doc 7A 

8. Staff Reports 
A. Receive and file Executive Director's Report Doc 8A 
B. Receive and file Program Director's Report Doc 8B 
C. Receive and file Financial Reports Doc 8C 

9. Announcements – Calendar of Upcoming Meetings & Events
A. January 27, 2022, Executive Session (Thursday at 5 pm, via teleconference)
B. February 21, 2022, President’s Day, BCHA offices closed
C. February 16, 2022, BCHA Special Meeting, via teleconference
D. March 16, 2022, BCHA Special Meeting, via teleconference

10 Executive Session (if required) – Idaho Code 74-206 (1) to discuss, (a) hiring, (b) personnel (c) 
acquiring interest in real property, (d) records disclosure, (f) pending litigation, or (i) pending 
claims   

11 Action Item -none required 
12 Adjournment 

http://www.zoom.us/join
nharv
Highlight



Memo—Rates for Obtaining Legal Counsel for BCHA 1 

MEMORANDUM 

To: BCHA Commissioners 

From: Nathan S. Harvill, Executive Director 

Date: 19 January 2022 

Re: Rates for Obtaining Legal Counsel for BCHA 

Proposed Action: None.  

Background: 

Chair Nate Hart asked me to comparison shop for the cost of attorneys for the Housing 
Authority.  

Findings: 

Idaho Code, 31-4210, states,  “For such legal services as [a County Housing Authority] may 
require, an authority may call upon the prosecuting attorney of the county or may employ 
its own counsel and legal staff.” While the Authority may call upon the County Prosecuting 
Attorney’s Office for legal services, historically, BCHA has employed its own counsel. In 
contacting attorneys in the region, the costs of these services range from $275 per hour 
(general counsel) to $350 per hour (specialized counsel, i.e. Land Use).  
Variances can be expected with regard to those numbers, depending upon the work 
needed and the number of hours required as well as available funds. 

Attachments: None. 



Memo—LTL Full Usage 1 

MEMORANDUM 

To: BCHA Commissioners 

From: Nathan S. Harvill, Executive Director 

Date: 19 January 2022 

Re: Full Usage of LTL 

Proposed Action: Discussion.  

Background: 

I have complied the background documents for consideration by the full BCHA Board of a 
new direction for the use of the Lift Tower Lodge, that is to improve the underlying 
infrastructure for full capacity as a temporary housing solution. I have included the initial 
documents which show the findings of fact and final determination of the Ketchum P&Z 
Board from 2015. Among the requirements are Strict Adherence to the LTL House Rules 
and regulations, working smoke detectors (maintained by BCHA), no cooking devices 
other than microwave ovens are allowed in the rooms, Barbeques and open flame 
cooking devices are required to be at least ten (10) feet from the building and may not 
be used on any balcony, a 10-pound fire extinguisher in each room and the manager’s 
apartment, informing residents of snow removal, a full-time onsite manager/caretaker, 
and, a limit of duration of stays to less than one year. This Conditional Use Permit was 
adopted on March 9, 2015. BCHA continues to enforce these conditions and makes each 
new resident aware of them. 

Additionally, I have included invoices that reflect the costs associated with the sewage 
backups at the Lift Tower Lodge. The first set of invoices is from a backup and flooding of 
the lower-level rooms in February 2015. The next set of invoices shows the costs associated 
with the backup and flooding of lower-level rooms in June 2019. 

The next set of documents shows the results of an onsite visit arranged by BCHA Board 
members on January 6, 2022, and the discussion therein. These emails were forwarded by 
the Executive Director to the Board Chair to keep him apprised of the discussion. 

Finally, in consultation with the Program Administrator and the Onsite Manager, I have 
included a list of items needed for the property to ensure that the needs of residents and 
care of the property would be met if the LTL were to be returned to full capacity.  
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Upon my hire in August 2017, I received a verbal recommendation that full usage was ill-
advised due to the aging infrastructure, the lack of available funding at BCHA, and the 
possibility of resident displacement (should another infrastructure failure occur). Further, in 
2019, the Board expressed interest in exploring the potential sale or redevelopment of the 
site.  

BCHA staff successfully reduced overhead by removing cable service to half of the rooms, 
discontinuing WiFi Internet service, discontinuing linen and housekeeping services (folding 
laundry and housing responsibilities into the duties of the onsite manager). The result of 
those efforts have been cost savings for the Lift Tower Lodge, as we await the Board’s final 
determination of the site (i.e. BCHA-led redevelopment, Sale of parcel to a developer with 
a condition of an affordable housing component, or, now, a reinvestment of funds in the 
property for full usage as a temporary housing solution). 

With the onset of the COVID 19 Pandemic, interest in the Lift Tower Lodge is higher than in 
years past. We place residents in the front rooms (facing the highway), given that if 
another infrastructure failure occurs, it would affect unoccupied rooms. We have noted 
that the length of stay has increased (still less than one year, per the regulations attached 
to the property) to more than 6 months in a couple of instances. The elongated time 
causes additional wear and tear on the rooms which necessitate extra efforts at cleaning. 
I have directed the Program Administrator to inspect the rooms with the onsite manager 
quarterly to ensure the rooms are being cared for and not abused. Corrective actions 
have been issued to the residents, as needed, and most have complied. Those who have 
not complied have not had their leases renewed and have moved out. Residents are 
encouraged to add their names to the BCHA database for available permanent housing, 
as it becomes available. Staff emphasizes with each new move in the transitory nature of 
the accommodation and the expectations placed upon them by BCHA. 

Idaho Transportation Department will be rehabilitating and reconfiguring the intersection 
of State Highway 75 and Serenade Lane in conjunction with the planned improvement of 
the road from River Street to Elkhorn Road. Some of the property will be taken by ITD to 
complete this effort for rights of way and related road improvements. 

 
Attachments: Documents related to the 2015 P&Z Conditional Use Permit 
   Invoices related to the February 2015 sewage backup 
   Invoices related to the June 2019 sewage backup 
   Email correspondence related to the January 6, 2022 onsite visit 
   A list of items needed for Lift Tower Lodge 



IN RE:     ) 
     ) 
Lift Tower Lodge   ) 
Conditional Use Permit   ) 
     ) 
File Number: 15-006   ) 

 
KETCHUM PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION - 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 
DECISION 

 
 

BACKGROUND FACTS 
 
PROJECT:  Lift Tower Lodge Conditional Use Permit 
 
FILE NUMBERS:  15-006  
 
OWNER: Lift Tower Lodge, LLC or Blaine County Housing Authority (depending on timing)  
 
REQUEST: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a public use 
 
LOCATION: 703 South Main Street (Taxlot 7983) 
 
ZONING:  Tourist (T) and Recreational Use (RU) Zoning Districts 
 
NOTICE: Property owners within 300 foot radius of subject property and all properties 

on the Gem Streets were mailed notice on February 2, 2015.  A public hearing 
notice was published in the Legal Notices of the Idaho Mountain Express on 
February 4, 2015, and a display ad was published in the Idaho Mountain Express 
on February 11, 2015.  A public hearing notice was posted on the site on 
February 16, 2015. 

 
REVIEWER:  Rebecca F. Bundy, Senior Planner / Building and Development Manager 
 
Regulatory Taking Notice:  Applicant has the right, pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code, to 
request a regulatory taking analysis. 

 
GENERAL FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Lift Tower Lodge has been gifted to the Blaine County Housing Authority (BCHA), with the 
Housing Authority granted “full and exclusive use” of the property as of November 1, 2014, and 
with the transfer of title to take place in late February or March. 

2. Most of the subject property is located in the Tourist Zoning District with the southeastern 
corner of the lot zoned Recreational Use.  That corner of the property contains mostly 
landscaping, some paved area and an out-building. 

3. Ketchum Municipal Code (KMC), Chapter 17.52 Tourist District (T), Section 17.52.010.B 
Conditional Uses allows public use as a conditional use, and Chapter 17.80 Recreational Use 
(RU), Section 17.80.010.B Conditional Uses allows public and semipublic uses as conditional 
uses.   

4. A public use is defined as “a structure or use intended or used for a public purpose by a city, 
other than the city of Ketchum, a school district, the county, the state, or by any other public 
agency, or by a public utility.”  As a public housing agency, BCHA meets the City’s definition of a 
public use as well as that of Idaho State Statute, Section 31-4202(c). 
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5. The existing motel building is located on the portion of the property zoned Tourist, and use of 
the property as a motel is an allowed use in the T district.   

6. The existing off street parking is an allowed accessory use in the T zoning district and would be a 
conditional use in the RU zoning district were it a newly proposed use.  

7. BCHA intends to operate the Lift Tower Lodge under the requirements for a motel, with an 
exception requested to allow residents at the motel to stay longer than the thirty (30) days 
allowed by the motel definition:  “A building or group of buildings designed or used for short 
term occupancy which contains more than six (6) guestrooms offered for rent on a nightly basis 
with an on site office with a person in charge twenty four (24) hours per day. A motel room 
which includes cooking facilities shall not be considered a dwelling unit for the purpose of 
density, area, bulk or parking regulations of this title.”  Short term is defined as, “The rental or 
lease of any unit or structure or portion for a period of not more than thirty (30) days.”  The 
property has a manager’s apartment, and BCHA has hired a resident manager to reside in that 
unit to satisfy the requirement for a fulltime on site attendant for the facility.  BCHA is willing to 
accept a condition of approval that the property always has an on site manager, available 
twenty-four (24) hours per day.  Nearby residents have expressed concern that the manager 
may not be available 24/7.  The applicant should address their concerns with the Commisison. 

8. The existing twenty-two (22) parking spaces at the Lift Tower Lodge more than meet code 
requirements.  KMC, Section 17.124.060.A.2 requires .75 parking space per room for a motel.  
The motel contains fourteen (14) rooms and a two (2) bedroom apartment, resulting in 
requirement for sixteen (16) parking spaces.   

9. BCHA intends to utilize the motel to supply transitional and seasonal accommodations for low-
income workers in our community.  In addition, it may serve as emergency shelter on an as-
needed basis. 

10. BCHA has initiated a “Good Neighbor Policy” to try to ensure good communication with the 
surrounding neighbors.  As part of that policy, BCHA has developed “House Rules and 
Regulations” that limit visual and auditory impacts from the site.  According to BCHA, 
background checks on all applicants are conducted prior to placing them in housing situations. 

11. Staff recommends that, since the proposed use is somewhat different than the former use of 
the property, a condition of approval should be added to require Commission reevaluation of 
the CUP in a public hearing at a specified date in order to ensure City oversight and 
neighborhood input on the compatibility of the use.  Staff suggests reevaluation twelve (12) 
months from signature of the Findings of Fact.   

 

 
General Requirements for all Conditional Use Applications 

Compliant Standards and Conclusion 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Conclusion 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.040(A) Complete Application 

 Lift Tower Lodge Findings of Fact, CUP, PZ 3.9.15 
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☒ ☐ ☐ Department 
and Boards/ 
Commissions 
Comments 

Police Department 
o None to date. 

Fire Department 
o The fire department will require strict adherence to the occupant 

rules and regulations.  
o The smoke detectors are the owners responsibility to maintain 

and as noted shall not be disabled or tampered with at any time. 
o  No cooking devices other than the microwaves will be allowed in 

the rooms at any time.  
o BBQ’s and other open flame cooking devices are required to be at 

least 10 feet from the building and cannot be used on 
combustible decks or balconies.  

o A minimum of one 10 pound fire extinguisher is required in each 
rental room and in the manager’s apartment. 

 Public Works 
City Engineer 
o None to date. 
Street 
o We have received several complaints over the years from the Lift 

Tower Lodge associated with our snow removal operations. The 
edge of the roadway is about 50 feet from the front of the 
building. During heavy winters we will haul a lot of snow at night 
for several nights in a row, sometimes using as many as 20 trucks. 
The Lodge guests may not be used to the noise of the trucks at 
those hours of the day.  The Lodge may want to post a notice of 
snow removal operations and the associated noise. 

 Utilities 
o None to date. 

Building:   
o It appears that this would not be a change in use under the 

building code definition.  As such no building code action would 
be required.   

 

Compliance with Zoning District and Overlay Requirements 
 

Compliant Standards and Conclusion 
Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Conclusion 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.C Lot Area 

Conclusion No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.F Setbacks 

Conclusion No change.  
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.H Floor Area   

Conclusion No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.I Building Height 

Conclusion No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.124.060.A Curb Cut 

Conclusion No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.124.060.M Parking Spaces 

Conclusion No change. 
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Conditional Use Requirements 

 
1.  EVALUATION STANDARDS: 17.116.030 
A conditional use permit shall be granted by the commission only if the applicant demonstrates that: 

 
Compliant Standards and Conclusion 

Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Conclusion 
☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(A) 

CONDITIONAL 
USE  

The characteristics of the conditional use will not be unreasonably incompatible with 
the types of uses permitted in the applicable zoning district.  

Conclusion The proposed conditional use as an extended stay length motel with 
for qualified low income residents is not unreasonably incompatible 
with the allowed uses in the Tourist zoning district, including hotels, 
motels, lodges, tourist homes and tourist housing accommodations.  

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(B) The conditional use will not materially endanger the health, safety and welfare of 
the community.   

Conclusion The proposed use is very similar to the existing use at the property and 
to allowed uses in the Tourist zoning district.  The Fire Chief has placed 
conditions of approval, in line with the House Rules and Regulations, 
that limit use of cooking devices and barbeque grills and require 
maintenance of smoke detectors and fire extinguishers.  These have 
been included in Condition of Approval #1. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(C) The conditional use is such that pedestrian and vehicular traffic associated with the 
use will not be hazardous or conflict with existing and anticipated traffic in the 
neighborhood.     

Conclusion The conditional use will not increase the pedestrian and vehicular 
traffic impacts above those created by the existing motel use.  The 
existing use has more than adequate parking and access to Highway 
75.  There is adequate space for vehicles to turn around without 
impacting Highway 75 traffic.  No changes are proposed.   

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(D) The conditional use will be supported by adequate public facilities or services and 
will not adversely affect public services to the surrounding area or conditions can be 
established to mitigate adverse impacts.   

Conclusion Public utilities, emergency and essential services are available and can 
serve the subject property.  City departments have reviewed the 
proposal and have responded with no concerns for adequately serving 
the project as proposed. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(E) The conditional use is not in conflict with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan or 
the basic purposes of this Section.   
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Conclusion Staff Analysis:   
The proposed conditional use is supported by the following goals and 
policies of the 2014 Comprehensive Plan: 

• Goal H-1:  Ketchum will increase its supply of homes, including 
rental and special-needs housing for low-, moderate- and 
median-income households. 

o Policy H-1.1:  Affordable Housing Monitoring 
o Policy H-1.2:  Local Solutions to Attainable Housing 
o Policy H-1.3:  Integrated Affordable Housing iin 

Neighborhoods 
o Policy H-1.4:  Integrated Housing in Business and 

Mixed-Use Areas 
• Goal H-2:  The Ketchum community will support affordable 

housing programs. 
o Policy H-2.1:  Blaine County Housing Authority, 

ARCH Community Housing Trust and Ketchum 
Community Development Corporation (The City 
will partner with the above organizations to fulfill 
housing goals.) 

• Goal H-3:  Ketchum will have a mix of housing types and styles. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

1. The City of Ketchum is a municipal corporation organized under Article XII of the Idaho 
Constitution and the laws of the State of Idaho, Title 50, Idaho Code. 
 
2. Under Chapter 65, Title 67 of the Idaho Code, the City has passed a land use and zoning 
ordinance, Title 17. 

 
3. The Planning and Zoning Commission has authority to hear the applicant’s Conditional Use 
Permit application pursuant to Idaho Code Section 67-6512 of the Local Land Use Planning Act and 
Chapters 17.52, 17.80 and 17.116 of Ketchum Zoning Code Title 17. 
 
4. The public hearing and consideration of the applicant’s Conditional Use Permit application was 
properly noticed pursuant to the Local Land Use Planning Act, Idaho Code Section 67-6512. 
 
5. The application does comply with Ketchum Zoning Code Title 17 and the Ketchum 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

DECISION 
 

THEREFORE, the Ketchum Planning and Zoning Commission approves this Conditional Use Permit 
application this 23rd day of February, 5 provided the following conditions are met: 

1. Ketchum City Engineer, Streets, Utilities, Fire and Building Department requirements shall be 
met, including: 
• The fire department will require strict adherence to the Lift Tower Lodge House Rules 

and Regulations Tenant Guide;  
• The smoke detectors are the owners responsibility to maintain and as noted shall not 

be disabled or tampered with at any time; 
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• No cooking devices other than the microwaves will be allowed in the rooms at any 
time;  

• Barbeques and other open flame cooking devices are required to be at least 10 feet 
from the building and  may not be used on combustible decks or balconies;  

• A minimum of one 10 pound fire extinguisher is required in each rental room and in the 
manager’s apartment; and 

• The Lodge shall post a notice informing residents of snow removal operations and the 
associated noise; 

2. An on site manager shall reside in the two (2) bedroom apartment at the Lift Tower Lodge and 
the manager and/or a BCHA representative shall be available twenty-four (24) hours per day; 

3. Per Title 17, Section 17.116.080:  TERM OF PERMITS:  Conditional Use Permit approval shall 
expire one (1) year from the date of approval if not acted upon within that time frame;  

4. The maximum term of stay at the Lift Tower Lodge for any occupant, except the on site 
manager, shall be limited to one year;   

5. This Conditional Use Permit approval is based on representations made and other components 
of the application presented and approved at the meeting on the date noted herein; and  

6. This Conditional Use Permit shall be reevaluated in a public hearing by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for compliance with all of the KMC Section 17.116.030 CUP evaluation standards 
and compliance with the above conditions of approval twelve (12) months from the date of the 
Findings of Fact. 
 

Findings of Fact adopted this 9th day of March 2015. 
 
        _____________________________ 

Steve Cook, Vice Chair  
Planning and Zoning Commission 

 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Blaine  ) 
 
 On this 9th day of March, 2015, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said 
State, personally appeared ____________________________, known or identified to me to be the 
person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 

 
_______________________  
Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at:  
Commission Expires:  
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NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
KETCHUM PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

MONDAY, MARCH 9, 2015, 5:00 P.M. 
180 RIVER ROCK ROAD, 900 WALNUT AVENUE NORTH AND 

KETCHUM CITY HALL 
480 EAST AVENUE NORTH, KETCHUM, IDAHO 

 
A G E N D A 

 
1. 5:00 p.m. – SITE VISIT at 900 180 RIVER ROCK ROAD. The Commission will convene for a site visit in 

regard to the application by H.J. Heinz II Charitable and Family Trust, for approval of a stream 
alteration and streambank stabilization project on the Big Wood River adjacent to 180 River Rock 
Road. 
 

2. 5:20 p.m. – SITE VISIT at 900 WALNUT AVENUE NORTH. The Commission will convene for a site visit 
in regard to the application by Jim and Naomi Ellison, for Mountain Overlay Design Review for a 
new residence.  

 
3. 5:30 p.m. RECONVENE AT KETCHUM CITY HALL, OPENING OF MEETING 

 
4. 5:30 p.m. PUBLIC COMMENT - This is an opportunity for the public to speak with the Commission 

about issues and ideas not on the agenda.  
 

5. EST 5:35 p.m.  CONSIDERATION upon the application of H.J. HEINZ II CHARITABLE AND FAMILY 
TRUST, for approval of a stream alteration and streambank stabilization project on the Big Wood 
River adjacent to 180 River Rock Road (Lots 5, 6, and 7, Block 1, Bigwood Subdivision #1)  

Staff Report and Attachments 
 

6. EST 6:35 p.m. CONTINUED TO MARCH 23, 2015 Consideration upon the application from Jim and 
Naomi Ellison for Mountain Overlay Design Review at 900 Walnut Avenue North 

 
7. EST 6:40 p.m.  UPDATE on Zoning Code Re-write. 

 
8. EST 7:10 p.m. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. FINDINGS OF FACT 
i. Limelight Hotel Design Review Modification – Approved 

ii. Lift Tower Lodge CUP - Approved 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

i. October 13, 2014 
ii. September 22, 2014 

 
9. EST 8:25 p.m. FUTURE PROJECTS AND NOTICING REQUIREMENTS 

 
10. EST 8:30 p.m. STAFF REPORTS & CITY COUNCIL MEETING UPDATE 

 
11. EST 8:35 p.m. COMMISSION REPORTS AND EX PARTE DISCUSSION OR DISCLOSURE  

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

Any person needing special accommodations to participate in the meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office as 
soon as reasonably possible at 726-3841. All times indicated are estimated times, and items may be heard earlier or 
later than indicated on the agenda.     
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March 4, 2015 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
City of Ketchum 
Ketchum, Idaho 
 
Commissioners: 
 

STAFF REPORT 
KETCHUM PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 9, 2015 
 
PROJECT: Big Wood River Bank Stabilization  
 
FILE NUMBER:  14-114 
 
OWNERS: The 1961 H. J. Heinz II Charitable + Family Trust (Teresa Heinz, Trustee) 
 
REPRESENTATIVE:   Evan Robertson, Attorney at Law 
 
REQUEST: Floodplain Development/Waterways Design Review for stream bank restoration on a 

lot containing 100 year floodplain and located in the Waterways Design Review 
Overlay Subdistrict  

 
LOCATION:  Lot 6, Block 1, Bigwood Subdivision #1 (180 River Rock Road) 
 
NOTICE: Adjacent property owners, neighboring communities and affected agencies were 

mailed notice on Tuesday, February 24, 2015.  FEMA and the State Floodplain 
Coordinator were emailed notice on February 24, 2015. 

 
ZONING: Limited Residential – 2 Acre (LR-2), with a small portion of Recreational Use (RU) along 

its northeastern boundary 
 
OVERLAYS:  Floodplain (FP) and Waterways (WW) 
 
REVIEWER:  Rebecca F. Bundy, Senior Planner / Building and Development Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    
A. Application 

• Application Form, dated September 30, 2014 
• Addendum 1, Responses to Evaluation Criteria, Brockway Engineering, PLLC, dated September 

23, 2014 
• Narrative in Support of Big Wood River Stabilization Project, Brockway Engineering, PLLC, 

dated January 27, 2015 
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• Plan Set, dated January 27, 2014 
• HEC-RAS model calculations 
• Revegetation Plan, stamped “received” on February 20, 2015 

B. USACE Nationwide Permit No. 13, NWW-2014-454-I01, dated December 2, 2014 
C. IDWR Permit S37-20367, dated February 9, 2015 
D. Public Comment – none to date 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

1. The applicant is requesting Floodplain Development/Waterways Design Review in order to conduct a 
streambank stabilization project in the Big Wood River.  The property borders the river along its western 
property line.  Chapter 17.88, Floodplain Management Overlay District (FP) requires that this project receive a 
Floodplain Development Permit and Waterways Design Review approval.  In addition, the Streambank 
Alteration evaluation criteria will apply.  
 
2. The entire western edge of the property lies adjacent to the floodway and contains some regulatory 
floodplain.  The proposed stream bank stabilization project will occur below the mean high water mark in the 
floodway.  No new structures or building improvements are proposed on the property at this time. 
 
3. The applicant’s narrative (See Attachment A.) gives an overview of the river channelization and erosion 
problems at the site.  The east bank of the river has been significantly undercut and continues to erode.  The 
erosion is compounded by a gravel deposit on the west side of the easternmost channel, which directs the 
maximum velocity stream flows towards the east bank of the river.  At the north (upstream) end of the project, 
the water flows at a high velocity hitting the bank at almost a right angle, causing partial failure of a previous 
bank stabilization project and potential erosion of the west bank to the extent that the existing home on the 
site could be endangered. 
 
4. The proposed bank stabilization consists of three components: 

• Stabilization of the bank near the existing home.  The bank will be regraded to form a 2:1 
slope, and cobble harvested from the adjacent gravel bar may be used to augment the existing 
bank.  Angular stone will be place and embedded into the toe of the slope below the low 
water level.  Willow cuttings will be placed in the rock to further stabilize and provide 
vegetative concealment of the installation.  While the proposed bank treatment will take place 
over a gross channel length of 175 linear feet, not all of that length will require a full regrading, 
and the level of treatment will be a field decision based on specific conditions. 

• Construction of four (4) low height bank barbs, made of log and stone, extending into the 
stream about twelve (12) feet, below the mean high water mark.  Two are proposed at he 
north end of the project site and two near the existing home on the property.  The stream 
would overtop the barbs at water elevations exceeding mean high water.  The barbs will direct 
the stream flow to the west, away from the eastern bank, and will also create opportunity for 
fish habitat. 

• Limited gravel removal of the gravel bar in the west portion of the channel.  This will help 
move the thalweg to the west in the channel.  This also satisfies FEMA’s and the City of 
Ketchum’s requirements that any development in the floodway result in no increase to the 
100-year floodplain upstream or downstream.  The applicant explored other solutions with 
FEMA Region X staff, and the proposed solution was found to be the most viable.   

5. Brockway Engineeering, PLLC has conducted hydraulic modeling of the proposed streambank 
stabilization project and has certified that there will be no resultant rise of the river if compensatory gravel 
(119 cubic yards) is removed from the river.   
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6. A stream bank alteration application (any work being performed below the mean high water (MHW) 
mark) requires approvals of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and the Idaho Department of Water 
Resources (IDWR).  The applicant has received IDWR and USACE approvals for the proposed project.  As a 
condition of approval, all conditions of the IDWR Permit No. S37-20367 and USACE Nation Wide Permit No. 13 
NWW-2014-454-I01 shall be met. 

7. History of the site:   

Bigwood Subdivision #1 was platted in 1986, creating Lots 1 – 7, in the City of Ketchum.  The plat establishes, 
among other easements, a twenty-five (25) foot wide scenic easement “granted in perpetuity to the public 
from the bank of the Bigwood River.  There shall be no construction of any fence, wall, deck or other structure 
except public access signage within said easement and said easement shall shift to follow any changes in the 
location of the river bank.”  According to the County Assessor’s information, the house on the property was 
built in 1987 and is located, according to plans submitted in 2005 for an addition, five (5) feet back behind the 
twenty-five (25) foot wide scenic easement, in conformance with the above-noted provision.   

Ketchum’s Floodplain ordinance was first enacted in 1978 (#278), with updates in 1989 (#525), 1997 (#702) 
and 2010 (#1078), which is the current ordinance in effect.  The 1978 ordinance, under which the house was 
originally built, did not include a riparian setback requirement.  Ordinance #525 established a twenty-five (25) 
foot “riparian zone” and a Waterways Design Review Sub-district.  It required “preservation or restoration of 
riparian vegetation and wildlife habitat, if any, along the stream bank and within the required minimum 
twenty-five (25) foot setback or riparian zone.”  The subsequent ordinances have strengthened the riparian 
zone requirements. 

Since the original house was built, the owner has applied for a number of permits requiring 
Floodplain/Waterways Design Review approval.  These are listed below, with the conditions of approval, 
relating to the riparian zone, from their findings of fact: 

• 1994 – First river bank project  (Findings are in archives in Boise): 
o Barbs, bank stabilization and riparian plantings at north end  
o Bank stabilization and riparian plantings at south end (near head gate) 
o Enhance riparian vegetation along bank in section adjacent to residence and wherever 

necessary. 

• 2005 - #05-014 - Design Review for a 156 square foot laundry addition and 526 square foot garden 
shed - Condition 5.  “No decks, patios, outdoor furnishings, or exterior lighting shall be installed within 
the twenty-five (25) foot riparian zone.  No maintenance, including the mowing, trimming, and 
removal of vegetation and no replacement or repair of existing non-conforming decks or patios within 
the riparian zone shall take place without approval from the Planning Department.” 

• 2005 - #05-022 – Design Review for a 2980 square foot addition to the main house – Condition 5.  “No 
decks, patios, outdoor furnishings, or exterior lighting shall be installed within the twenty-five (25) foot 
riparian zone.  No maintenance, including the mowing, trimming, and removal of and no replacement 
or repair of existing non-conforming decks or patios within the riparian zone shall take place without 
approval from the Planning Department.” 

• #FP07-002 Appeal to City Council (after denial by the Commission of Design Review for stream bank 
stabilization and gravel removal from the river) - Condition 3.  “Riparian vegetation and other 
landscaping is maintained in perpetuity as shown on the approved plans.”  Condition 5:  “Restoration 
of damaged riparian vegetation within riparian zone shall be required prior to completion of the 
proposed project.” 

• #11-108 – Streambank stabilization project very similar to the current proposal, but containing only 
two (2) barbs and affecting only sixty (60) feet of river bank.  The Commission conducted a meeting 

4 of 103



Big Wood River Bank Stabilization, FPDP/WWDR, 3.9.15 
City of Ketchum Planning & Building Department       Page 4 of 9  

considering that application and was inclined to approve it with conditions, when the applicant’s 
attorney withdrew the application due to his client’s concerns about the wording of some of the 
conditions of approval. 

At the time of that application staff conducted a site visit with the applicant’s representative, Steve 
Fisher, Fisher and Associates; the City Engineer, Jeff Loomis; Trent Stumph, Sawtooth Environmental 
Consulting; and Evan Robertson, the applicant’s attorney.  At that time, the riparian zone along the 
bank was planted with native grasses, aspen and cottonwood trees and native shrubs, which are all 
appropriate vegetation.  However, some parts of the riparian zone were planted with turf grass that 
had not been left unmaintained to naturalize, since it had been mowed, and the underbrush that 
would have naturally grown in since the 2005 design reviews was not present.  Staff recommended a 
condition of approval reinforcing the approvals given for previous design reviews:  No maintenance, 
including the mowing, trimming, and removal of vegetation and no replacement or repair of existing 
non-conforming decks or patios within the riparian zone shall take place without approval from the 
Planning Division.  In addition, staff recommended a condition of approval that annual inspections be 
required to ensure that the riparian zone is being properly respected and approval conditions are 
abided by. 

8. The Commission will conduct a site visit prior to meeting to consider the current application.  At that 
time, they will be able to view the current condition of the riparian setback.  Staff recommends that the 
current conditions of approval continue to contain conditions similar to those applied to application #11-108, 
requiring that the riparian setback shall be allowed to naturalize and that inspections shall be conducted to 
ensure that condition has been met. 
 
 

 
General Requirements for all Design Review Applications 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.96.080 Complete Application 

    Fire Department 
o None to date. 

 Public Works 
City Engineer 
o None to date. 
Street 
o None to date. 
o  
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Compliance with Zoning District and Overlay Requirements 

 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Staff Comments 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.24.010.D & F SETBACKS: 

Staff Comments No change.  
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.24.010.G Building Height 

Staff Comments No change. 
☒ ☐ ☒ 17.24.010.H Lot Area 

Staff Comments Building Lot Coverage: 
No change. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 17.124.090.M Curb Cut 
Staff Comments No change. 

☐ ☐ ☒ 17.124.090.A.1 Parking Spaces 
Staff Comments No change. 

 

 
Floodplain Design Review Requirements 

 
1.  EVALUATION STANDARDS: 17.88.060(E) 

 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Staff Comments 
☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)1 

FLOODPLAIN 
DEVELOPMENT/
WATERWAYS 
DESIGN REVIEW 

Preservation or restoration of the inherent natural characteristics of the river and 
creeks and floodplain areas.  Development does not alter river channel.   

Staff Comments The existing riparian zone is planted with cottonwood and aspen trees, 
native grasses and native shrubs along the MHW mark.  At the location 
of the proposed project, the bank has been undercut and eroded.  The 
applicant is proposing to repair this eroded section of river bank by 
placing four (4) rock and log barbs in the river and embedding angular 
stone into the toe of the undercut area below the low water level.  
Willow cuttings will be planted on the barbs and in the rock, and native 
grass plantings are proposed for any disturbed portions of the riparian 
setback.  In his narrative, the applicant states that, “riparian 
vegetation will not be disturbed except in the immediate vicinity of the 
proposed rock features.”  Approvals have been obtained from the 
USACE and the IDWR.  (See Attachments B and C.)  All conditions and 
requirements of the USACE and IDWR approvals shall be met, as well 
as to any conditions placed by the Commission. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)2 Preservation or enhancement of riparian vegetation and wildlife habitat, if any, 
along the stream bank and within the required minimum twenty-five (25) foot 
setback or riparian zone.  No construction activities, encroachment or other 
disturbance into the twenty five foot (25') riparian zone shall be allowed at any time 
without written City approval per the terms of this ordinance. 

Staff Comments Please see Item 1 above for a description of existing conditions and the 
proposed project.  As staff and the Commission have learned from prior 
streambank alteration permit applications, the proposed rock and log 
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Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Staff Comments 

barbs to create pools that are beneficial to fish habitat.  The applicant 
is proposing that all existing trees within the riparian setback will be 
retained and that the riparian setback will be revegetated to match 
exiting conditions.   

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)3 No development other than development by the City of Ketchum or development 
required for emergency access shall occur within the twenty-five (25) foot riparian 
zone with the exception of approved stream stabilization work.  The Planning and 
Zoning Commission may approve access to property where no other primary access 
is available.  Private pathways and staircases shall not lead into or through the 
riparian zone unless deemed necessary by the Planning and Zoning Commission.   

Staff Comments This project is an application for stream stabilization work.  No other 
development is proposed. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)4 Plan and time frame are provided for restoration of riparian vegetation damaged as 
a result of the work done. 

Staff Comments Per IDWR regulations, the proposed work must be done when water 
flows are low.  The applicant proposes to perform the work in 2015 
prior to high spring run-off or later in the summer when river flows 
diminish. Willow plantings will be made in conjunction with rock 
placement, and any disturbed areas are proposed to be reseeded with 
native grasses.  Staff recommends a condition of approval that, once 
work commences, if any portion of the project needs to be delayed for 
more than a month, a 150% security deposit shall be filed with the City 
for any incomplete items.   This deposit will be refunded upon final 
inspection and approval by Planning and Building Department staff. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)5 New or replacement planting and vegetation includes plantings that are low-growing 
and have dense root systems for the purpose of stabilizing stream banks and 
repairing damage previously done to riparian vegetation.  Examples of such 
plantings include:  red osier dogwood, common choke cherry, service berry, elder 
berry, river birch, skunk bush sumac, beb’s willow, drummond’s willow, little wild 
rose, gooseberry, and honeysuckle.  

Staff Comments The applicant has proposed to plant willow cuttings within the angular 
stone comprising the barbs and installed along the river bank at the 
time of placement of those features and to reseed grass in any 
disturbed areas within the riparian setback.  In his narrative, the 
applicant states that, “riparian vegetation will not be disturbed except 
in the immediate vicinity of the proposed rock features.” 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)6 Landscaping and driveway plans to accommodate the function of the floodplain to 
allow for sheet flooding.  Flood water carrying capacity is not diminished by the 
proposal.  Surface drainage is controlled and does not adversely impact adjacent 
properties including driveways drained away from paved roadways.  Culvert(s) 
under driveways may be required.   Landscaping berms are designed to not dam or 
otherwise obstruct floodwaters or divert same onto roads or other public pathways. 

Staff Comments No change is proposed to the existing driveway or landscaping.  The 
existing landscaping does not diminish flood water carrying capacity.   

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)7 
 

Impacts of the development on aquatic life, recreation, or water quality upstream, 
downstream or across the stream are not adverse.  

Staff Comments No building construction or improvements are proposed.  The proposed 
work will be confined to the river bank.  IDWR has imposed conditions 
that practices to minimize turbidity be employed and that the project 
be done during low flow of the river.  The applicant has stated that the 
proposed project will “create additional habitat in the pools formed 
upstream of the barbs.”   This is consistent with staff research 
conducted for previous stream alteration projects.  Staff recommends a 
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Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Staff Comments 

condition of approval that all riparian areas within fifty feet of the 
proposed project, and not directly affected by the restoration work, 
shall be fenced off to protect them from any disturbance prior to the 
commencement of any site work and for the duration of the project. 

☐ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)8 Building setback in excess of minimum required along waterways is encouraged.   
Staff Comments No building construction is proposed. 

☐ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)9 The top of the lowest floor of a building located in the 1% annual chance floodplain 
shall be a minimum of twenty-four inches (24”) above the base flood elevation of 
the subject property.   

Staff Comments No building construction is proposed. 
☐ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)10 The back fill used around the foundation in the floodplain provides a reasonable 

transition to existing grade, but is not used to fill the parcel to any greater extent.  
Compensatory storage shall be required for any fill placed within the floodplain.  A 
LOMA-F shall be obtained prior to placement of any additional fill in the floodplain.   

Staff Comments No building construction is proposed. 
☐ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)11 All new buildings shall be constructed on foundations that are approved by a 

licensed professional engineer.   
Staff Comments No building construction is proposed. 

☐ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)12 Driveways comply with effective Street Standards; access for emergency vehicles has 
been adequately provided for.   

Staff Comments No driveway construction is proposed. 
☐ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)13 Landscaping or revegetation conceals cuts and fills required for driveways and other 

elements of the development.   
Staff Comments No building or driveway construction is proposed. 

☒ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)14 (Stream Alteration)  The proposal is shown to be a permanent solution and creates a 
stable situation.  

Staff Comments The applicant  states in Addendum 1.13 that “The proposed project is 
designed to halt the east bank erosion and encourage the thalweg of 
the stream to migrate to a location where natural transport of gravel 
can occur, thus maintaining all existing river channels open for water 
conveyance at normal and flood conditions.  This will result in a 
straighter reach with more uniform velocities that are not 
concentrated on the east bank, providing a reasonably stable channel.” 
The applicant worked in close cooperation with FEMA Region X to 
arrive at the proposed design.  The proposed stabilization techniques 
are consistent with the IDWR requirements of Rule 59.  Drop 
Structures, Sill and Barbs.   In addition, the applicant has provided a No 
Rise Certificate and supporting calculations (See Attachment A.), 
certifying that the proposed installations will not cause a rise of the 
river elevation.   

☒ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)15 Stream Alteration)  No increase to the 100-year floodplain upstream or downstream 
has been certified by a registered Idaho engineer. 

Staff Comments Brockway Engineers, PLLC has provided a No Rise Certificate and 
supporting calculations, certifying that the proposed installations will 
not cause a rise of the river elevation.     (See Attachment A) 

☒ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)16 (Stream Alteration)  The recreational use of the stream including access along any 
and all public pedestrian/fisherman’s easements and the aesthetic beauty is not 
obstructed or interfered with by the proposed work. 

Staff Comments While there will be some short term obstruction of the river bank 
during construction, it will cease at the completion of the actual 
construction period.   

☐ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)17 Where development is proposed that impacts any wetland, first priority shall be to 
move development from the wetland area. Mitigation strategies shall be proposed 
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Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Staff Comments 

at time of application that replace the impacted wetland area with a comparable 
amount and/or quality of new wetland area or riparian habitat improvement.    

Staff Comments No wetlands are affected by the proposed project   
☐ ☒ ☐ 17.88.060(E)18 (Stream Alteration)  Fish habitat is maintained or improved as a result of the work 

proposed.   
Staff Comments The applicant has stated that the proposed project will “create 

additional habitat in the pools formed upstream of the barbs.”   This is 
consistent with staff research conducted for previous stream alteration 
projects. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)19 (Stream Alteration)  The proposed work is not in conflict with the local public 
interest, including, but not limited to, property values, fish and wildlife habitat, 
aquatic life, recreation and access to public lands and waters, aesthetic beauty of the 
stream and water quality.  

Staff Comments The proposed work is not in conflict with the public interest.  The 
applicant has worked in close cooperation with FEMA Region X to 
arrive at the proposed design.  The proposed stabilization techniques 
are consistent with the IDWR requirements.  The applicant has stated 
that the proposed project will “create additional habitat in the pools 
formed upstream of the barbs.”   This is consistent with staff research 
conducted for previous stream alteration projects. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.88.060(E)20 (Stream Alteration)  The work proposed is for the protection of the public health, 
safety and/or welfare such as public schools, sewage treatment plant, water and 
sewer distribution lines and bridges providing particularly limited or sole access to 
areas of habitation.  

Staff Comments The applicant has worked in close cooperation with FEMA Region X to 
arrive at the proposed design.  The proposed stabilization techniques 
are consistent with the IDWR requirements.  The project will help 
protect the east side of the Big Wood River bank. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Based on the information submitted to date, staff recommends approval of this project, Big Wood River Bank 
Stabilization, subject to the conditions 1 - 12 below. 

 
FOR MOTION PURPOSES 

  
1. This project, Big Wood River Bank Stabilization, does not meet the standards for approval under 

Chapter 17.88 of Ketchum Zoning Code Title 17 because of the following standards (Commission to 
insert reasons for denial); or, 

 
2. This project, Big Wood River Bank Stabilization, does meet the standards for approval under Chapter 

17.88 of Ketchum Code Title 17 only if the following conditions of approval are met. 
 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS 
 
1. Floodplain Development/Waterways Design Review approval shall expire one (1) year from the date of 

signing of approved Findings of Fact; 

2. This Floodplain Development/Waterways Design Review approval is based on the plans and 
information presented and approved at the meeting on the date noted herein.    Any building or site 
discrepancies which do not conform to the approved plans will be subject to removal; 
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3. Pursuant to Chapter 17.88.050.C.3 & 4, no chemicals or soil sterilants are allowed within 100 feet of 
the mean high water mark.  No pesticides, herbicides, or fertilizers are allowed within 25 feet of the 
mean high water mark unless approved by the City Arborist;   
 

4. All excavated materials must be removed from the riparian setback zone and deposited in an 
appropriate upland portion of the site and/or exported off site; 
 

5. Any irrigation system installed shall be a temporary installation and shall be removed within three 
years of completion of the landscaping installation;  

6. All conditions of the IDWR Permit No. S37-20367 and USACE Nation Wide Permit No. 13 NWW-2014-
454-I01 shall be met prior to final Planning and Building Department inspection of the project; 

7. The riparian plantings shall conform to the application Narrative, dated January 27, 2015 and the 
Revegetation Plan, stamped “received” on February 20, 2015, and shall be inspected for approval by 
the Planning and Building Department staff, upon completion of the project;  

8. No maintenance, including the mowing, trimming, and removal of vegetation, and no replacement or 
repair of existing non-conforming decks or patios within the riparian zone shall take place without 
approval from the Planning and Building Department;  

9. Annual inspection reports including photographs, shall be provided by the applicant for 5 years 
following completion of the stream bank project to confirm compliance with conditions.  Planning and 
Building Department staff may schedule inspections to ensure that the riparian zone is not maintained 
and is allowed to naturalize; 

10. To the greatest extent possible, any existing stumps along the bank, that are currently contributing to 
bank stabilization, shall remain in place.  If it is not possible to leave these stumps in place due to 
grading requirements, such stumps shall be relocated within the stream bank restoration work area;  

11. Once work commences, if any portion of the project needs to be delayed for more than a month, a 
150% security deposit shall be filed with the City for any incomplete items.   This deposit will be 
refunded upon final inspection and approval by Planning and Building Department staff; and 

12. All riparian areas within fifty feet of the proposed project, and not directly affected by the restoration 
work, shall be fenced off to protect them from any disturbance prior to the commencement of any site 
work and for the duration of the project.  
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Attachment A:   
Application 

 
• Application Form, dated September 30, 2014 
• Addendum 1, Responses to Evaluation Criteria, Brockway Engineering, PLLC, dated 

September 23, 2014 
• Narrative in Support of Big Wood River Stabilization Project, Brockway Engineering, 

PLLC, dated January 27, 2015 
• Plan Set, dated January 27, 2014 
• HEC-RAS model calculations 
• Revegetation Plan, stamped “received” on February 20, 2015 
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Revised	Narrative	in	Support	of	Big	Wood	River	Stabilization	
Project	–	Reduced	Scope	Plan	
Applicant:		H.	J.	Heinz	II	Charitable	and	Family	Trust	
 
Charles G. Brockway, Ph.D., P.E. 
Brockway Engineering, PLLC January 27, 2015 
 
 
Overview	
 
This project lies within a braided reach of the river comprising three channels.  The 
east and middle channels have historically been the main channels, carrying roughly 
equivalent fractions of the flow, while the west channel has functioned as a high-
water channel.  The proposed stabilization project concerns only the east channel.  
The east bank of the Big Wood River has been significantly undercut and continues to 
erode in the project area.  The thalweg of the river has migrated eastward and now 
lies immediately adjacent to the east bank.  Gravel deposition has occurred in the 
west area of the channel, essentially confining the high velocity flow against the east 
bank.  The channel has down-cut to a depth of 3 to 4 feet below the normal high 
water and 5 to 6 feet below the top of bank.  In the north area of the project, due to a 
rightward bend in the river a high velocity jet of water impinges directly against the 
bank.  Previous bank stabilization at this location has partially failed.  A failure of the 
bank at this location would cause the river to migrate eastward and would place the 
residence in significant jeopardy of flooding and potential structural failure.  The 
proposed work is a necessary preemptive action needed to provide additional 
measures of protection for the residence while maintaining or improving aquatic life 
habitat and aesthetic benefits of this reach of the river. 
 
Proposed	Project	
 
The bank stabilization proposal consists of three components.  First, it is proposed to 
stabilize the bank in the area where significant undercutting is evident, as noted on 
the attached work plan.  This area is in the vicinity of the two proposed southern 
barbs near the residence.  The bank will be regraded to form a 2:1 slope, and cobble 
harvested from the adjacent gravel bar may be used to augment the existing bank 
material.  Angular stone will be placed and embedded into the toe of the slope.  This 
is not a riprap treatment of the bank; the stone will be below the low water level and 
is needed only to afford additional toe protection in conjunction with the bank barbs, 
which will provide the primary protection function.  On the bank, willow cuttings will 
be placed to further stabilize the rock and provide vegetative concealment.  This bank 
treatment will take place over a gross channel length of 175 feet; however, not all of 
that length will require a full re-grading.  The level of treatment will be a field 
decision based on specific conditions.  The volume of material placed for this activity 
is estimated to be 93 cubic yards, which is an upper limit as it assumes the entire 
length will be treated. 
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Second, it is proposed to construct four (4) low-height bank barbs, two at the north 
location and two near the residence as shown on the site plan.  The size of the barbs 
will be kept small in order to minimize the aesthetic impact, but the angular stone in 
the barb will be appropriately designed according to anticipated maximum channel 
velocities during the 100-year flood event.  The height of the barbs would be such 
that they would overtop at water elevations exceeding normal high water.  The length 
of the barbs from the normal high water mark to the waterward toe will be 
approximately 12 feet.  Placement of the barbs will induce the thalweg of the stream 
to migrate westward to a more stable location.  The barbs will also cause a pool/riffle 
effect and create fish habitat as has been observed at similar structures along the river.  
Volume of rock for the barbs is estimated to be 20 cubic yards per barb or 80 cubic 
yards total. 
 
The final component of the project will be a limited removal of the gravel bar in the 
west portion of the channel.  This activity is beneficial to the overall objective of the 
project in that it will induce the thalweg to relocate to a more stable position in the 
channel.  In addition, it is necessary to meet FEMA criteria and mitigate for 
conveyance loss caused by the barb structures (see below).  Other potential mitigation 
locations were evaluated, and FEMA Region X engineering staff was consulted.  
There is no other location where conveyance increase could be provided that would 
be reasonable to execute, hydraulically feasible, and meet FEMA regulations. 
 
Hydraulic	Analysis	
 
Essentially all of the proposed project will be located within the regulatory floodway.  
The floodway limits are coincident with the river banks in this reach.  Therefore, the 
“no-rise” criteria established by FEMA and enforced by local jurisdictions is required 
to be met.  The criteria is that any obstruction placed within the floodway must be 
mitigated such that there will be zero net increase in the 100-year flood elevation, or 
base flood elevation. 
 
An analysis of river conveyance change before and after was conducted in accordance 
with FEMA guidance, utilizing the HEC-RAS water surface profile model.  A 
topographic survey was completed by Alpine Enterprises, and included four (4) cross-
sections of the river and flood plain from the irrigation diversion upstream to the 
upper barb location (see attached map showing survey points and cross-sections).  An 
additional interpolated cross-section was created between Sections 2 and 3 so that 
sections would located at the downstream and upstream positions of the lower barbs.  
The HEC-RAS model was run using a 100-year discharge of 2,880 cfs, which is equal 
to the value used by FEMA in the effective flood insurance study.  Roughness 
coefficients of 0.060 in the channel and 0.080 in the overbanks were used, again 
based on the FEMA modeling.  The downstream starting elevation was set equal to 
the channel normal depth.  With these parameters, the model duplicated the 100-year 
base flood elevations computed by FEMA within 0.5 feet. 
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Heinz ‐ Gravel Removal Volume for Reduced Scope Project
Based on HEC‐RAS analysis of area needed to mitigate for barbs
Removed south barb to reduce scope of project
CGB 11/12/2014

SOUTH BARBS

Section Riv Sta Area (ft2) dV* Plan area =
D/S limit 1089 0 6430 ft2 (140' x 46')

2 1161 0 0 Avg depth =
2a 1228 20.73 463 0.33 ft
3 1295 18.06 1298

U/S limit 1360 0 391

* Using prism formula Total V 2153 ft3
80 cy

NORTH BARBS
Plan area =

Section Riv Sta Area (ft2) dV* 3658 ft2
D/S limit 1410 0 Avg depth =

4 1472 24.62 509 0.29 ft
U/S limit 1538 0 542

* Using prism formula Total V 1050 ft3
39 cy

Brockway Engineering, PLLC  11/12/2014 Existing and proposed sections - reduced scope.xls:GravelVol  Page 3
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Attachment B:   
USACE Nationwide Permit No. 13, NWW-2014-454-I01,  

dated December 2, 2014 
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 

WALLA WALLA DISTRICT, CORPS OF ENGINEERS 
IDAHO FALLS REGULATORY OFFICE 
900 NORTH SKYLINE DRIVE, SUITE A 

IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO  83402-1718 
REPLY TO  

 ATTENTION OF  

  December 2, 2014 
Regulatory Division 
 
SUBJECT:  NWW-2014-454-I01, H J Heinz II Charitable and Family Trust – 2014 Big Wood 
River Bank Stabilization 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Brian Morrison 
H.J. Heintz II Charitable and Family Trust 
625 Liberty Avenu, Ste. 3200 
Pittsburg, PA  15222 
 
Dear Mr. Morrison: 
 
 We have determined that the proposed project 2014 Big Wood River Bank Stabilization is 
authorized in accordance with Department of Army (DA) Nationwide Permit (NWP) No. 13:  
Bank Stabilization.  This project is located on River Rock Road, within Section 1 of Township 
4 North, Range 17 East, near latitude 43.708 N and longitude –114.373 W, in Blaine County, in 
Ketchum, Idaho.  Please refer to File Number NWW-2014-454-I01 in all future correspondence 
with our office regarding this project.  
 
 Project activities include the discharge of rock riprap, gravel, stone, tree root wad and woody 
debris, and willow plantings below the ordinary high water mark of the Big Wood River to 
construct up to 5 barbs and reshape up to 175 feet of eroding banks.  In addition, up to 150 cubic 
yards of gravel will be removed from in-river gravel bars and reused as suitable in the bank 
shaping.   The Big Wood River is a water of the United States (U.S.), including wetlands.  All 
work shall be done in accordance to the application, narrative and drawings, prepared by 
Brockway Engineering, PLLC and submitted with the Joint Application for Permit as revised 
with information submitted by email on October 1, 2014. 

 
AUTHORITY 
 DA permit authorization is necessary because your project would discharge dredged and/or 
fill material into waters of the U.S., including wetlands.  This authorization is outlined in Section 
404 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1344). 
 
PERMIT CONDITIONS 
 You must comply with all regional, general, and special conditions for this verification letter 
to remain valid and to avoid possible enforcement actions. The regional and general permit 
conditions for NWP No. 13:  Bank Stabilization are available online at our website at:  
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- 2 - 

 
 
 
 

 
http://www.nww.usace.army.mil/BusinessWithUs/RegulatoryDivision/NationwidePermits.aspx.  
If you are unable to access this website or would prefer a hard copy of the Regional and General 
Conditions please notify us and we will provide you a copy.  In addition you must also comply 
with the special conditions listed below. 
 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
The following Special Conditions include:   

a. In order to minimize impacts to aquatic life, including fish, work below the ordinary high 
water mark of the Big Wood River shall NOT occur between March 15 and July 14. 

b. In order to maximize the benefits to fish habitat each of the proposed barbs shall be 
constructed as designed using full and intact root wads.  Woody debris can be integrated 
into the barbs but the tree root wad should be as depicted on the application drawings. 

c. In order to ensure restoration of important riparian habitat, including the reshaped banks, 
native riparian species of grasses, forbs, shrubs and trees should be used. Re-vegetation 
efforts should be performed using techniques and timing determined most appropriate by 
experienced professionals.  It may be necessary to install temporary soil and erosion contrl 
measures pending permanent re-vegetation efforts. 

d. Permittee is responsible for all work done by any contractor.  Permittee shall ensure any 
contractor who performs the work is informed of and follows all the terms and conditions of 
this authorization, including any Special Conditions listed above.  Permittee shall also 
ensure these terms and conditions are incorporated into engineering plans and contract 
specifications.  

 
WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION 
 You must also comply with the conditions detailed in the Section 401 Water Quality 
Certification (WQC) issued for this project on July 5,2012, by the Idaho Department of 
Environmental Quality (IDEQ).  A copy of this WQC is available on the IDEQ’s website, at 
http://www.deq.idaho.gov/media/848141-nationwide-permits-2012-401-certification-final-0712.pdf.  
If you have any questions regarding the conditions set forth in the Water Quality Certification, 
please contact IDEQ directly at 208-736-2190.   
 
PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION 
 Attached to this verification are two copies of the Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination 
(PJD) form showing that waters of the United States, including wetlands, which may be located 
within your project area.  Please sign both copies and return one to the Corps at the address 
in the letterhead above.  The other copy is for your records.   
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 The Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination is a non-binding action and shall remain in 
effect, unless a request for an Approved Jurisdictional Determination or new information 
supporting a revision is provided to this office.  Please note that since this jurisdictional 
determination is preliminary, it is subject to change and therefore is not an appealable action 
under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Procedures (33 CFR 331).  Enclosed you 
will find a Notification of Administrative Appeal Options and Process and Request for Appeal 
(RFA) Form for further clarification.   
 
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 Further, Nationwide Permit General Condition 30 (Compliance Certification) requires that 
every permittee who has received NWP verification must submit a signed certification regarding 
the completed work and any required mitigation.  The enclosed Compliance Certification form is 
enclosed for your convenience and must be completed and returned to us.    
 
LIMITATIONS OF THIS VERIFICATION 
 This letter of authorization does not convey any property rights, or any exclusive privileges 
and does not authorize any injury to property or excuse you from compliance with other Federal, 
State, or local statutes, ordinances, regulations, or requirements which may affect this work. 
 
EXPIRATION OF THIS VERIFICATION 
 This verification is valid until March 18, 2017, unless the NWP is modified, suspended or 
revoked.  If your project, as permitted under this NWP verification is changed and/or modified, 
you must contact our office prior to commencing any work activities.  In the event you have not 
completed construction of your project by March 18, 2017, please contact us at least 60-days 
prior to this date.  A new application and verification may be required.       
 
SURVEY 
 We are interested in your thoughts and opinions concerning the quality of service you 
received from the Walla Walla District, Corps of Engineers Regulatory Division.  Please visit us 
online at http://corpsmapu.usace.army.mil/cm_apex/f?p=regulatory_survey and complete an 
electronic version of our Customer Service Survey form, which will be automatically submitted 
to us.  Alternatively, you may call and request a paper copy of the survey, which you may 
complete and return to us by mail.  For additional information about our Regulatory program 
please visit us at http://www.nww.usace.army.mil/BusinessWithUs/RegulatoryDivision.aspx. 
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 Please contact me by telephone at 208-522-1645, by mail at the address in the letterhead, or 
via email at Robert.A.Brochu@usace.army.mil if you have any questions or need additional 
information.  For informational purposes, an electronic copy of this letter is being sent to: Dr. 
Charles G. Brockway, P.E., Brockway Engineering, Dr. Balthasar Buhidar, IDEQ, Mr. Doug 
Megargle, Idaho Department of Fish and Game, and Mr. Aaron Golart, Idaho Department of 
Water Resources. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 

  
 

 Robert A. Brochu 
 Project Manager 
 Regulatory Division 
  
Enclosure(s):  
 27 October 2014 Preliminary Jurisdiction Determination 
 Request for Appeals Form 
 Transfer Form 
 Compliance Certification Form 
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TRANSFER OF NATIONWIDE PERMIT 
 
 
 
 
When the structures or work authorized by this Nationwide Permit, NWW-2014-454-I01, 2014 

Big Wood River Bank Stabilization, are still in existence at the time the property is transferred.  

The terms and conditions of this Nationwide Permit, including any special conditions, will 

continue to be binding on the new owner(s) of the property.  To validate the transfer of this 

Nationwide Permit, the associated liabilities and compliance with the terms and conditions the 

transferee must sign and date below. 

 
 
 
Name of New Owner:   

Street Address: 

Mailing Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Phone Number:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________       _____________________________ 

Signature of TRANSFEREE                                       DATE 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 

® 
US Army Corps of Engineers 
Walla Walla District 
 
 
Permit Number:  NWW-2014-454-I01 
 
Name of Permittee:  H.J. Heinz II Charitable and Family Trust 
 
Date of Issuance:  2 December 2014 
 
 
Upon completion of the activity authorized by this permit and any mitigation required by the 
permit, please sign this certification and return it to the following address:   
 
 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
 Walla Walla District 
 Idaho Falls Regulatory Office 
 900 North Skyline Drive, Suite A  
 Idaho Falls, Idaho  83402-1718  
 
Please note that your permitted activity is subject to a compliance inspection by a U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers representative.  If you fail to comply with all terms and conditions of this 
permit, the permit is subject to suspension, modification, or revocation and you are subject to an 
enforcement action by this office. 
 
I hereby certify that the work authorized by the above-referenced permit has been completed in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the said permit.  The required mitigation was also 
completed in accordance with the permit conditions. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________       __________________________         

Signature of Permittee                                                           Date 
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 NOTIFICATION OF  ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OPTIONS AND PROCESS AND  
 REQUEST FOR APPEAL 

Applicant: H. J. Heinz II Charitable & Family Trust File Number:  NWW-2014-454-I01 Date:  2 Dec 2014 
Attached is:  See Section Below 
 INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of Permission)  A 

 PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of Permission)  B 
 PERMIT DENIAL  C 

 APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION  D 
X PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION  E 

SECTION I - The following identifies your rights and options regarding an administrative appeal of the above decision.  Additional 
information may be found at http://usace.army.mil/inet/functions/cw/cecwo/reg or Corps regulations at 33 CFR Part 331. 

A:  INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT:  You may accept or object to the permit. 

 

 ACCEPT:  If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final 
authorization.  If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized.  Your signature on 
the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights to appeal the 
permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations (JD) associated with the permit. 

 

 OBJECT:  If you object to the permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you may request that the 
permit be modified accordingly. You must complete Section II of this form and return the form to the district engineer.  Your 
objections must be received by the district engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice, or you will forfeit your right to appeal 
the permit in the future.  Upon receipt of your letter, the district engineer will evaluate your objections and may: (a) modify the 
permit to address all of your concerns, (b) modify the permit to address some of your objections, or (c) not modify the permit 
having determined that the permit should be issued as previously written.  After evaluating your objections, the district engineer 
will send you a proffered permit for your reconsideration, as indicated in Section B below. 

B:  PROFFERED PERMIT: You may accept or appeal the permit,  

 

 ACCEPT:  If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final 
authorization.  If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized.  Your signature on 
the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all rights to appeal the 
permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the permit. 

 

 APPEAL:  If you choose to decline the proffered permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you may 
appeal the declined permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by completing Section II of this form and 
sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the division engineer within 60 days of the date of this 
notice. 

C:  PERMIT DENIAL:   You may appeal the denial of a permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by 
completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the division 
engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice. 

D:  APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION:  You may accept or appeal the approved JD or provide new information. 

 

 ACCEPT:  You do not need to notify the Corps to accept an approved JD.  Failure to notify the Corps within 60 days of  the date of 
this notice,  means that you accept the approved JD in its entirety, and waive all rights to appeal the approved JD. 

 

 APPEAL:  If you disagree with the approved JD, you may appeal the approved JD under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal 
Process by completing Section II of this form and sending the form to the division engineer.  This form must be received by the 
division engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice. 

E:  PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION:  You do not need to respond to the Corps regarding the preliminary JD.  
The Preliminary JD is not appealable.  If you wish, you may request an approved JD (which may be appealed), by contacting the 
Corps district for further instruction.  Also you may provide new information for further consideration by the Corps to reevaluate 
the JD. 
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SECTION II - REQUEST FOR APPEAL or OBJECTIONS TO AN INITIAL PROFFERED PERMT 
REASONS FOR APPEAL OR OBJECTIONS:   
Describe your reasons for appealing the decision or your objections to an initial proffered permit in clear concise statements.  You 
may attach additional information to this form to clarify where your reasons or objections are addressed in the administrative record. 
 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  The appeal is limited to a review of the administrative record, the Corps memorandum for the 
record of the appeal conference or meeting, and any supplemental information that the review officer has determined is needed to 
clarify the administrative record.  Neither the appellant nor the Corps may add new information or analyses to the record.  However, 
you may provide additional information to clarify the location of information that is already in the administrative record. 
POINT OF CONTACT FOR QUESTIONS OR INFORMATION: 

If you have questions regarding this decision and/or the appeal process  
you  may contact: 

District Engineer 
ATTN:  Ms. Kelly J. Urbanek 
Regulatory Division Walla Walla District. 
201 North 3rd Avenue 
Walla Walla, Washington  99362-1876 
Telephone (208) 376-1832 

If you only have questions regarding the appeal process you  
may also contact: 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
Northwestern Division 
Attn:  Ms. Mary Hoffman, Appeals Review Officer 
P.O. Box 2870          
Portland, Oregon 97208-2870           
Telephone (503) 808-3825 

RIGHT OF ENTRY:  Your signature below grants the right of entry to Corps of Engineers personnel, and any government 
consultants, to conduct investigations of the project site during the course of the appeal process.  You will be provided a 15 day 
notice of any site investigation, and will have the opportunity to participate in all site investigations. 

Signature of appellant or agent: 

 
Date: 

 
Telephone: 
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PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION FORM 

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
A. Report completion date for Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination (PJD):  27 October 2014 
 
B.   Name/address of person requesting preliminary JD: Mr. Brian Morrison 

 

C.   District Office: Walla Walla District, Idaho Falls Regulatory Office 
 File Name: HJ Heinz II Charitable & Family Trust 
 File Number: 2014-454-I01 
 
D.   Project Location(s) and Background Information:  
 State:  Idaho County/Parish/Borough:  Blaine Co.  City:  Ketchum 

Location of Site (Lat/Long if available; use center Coordinates for larger sites): 
  

Latitude (NAD83) 43.708 
Longitude (NAD83) -114.373 
UTM Y Coordinate 4842795.79089655 
UTM X Coordinate 711651.039849115 
UTM Zone 11 
HUC Region Name Pacific Northwest Region 
HUC Subregion Name Upper Snake 
HUC Acc Name Upper Snake 
HUC Cat Name Big Wood. Idaho. 
8 Digit Huc 17040219 
PLSS Meridian Boise 
PLSS Township 4 N 
PLSS Range 17 E 
PLSS Section 1 
USGS 1:24K Quad Name ID-SUN VALLEY 

 
Name of nearest waterbody(s): Big Wood River 
Identify (estimate) amount of waters in the review area:  
     Non-wetland waters:   Linear feet 193 Width (ft)  and/or 0.25 acres 
 Cowardin Class:  R3UBH 
  
 Stream Flow: perennial ;  relatively permanent ;  intermittent  
 Basis for determination: Joint Application and review of past applications at same location and 
nearby 
       
 Wetlands: present in river corridor but not part of application. 
 Cowardin Class:  PSSC 
 
Name of any water bodies on the site identified as Section 10 waters:  
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PJD FORM   

 2 

 Tidal: N/A 
 Non-Tidal: N/A 

E.   Review performed for site evaluation (Check all that Apply): 
 Office (Desk) Determination Date:    
 Field Determination Date(s):   

1.   The Corps of Engineers believes that there may be jurisdictional waters of the United States on the 
subject site.  The permit applicant or other affected person/party who requested this preliminary JD is 
hereby advised of his or her option to request and obtain an approved jurisdictional determination (JD) 
for the site, as described above.  Nevertheless, the permit applicant or other affected person/party who 
requested this preliminary JD has declined to exercise the option to obtain an approved JD in this 
instance and at this time. 

2.   In any circumstance where a permit applicant obtains an individual permit, or a Nationwide General 
Permit (NWP) or other general permit verification requiring “Pre-Construction Notification” (PCN), or 
requests verification for a non-reporting NWP or other general permit, and the permit applicant has not 
requested an approved JD for the activity, the permit applicant is hereby made aware of the following:  
(a) The permit applicant has elected to seek a permit authorization based on a preliminary JD, which does 

not make an official determination of jurisdictional waters;  

(b)  That the applicant has the option to request an approved JD before accepting the terms and conditions of 
the permit authorization, and that basing a permit authorization on an approved JD could possibly result 
in less compensatory mitigation being required or different special conditions;  

(c) That the applicant has the right to request an individual permit rather than accepting the terms and 
conditions of the NWP or other general permit authorization;  

(d) That the applicant can accept a permit authorization and thereby agree to comply with all the terms and 
conditions of that permit, including whatever mitigation requirements the Corps has determined to be 
necessary;  

(e) That undertaking any activity in reliance upon the subject permit authorization without requesting an 
approved JD constitutes the applicant’s acceptance of the use of the preliminary JD, but that either form 
of JD will be processed as soon as is practicable;  

(f) Accepting a permit authorization (e.g., signing a proffered individual permit) or undertaking any activity 
in reliance on any form of Corps permit authorization based on a preliminary JD constitutes agreement 
that all wetlands and other water bodies on the site affected in any way by that activity are jurisdictional 
waters of the United States, and precludes any challenge to such jurisdiction in any administrative or 
judicial compliance or enforcement action, or in any administrative appeal or in any Federal court; and  

(g) Whether the applicant elects to use either an approved JD or a preliminary JD, that JD will be processed 
as soon as is practicable.   

 
3. Further, an approved JD, a proffered individual permit (and all terms and conditions contained therein) 

or individual permit denial can be administratively appealed pursuant to 33 C.F.R. Part 331, and that in 
any administrative appeal, jurisdictional issues can be raised (see 33 C.F.R. 331.5(a)(2)).  If, during that 
administrative appeal, it becomes necessary to make an official determination whether CWA 
jurisdiction exists over a site, or to provide an official delineation of jurisdictional waters on the site, 
the Corps will provide an approved JD to accomplish that result, as soon as is practicable. 

II. SUPPORTING DATA.  Data reviewed for Preliminary JD 
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PJD FORM   

 3 

This preliminary JD finds that there “may be” waters of the United States on the subject project site, 
and identifies all aquatic features on the site that could be affected by the proposed activity, based on 
the following information: 

Check all boxes below that apply.  The checked information should be included in the administrative file.  
Provide detailed reference sources for each checked box. 

 Maps, plans, plots or plat submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant:  Aerial images 
provided by applicant. 

 Data sheets prepared/submitted by or on behalf of the applicant/consultant 
  Office concurs with data sheets/delineation report 

  Office does not concur with data sheets/delineation report   
 Data sheets prepared by the Corps:        
 Corps navigable waters’ study:        
 U.S. Geological Survey Hydrologic Atlas:        

  USGS NHD data   
  USGS 8 and 12 digit HUC maps   

 U.S. Geological Survey map(s):  Cite scale & Quad Name:  1:24K Sun Valley ID  
 USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey, Citation:        
 National wetlands inventory map(s):  Cite name:   
 State/Local wetland inventory map(s):        
 FEMA/FIRM maps:        
 100-year Floodplain Elevation is:       (National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929) 
 Photographs:  Aerial (Name & Date):         OR    Other (Name & Date):        
 Previous determination(s):  File no. and Date of Response Letter:  Prior projects are 2008-719, 

2008-794, 1995-220156, and 1300-35055. 
 Other information (please specify):   

 
 
This constitutes a preliminary jurisdictional determination (JD) and is useful for the planning of 
your project.  An approved JD is not necessary in order for the Corps to process a 404 permit 
application.   
 
 

Important Note: The information recorded on this form has not necessarily been verified by the Corps and 
should not be relied upon for later jurisdictional determinations. 
 
 
________________________________   ___________________________________ 
Signature of Regulatory Project Manager   Signature of person requesting Preliminary JD 
REQUIRED REQUIRED (unless obtaining signature is 

impracticable)        
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
Date  Date 

42 of 103



Attachment C:  
IDWR Permit S37-20367,  
dated February 9, 2015 
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Attachment D:  
Public Comment  
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1

Rebecca Bundy

Subject: RE: Heinz Stream bank Alteration

From: Kurtz, John [mailto:jkurtz@blm.gov]  

Sent: Wednesday, March 04, 2015 7:28 AM 

To: Micah Austin 

Subject: Re: Heinz Stream bank Alteration 

 

Hi Micah, 

Thanks for sending me this information and application.  At a quick glance it appears as though all if the work 

being proposed is downstream of the BLM property and should not have an impact on public lands.  Please let 

me know if access for this project will be done entirely on private property.  If they need access to the Big 

Wood River or use of BLM BLM land they will need to apply for a temporary right of way and most likely 

would not be a priority workload for the BLM Shoshone Field Office.  Thanks 

 

 

 

John Kurtz 

Outdoor Recreation Planner 

BLM Shoshone Field Office 

208-732-7296 

jkurtz@blm.gov 

 

On Tue, Mar 3, 2015 at 12:15 PM, Micah Austin <maustin@ketchumidaho.org> wrote: 

John, 

Here is the DRAFT staff report for the Heinz stream bank alteration permit. Please let me know if you have 

any questions. 

Micah  

MICAH AUSTIN, AICP | CITY OF KETCHUM 

Planning and Building Director 

P.O. Box 2315 | 480 East Ave. N. | Ketchum, ID 83340 

office: 208-726-7801 | direct. 208-727-5084 

maustin@ketchumidaho.org | www.ketchumidaho.org 
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IN RE:     ) 

     ) 

Limelight Hotel,               ) 

(formerly Bald Mountain Lodge) ) 

Design Review Modification  ) 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

File Number: 07-015   ) 

 

 

 

KETCHUM PLANNING AND ZONING 

COMMISSION - FINDINGS OF FACT, 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION 

BACKGROUND FACTS 

 
PROJECT:  Limelight Hotel, formerly Bald Mountain Lodge 

 

FILE NUMBER:  07-015 

 

OWNERS: Limelight Ketchum LLC , formerly Bald Mountain Lodge LLC 

 

REPRESENTATIVE: Don Schuster, VP Hospitality, Aspen Skiing Company 

 

REQUEST: Community Core Design Review Modification  

 

LOCATION:  Ketchum Townsite Amended Lot 1A, Block 20 (151 South Main Street) 

 

NOTICE: Adjacent property owners were mailed notice on Tuesday, February 10, 2015 

and a display ad was run in the Idaho Mountain Express on February 18, 2015. 

 

ZONING:  Community Core (CC), Subdistrict A, Retail Core 

 

REVIEWER:  Rebecca F. Bundy, Senior Planner / Building and Development Manager 

 
Regulatory Taking Notice:  Applicant has the right, pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code, to 

request a regulatory taking analysis. 

 

GENERAL FINDINGS OF FACT 

 
1. The Bald Mountain Lodge project (land and entitlements) was purchased by the Aspen Skiing 

Company from Bald Mountain Lodge, LLC in December 2014.  The entitlements include a Development 

Agreement with a preferred Timeline A, which requires submittal of a building permit by May 31, 2015.  

With the current Design Review application, the developers are seeking approval of a number of design 

changes, so that they can proceed with the construction documents for building permit submittal on 

the preferred timeline.   

2. On November 24, 2014, the Aspen Skiing Company and the original developers, Bald Mountain 

Lodge, LLC, conducted a workshop with the Planning and Zoning Commission to get the Commission’s 

feedback on Aspen Skiing Company’s proposed modifications to the approved hotel design prior to 

cementing the sale of the project.  At that meeting, it was decided that the proposed programing 

changes would not necessitate an amendment of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) as approved, 

since the changes were in keeping with the original approval and code requirements and were minimal 
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City of Ketchum Planning & Building Department 

in impact.  The Commission decided, however, that the proposed exterior design changes should come 

before the Commission as a whole for Design Review Modification approval. 

3. The Development Agreement calls for creation of a Design Review Subcommittee that will be 

empowered to approve more minor exterior design changes through the course of the construction 

project.  On December 8, 2014, the Commission nominated Rich Fabiano, former Commissioner, and 

Erin Smith, current Commissioner, to that subcommittee, along with the Planning and Building 

Department Director, currently Micah Austin.  The nominees were approved by the City Council on 

January 5, 2015, so the Subcommittee is in place to handle more minor design issues.  The original 

Design Review approval contained conditions of approval authorizing the Design Review Subcommittee 

to perform final review of a number of Design Review elements, including final landscaping, streetscape 

design, bicycle parking and signage.  Those conditions of approval have been retained in this staff 

report. 

4. The current application is very much in keeping with the changes proposed at the November 24 

meeting and also includes elements that reflect the Commission’s feedback at that meeting, including 

removal of the clock tower element at the southwest corner of the building.  The current proposal 

contains the following changes from the original design: 

• Building height is reduced five (5) feet with a flat roof configuration to reflect 

Commission’s input; 

• The clock tower has been removed from the southeast corner of the building with 

increased building setbacks above ground level at that corner configuration to reflect 

Commission’s input; 

• Ground floor at the corner of Main and River Streets has increased glazing to relate 

interior lobby space to outdoors; 

• Increased upper level setbacks along First and River Streets; 

• Fenestration and horizontal relief elements have been increased, including deeper 

decks and roof overhangs; 

• Increased façade articulation on Floor 5, Main Street façade.  The residential units have 

been enlarged within the area of the roof decks to approximately equal the area lost 

with removal of the clock tower; 

• Pedestrian connectivity to Forest Service Park has been enhanced by adding a primary 

entrance on the west side of the building, a courtyard, steps and bench facing 

Washington Avenue; 

• The green roof at Floor 2 on the Washington Avenue side of the building has been 

converted to a roof deck, most of it open to the public; 

• The First Street vehicular exit from the porte cochere has been eliminated in response 

to the Commission’s concerns about its impact on First Street traffic flows.  The porte 

cochere exit is, therefore, only on to Main Street.  However, structure location has not 

been altered, so the exit could occur on First Street on an as needed basis; 

• The applicant has offered to provide signage restricting parking on First Street during  

morning hours to provide dual use/delivery/garbage truck access; 

• Sidewalk and on street parking configurations have been revised with twelve (12) on 

street parking spaces proposed; 

• A substantial amount of hotel back of house has been eliminated.  One level of 

underground structure has been eliminated with pared down back of house, mechanical 

and parking provided on one (1) underground level; and 
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• The spa and lower level courtyard have been eliminated, and the pool design has 

changed to a more rectangular form. 

5. The original Bald Mountain Lodge PUD was approved by the City Council on June 7, 2010, and 

the PUD was amended on May 6, 2014, with no external changes to the building proposed.  The 

following table shows the history of the programming changes since the original PUD approval: 

Table 1:  History of Programming Changes 

Original 

Approva

l 

Revised 

2013 

Proposed 

Nov 

2014 

Current 

Proposal 

Project Numbers 

Lot size (sf) 48351 48351 48351 48351 

Building height (ft) 68 68 63 63 

Parking spaces (#) 125 125 122 124 

Number of parking levels 2 2 1 1 

Hotel 

Lobby (sf) 5660 4600 12140 5532 

Hotel Rooms (total sf) 48380 70448 58142 50414 

Hotel Rooms/Suites (#) 82 119 105 98 

Avg Size of Hotel Rooms (sf) 590 592 554 456 

Lock-off Units (#) 5 0 15 10 

Conference/Prefunct space (sf) 5436 8380 4310 4131 

Conference Capacity (#) 200 350 175 170 

Spa (sf) 5506 3600 0 0 

Restaurant/Lounge/Kitchen (sf) 7735 6870 

included 

in lobby 

included 

in lobby 

Pool/Hot tubs 

1 pool      

1 hot tub 

1 pool      

1 hot 

tub 

1 pool      

2 hot 

tubs 

1 pool      

2 hot 

tubs 

Fitness (sf) 809 1200 940 930 

Residential 

Residential Units (total sf) 40035 18600 32335 30736 

Residential Units (#) 26 11 18 14 

Avg. Size of Residential Units (sf) 1540 1692 1796 2195 

% Hotel vs Residential 74.4 86.7 81.0 78.3 

Retail 

Total (sf) 2614 2550 1890 2050 

 

6. Hotel Definition:  Using the same methodology as in the original PUD approval and the 

subsequent PUD amendment, the current proposal continues to meet the definition of “hotel” by 

limiting the residential components to less than 25% of the total “hotel” square footage. 
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Table 2:  Hotel Definition 

HOTEL CONFIGURATION 

BML-2010 

Approved 

BML-2013 

Approved 

LKH-2015 

Proposed 

Guest Rooms  82 119 98 

Sq Ft 59,422 86,329 50,414 

Dedicated Units – Lock-Out Units  9 N/A 10 

Sq Ft 3,538                N/A 4,776 

Hotel Key Count 91 119 108 

BOH/Lobbies/Hotel Related Uses Sq Ft 

(P1,P2,Level 1*) 
63,687 60,149 55,621 

TTL “Hotel” sq ft (per definition)  126,647  146,478 110,811 

     

Permitted “Non-Hotel” sq ft  (25%) 42,215.5 42,215.5 35,387 

    

Proposed Residential Units (4th & 5th 

Floors minus lock-off units) 
26 8 14 

Sq Ft 42,215 22,384 30,736 

    

TTL Bldg Sq Ft (includes sub-grade hotel-

uses, but not parking) 
168,862 168,862 141,547 

    

Pct of Building Area defined as “Hotel” 75.0 % 86.7% 78.3% 

    

Residential sq ft over allowable per 

definition 
0 0 0 

7. Parking Requirements:  Required parking spaces are pursuant to 17.64.010.E.  See table below: 

 

Table 3:  Required Parking 

 

Parking Requirements:  

Commercial Space:  10,819 sf**  2 per 1,000 sq. ft. = 21.6 spaces 

Residential (net) 30,736 sf  1 per 1,500 sq. ft. = 20.5  spaces 

Hotel:                108 units  .75 per Room = 81 spaces 

Total Spaces Required:  123.1 spaces 

 

Proposed:   

Garage:  109 spaces  Surface:  3 spaces     On Street Credit*:   12 spaces

   

Total Spaces Proposed:   124 spaces 
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*Section 17.64.010.E.3 of the Community Core District zoning regulations states that:  “Four (4) on 

street parking spaces per five thousand five hundred (5,500) square feet of lot area may be counted 

toward the required parking demand.” 

This would result in an on street parking credit of 35 spaces.  However, between Pre-application Design 

Review and the original Design Review/PUD submittal, staff and the applicant negotiated a parking 

credit of nine (9) on street spaces, due to vehicular access requirements, desired pedestrian bulb-outs 

at intersections and other considerations.  The current proposal calls for twelve (12) on street parking 

spaces and still maintains the desired pedestrian bulb-outs.  It also provides enhanced pedestrian access 

between the hotel and Forest Service Park.   

**The applicant’s parking calculations for the commercial space include 2 spaces per 1000 square feet 

for the conference/board rooms, breakfast/bar/lobby and lounge (totaling 8,762 square feet), which 

are required elements of a hotel and should be satisfied by the .75 parking spaces per room hotel 

parking requirement.  Therefore, the project as proposed has 19 more spaces than required by the 

code. 

As condition of approval #9, prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit civil 

engineered street and sidewalk design drawings, showing grading, drainage and details, for review and 

approval by the Public Works Director. 

8. Sidewalk Requirements:  The applicant has stated that sidewalks on Main Street shall be eight 

(8) feet in width, and that the sidewalks on First and River Streets and Washington Avenue shall be ten 

(10) feet in width.  As condition of approval #9, prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall 

submit civil engineered street and sidewalk design drawings, showing grading, drainage and details, for 

review and approval by the Public Works Director. 

 

 

General Requirements for all Design Review Applications 

Compliant Standards and Conclusion 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Conclusion ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.96.080 Complete Application ☒ ☐ ☐ City 

Department 

Comments 

Police Department 

o No comments to date. 

Fire Department 

o Condition #1 satisfies Fire Department requirements. 

 Public Works Department 

o Condition #9 satisfies Public Works Department requirements. 

Building Department   

o Condition #1 satisfies Building Department requirements. 
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Compliance with Zoning District and Overlay Requirements 

Compliant Standards and Conclusion 

Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Conclusion ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.E Parking Spaces 

Conclusion 

 

123.1 required 

124 proposed (See item 7 above.) 

This standard may be met with condition of approval #9. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.F Sidewalks 

Conclusion 

 

See item 8 above. 

This standard may be met with condition of approval #9. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.G Lot Dimensions 

Conclusion 48,351 sf, 219 ft x 219 ft (no change) ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.H Gross Floor Area/FAR     

Conclusion Original DR approval:  134,800  FAR 2.8 (allowed to exceed 2.25 due to hotel use) 

Current proposal:  132,411  FAR 2.74 

 

Design Review Requirements 
 

EVALUATION STANDARDS: 17.64.010 
 

Compliant Standards and Conclusion 
 

Yes No N/A Standard 

Number 

City Standards and Conclusion ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010(I)(1) 

Hotel Uses 
Number Of Floors: Hotels may build a fourth floor. If a site meets the criteria for 

five-story hotel site designation, a fifth floor may be built. Five-story hotels may 

only be approved via a planned unit development (PUD) as outlined in title 16, 

chapter 16.08 of this code. However, with the exception of limited architectural 

elements, hotel projects may not request waivers to the mass and height 

specifications of subsection L9c of this section, building type 6 hotel. 

Conclusion The entitled hotel project has met the requirements for a hotel or received waivers 

through the PUD process.  None of the changes proposed affect the existing 

approvals.   ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010(I)(1)a 

 
Five-Story Hotel Site Designation Criteria: A property shall meet all of the 

following criteria to be designated as a five-story hotel site: 

Conclusion The entitled hotel project has met the requirements for a hotel or received waivers 

through the PUD process.  None of the changes proposed affect the existing 

approvals.   ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010(I)(2) Employee Housing: Hotel developments are required to mitigate employee 

housing impacts at a ratio of twenty five percent (25%) of the total number of 

employees calculated by the following formula: One employee per hotel room or 

bedroom. A development agreement or other similar tool shall be utilized to 

outline employee housing commitments. 

Conclusion The entitled hotel project has met the requirements for a hotel or received waivers 

through the PUD process.  The Third Amendment to the Development Agreement 

waives employee housing requirements if a building permit application is submitted 

by May 31, 2015.   ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010(I)(3) Employee Housing Plan: The applicant shall provide an employee housing plan 

which outlines the number of employees, income categories and other pertinent 

data. The employee housing plan shall be the basis of the applicant's proposal for 

the mix of employee housing which addresses the range of employees needed to 

serve the hotel. 

Conclusion The entitled hotel project has met the requirements for a hotel or received waivers 

through the PUD process.  The Third Amendment to the Development Agreement 

waives employee housing requirements if a building permit application is submitted 

by May 31, 2015.   
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Yes No N/A Standard 

Number 

City Standards and Conclusion ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010(I)(4) Alternate Means To Satisfy Square Footage: The city council may consider a 

request by the hotel developer to satisfy any required employee or community 

housing square footage by alternate means. Off site mitigation, payment of in lieu 

fees, land in lieu of units, or other considerations may be proposed by the hotel 

developer. Larger sites are encouraged to include employee and/or community 

housing on site. The city council has full discretionary power to deny said request. 

Conclusion The entitled hotel project has met the requirements for a hotel or received waivers 

through the PUD process.  The Third Amendment to the Development Agreement 

waives employee housing requirements if a building permit application is submitted 

by May 31, 2015.   ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010(I)(5) Development Agreement: Hotels shall enter into a development agreement with 

the city as part of the PUD approval process. Said development agreement may 

address the following subjects: community housing, hotel room uses and 

restrictions, public access on the property, alternatives and remedies if the hotel 

use ceases, and any other issue the planning and zoning commission or city council 

deems appropriate. Said development agreement shall follow the public hearing 

process as outlined in title 16, chapter 16.08 of this code. Said development 

agreement shall be subject to sections 17.154.060, "Enforcement", 

and 17.154.070, "Modification And Termination", of this title. 

Conclusion The entitled hotel project has a valid Development Agreement with the City.   ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.L. 9. 

Building Type 6, 

Hotel 

a. Applicable 

Subdistricts: A, B. 

b. Building Type 6 

Site Specifications 

 

A.  Main Street or an avenue. 

B.  Sidewalk. 

C.  Setback line: Minimum average setback of 5 feet from the front property line, 

except in subdistrict A, where no setback is required. Buildings fronting a 60 foot 

or narrower right of way shall be set back a minimum of 5 feet from the property 

line. Cantilevered decks and overhangs 8 feet or greater in height above the finish 

grade below, measured to the underside of the lowest structural element of the 

deck or eave, may extend to the property line. 

D.  Building zone: 60 to 100 percent of this area shall be occupied by 1 or more 

buildings. 

1.  The minimum building depth shall be 50 feet as measured from the front 

and rear property line, except a portion of the building may be built 

anywhere within 30 feet of the front property line. 

2.  Portions of this area not occupied by a building shall be occupied by 

courtyards, landscaping, hotel entryways, a porte-cochere, or other open 

space. 

3.  Storefronts, building entrances, and upper floor balconies may be recessed 

into the facade. 

E.  Pedestrian entrance: The main pedestrian entrance(s) shall be from Main 

Street or an avenue. 

F.  All ground floor uses that are intended to serve both hotel guests and the 

general public (such as a restaurant or retail store) shall have a pedestrian 

entrance directly from the street. 

G.  Multifunctional zone: This area may be occupied by buildings, usable open 

space, porte-cochere, loading and unloading zone, valet parking service area, and 

access to parking facilities. Garbage disposal facilities shall be located in the 

multifunctional zone. 

H.  Vehicle access points: Access to parking and loading and unloading facilities 

shall be provided by the alley, except where the development is on a whole city 

block, then vehicle access, including driveways to a porte-cochere, parking 

facilities, and loading and unloading zones may be from the side property lines. 

Conclusion The proposed exterior changes to the building do not include setback changes, 

orientation of the building to the street or parking and loading access. The portions 

of the site not occupied by building continue to contain hardscape, landscaping and 

porte cochere.  The current proposal has increased the depth of some balconies, 

serving to provide greater articulation of the facades.  Item D, Building zone was 

granted a waiver through the PUD process.  ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.L.9.c. A.  First floor ceiling height:  12 feet to 20 feet. 
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Yes No N/A Standard 

Number 

City Standards and Conclusion 

Building Type 6 

Mass And Height 

Specifications  

B.  Upper floor ceiling heights:  8 feet minimum and up to 80 percent of the height 

of first floor ceiling. 

C.  Minimum number of floors:  3. 

D.  Maximum number of floors:  4. 

1.  5 floors may be allowed in locations as designated by city council. 

2.  On streets and avenues the fourth floor and fifth floor shall be set back 

from the property line a minimum of 10 feet with an average of 15 feet. The 

average setback shall be calculated based on the built portion of the fourth 

and fifth floor facades and shall be calculated for each street or avenue 

elevation; the calculation of the average setback is not cumulative. In 

addition to the minimum and average setback requirement from the 

property line, the fourth and fifth floors shall be set back a minimum of 5 feet 

from the wall of the third floor. 

E.  Maximum building height: 

1.  Three-story hotel: 48 feet. 

2.  Four-story hotel: 58 feet. 

3.  Five-story hotel: 68 feet. 

4.  All buildings greater than 48 feet shall require final approval from the city 

council. 

5.  A stairway/elevator shaft providing access to a roof garden may exceed 

the maximum height by up to 10 feet, provided it is stepped back at least 20 

feet from the front and rear property line. 

F.  If the building is not set back from the sidewalk, then the entrance shall be at 

the grade of the sidewalk. If the building is set back from the sidewalk, then the 

entrance may be elevated above the sidewalk grade by up to 4 feet. 

G.  Third floors may be stepped back. 

H.  Building width: 55 feet minimum. 

Conclusion The entitled hotel received waivers for Items B and D.2:   

B. The proposed flat room eliminates the need for a waiver to the ceiling height limit 

on the 5
th

 floor.   

D.2.  Waivers to the required 4
th

 and 5
th

 floor setback requirements were granted 

through the PUD process.  The elimination of the clock tower on the 4
th

 and 5
th

 floors 

resulted in a decrease of about 256 sf per level.  That area has been added back in 

to residential units 9 and 11 on the 5
th

 floor, and the average setbacks on those 

floors has increased from the original approved design.   

E.3.  Building height has been reduced to 62.5 feet on Main Street and 65.5 feet on 

Washington Avenue with replacement of the originally proposed pitched roof with a 

flat roof. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.L.9.d. 

Building Type 6 

Roof Forms 

A.  Flat roof with parapet or cornice. 

B.  Hip roof. 

C.  Gabled roof. 

D.  Full mansard roof. 

E.  Dormers. 

F.  Shed roof: Only allowed where building step backs occur. 

G.  Appropriate combinations of the above roof forms. 

Conclusion The current proposal replaces the gabled roof with a flat roof with eaves and a low 

parapet. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.L.9.e. 

Building Type 6 

Facade 

Specifications 

A.  Building cap: The top of the building shall be defined by a cap, such as a cornice 

or eaves. The top floor of a four- or five-story hotel shall consist of a sloped roof 

form with dormer or gable end windows. 

B.  Upper floor facade window fenestration: 30 to 70 percent of each upper floor 

facade shall be occupied by windows or doors. 

C.  Ground floor facade window fenestration: 60 to 90 percent of each ground 

floor facade shall be occupied by transparent windows and doors. This 

specification does not apply to ground floor facades within the multifunctional 

zone. 

D.  Entry door: At least 1 entry door is required for each business with ground 

floor street frontage. 
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Yes No N/A Standard 

Number 

City Standards and Conclusion 

Conclusion 

 

A.   The proposed flat roof has eaves and a low parapet and lowers the building 

height by five (5) feet from the original proposal.  At their November 24, 2014 

workshop, the Commission indicated to the applicant that they preferred a flat roof 

over the former pitched roof because it reduced the height of the building and 

alleviated issues of snow sliding from the roof onto pedestrians.  KMC, Section 

17.64.010.C allows the Commission to grant waivers to Section 17.64.010.L, 

provided that:  

1.  The granting of an exception will not be detrimental to the public good. 

2.  The granting of an exception will not be detrimental to the health, safety, or 

general welfare of persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the 

proposed use. 

3.  The granting of the exception will not be detrimental or injurious to property 

or to the general welfare of the city. 

4.  The exception is to architectural design elements and is not an exception to 

other development standards such as building height, setbacks, floor area 

ratio; to any use requirements or restrictions; or to any life safety requirements. 

B & C.  Façade window fenestration has been modified slightly, but not appreciably; 

with the exception of additional fenestration at the southeast ground floor corner of 

the building to provide better visual interaction between the street front and the 

hotel lobby/dining area. 

D.  The hotel and sports shop continue to each be served by entrance doors. 

This standard may be met with an exception for a flat roof made by the 

Commission. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.L.9.f. 

Building Type 6 

Facade Elements 

A.  Awnings/marquees may project 3 feet to 6 feet from the facade. At major 

pedestrian entrances to the hotel, marquees may extend between 6 feet and up 

to 2/3 the distance between the front facade and the curb line of the sidewalk. 

Supporting posts are permitted at these entrances. 

B.  Porte cocheres may project up to 32 feet from the facade. They are not allowed 

to project over the public sidewalk. 

C.  Balconies/decks may project 3 feet to 6 feet from the facade. 

D.  Colonnades (supporting either a shed roof or balcony/deck) may project from 5 

feet to 6 feet from the facade. Supporting posts shall have a square width or 

diameter of 6 inches to 12 inches. 

E  Vertical clearance: 8 feet minimum. 

F.  Clearance from inside of post/column to facade: 5 feet minimum. 

G.  Prohibited facade elements include external chimneys, external staircases, 

window security bars, and security roll up doors are prohibited on facades that 

front a street, avenue, park, and/or plaza. 

Conclusion A.  The depth requirement for marquees was waived through the original PUD 

process.   

B.  The current porte cochere has the same dimensions as the original. 

C – G.  Façade elements have not changed. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.010.L.9.g. 

Building Type 6 Use 

Specifications 

 

A.  Upper floor with street frontage: Accommodation, retail trade and retail 

service uses as permitted by subsection D, table 1 of this section. Parking is 

prohibited. 

B.  Ground floor with street frontage: Active uses shall occur on the street 

frontage of ground floors within the building zone (refer to site specifications). 

Active uses include, but are not limited to, lobby space, guest registration, 

restaurants, bars, business center, workout facilities, conference facilities, office 

space and retail stores. This specification does not apply to ground floor uses 

within multifunctional zone (refer to site specifications, subsection L9b of this 

section). 

C.  Floors without street frontage: Accommodation, retail trade and retail service, 

and residential uses as permitted by subsection D, table 1 of this section. 

Structured parking is permitted. 

D.  Basement: Parking, storage, and accessory uses associated with ground floor 

and upper floor principal building uses are permitted. A minimum of 50 square 

feet of storage space is required for each community housing unit within a 

72 of 103



Limelight Hotel (Bald Mountain Lodge), Community Core Design Review Modification Findings of Fact        Page 10 of 20 

March 9, 2015 

City of Ketchum Planning & Building Department 

Yes No N/A Standard 

Number 

City Standards and Conclusion 

building. 

E.  Street frontage. 

F.  Depth for street frontage uses: Minimum 20 feet. 

G.  Private outdoor space: All residential uses shall have a private outdoor space 

(such as a deck, balcony, or private porch). The area of each private outdoor space 

shall be at least 50 square feet, with no dimension less than 6 feet. 

H.  Roof gardens (private and public) are allowed. 

I.  Utility meters, garbage disposal areas, surface parking lots, and loading and 

unloading facilities shall be located to the rear of the building. Utility meters are 

allowed in the setback zone if they are enclosed within a utility box. 

Conclusion The current proposed uses have not changed from the original design. 

 

 

 

DESIGN REGULATIONS: 17.64.020 
 

Compliant Standards and Conclusion 
 

Yes No N/A Standard 

Number 

City Standards and Conclusion ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.E.1.    

All Building 

Facades 

 

a.  Facades shall be designed with both solid surfaces and window openings to 

avoid the creation of blank walls and glass curtain walls. Blank walls on all facades 

that front a park, street, avenue, alley, plaza, or other public spaces are 

prohibited. 

b.  On all facades, a clear visual distinction between each floor shall be provided. 

c.  Stairways shall have a design that is compatible with overall structure. Stairs 

shall not have a tacked on appearance or look like their design was an addition or 

afterthought. 

d.  All sides of the facade shall be designed with similar architectural elements, 

materials, and colors as the front facade. However, the design of side and rear 

facades may be simpler, more casual, and more utilitarian in nature. 

e.  If a portion of an existing building is modified, it shall use the same building 

materials, details, and color applications as the rest of the building. For example, if 

a portion of a brick facade with wood framed windows and doors is modified, the 

modified portion of the facade shall use bricks, details, and wood frame windows 

and doors that are compatible with the other parts of the building. 

f.  Additions to existing buildings shall be designed with a style, materials, colors, 

and details that are compatible with the existing structure. 

Conclusion The current proposal continues to utilize both solid surfaces and window openings, 

avoids blank walls and glass curtain walls, provides a clear visual distinction 

between floors and utilizes similar architectural elements, materials and colors on all 

facades.  No exterior stairways are proposed on the building.  There is no existing 

building on the site, and no addition is proposed. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.F.1. 

Mixed Use/Hotel 

Building Facades 

 

a.  Front building facades, as well as all facades that front a plaza or pedestrian 

walkway, shall be designed with: 

(1) Ground floor storefront windows and doors that utilize clear transparent 

glass in order to provide clear views of storefront displays from the street 

and/or to allow natural surveillance of the street and adjacent outdoor 

spaces. Mirror and tinted glass, including solar bronze and interior film, is 

prohibited. 

(2) Upper floor window openings that have a vertical orientation and 

proportion. Mirror and tinted glass is prohibited on upper floor facades. 

b.  Elements of traditional "main street" storefronts shall be used in the facades of 

traditional mixed use buildings. These elements include recessed entry door(s), 

display windows, the kickplate or bulkhead, transom windows, cornice and 

pediment. 

Conclusion Storefront windows and doors with clear glass are utilized at the ground floor level.  

Upper floor windows have a vertical orientation.  Traditional “main street” elements 
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Yes No N/A Standard 

Number 

City Standards and Conclusion 

are used, including transom windows, recessed entry doors and display windows. ☐ ☐ ☒ 17.64.020.G.1 

Multi-Family Home 

And Urban 

Residential Building 

Facades 

None. 

Conclusion None. ☐ ☐ ☒ 17.64.020.H. 

Historic Buildings 
None. 

Conclusion None. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.I. 1. 

Roofs 
a.  Roofing forms and materials shall be compatible with the overall style and 

character of the structure. Reflective materials are prohibited. 

b.  A relatively consistent roof design (including overhangs, pitch, fascia, materials 

and eaves) shall be provided on all sides of the building. 

c.  All roofs shall be designed with snow clips, gutters, and downspouts to prevent 

water damage and stains on building facades, and to protect pedestrians and 

adjoining properties from dripping water and sliding snow. 

d.  Mechanical equipment on roofs shall be screened from public view from all 

sidewalks, plazas, parks, public spaces, and pedestrian walkways. 

e.  Roof overhangs, such as cornices, and eaves, may extend out from the facade 

of the building. However, roof overhangs shall not extend over a neighboring 

parcel or more than three feet (3') over a public sidewalk. 

Conclusion 

 

The currently proposed flat roof reinforces the horizontal lines of the facades.  It will 

be equipped with internal drains, resulting in no issues from dripping water or 

sliding snow.  Roof overhangs do not extend over neighboring parcels or project 

more than three (3) feet over the public sidewalk.  The current application shows 

rooftop mechanical screening provided by a screening structure intended to house 

elevator overruns and rooftop mechanical units.  The original Design Review 

condition of approval #8 addressed this by requiring that a detailed mechanical 

screening plan shall be submitted for review by the Design Review Subcommittee 

prior to building permit approval.  Staff recommends that condition be made a part 

of the current approval. 

This standard may be met with condition of approval #8. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.J.1. 

Awnings And 

Marquees 

The following standards apply to projecting awnings and marquees: 

a.  The valance, or front face, of an awning shall not exceed eighteen inches (18") 

in height. 

b.  Awnings and marquees shall not obscure views into storefront display windows 

or cover architectural expression lines or details. 

c.  Awnings may have signs (refer to sign ordinance). 

d.  High gloss or plastic materials are prohibited. 

Conclusion The flat roof above the outdoor dining area at the southeast corner of the building 

does not obscure views into the lobby/restaurant and contributes to the horizontal 

design of the facades.  No awnings are proposed. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.K.1.  

Balconies 

 

The following standards apply to projecting balconies: 

a. Balconies may be open or covered with a roof or upper story balcony. 

b. The distance between roof supporting columns, piers, or posts on balconies 

shall not exceed their height. 

Conclusion The design contains many balconies, some covered and some not.  All are 

cantilevered, so no posts are proposed. ☐ ☐ ☒ 17.64.020.L.1. 

Colonnades 

 

The following standards apply to projecting colonnades: 

a.  Colonnades may be covered with a roof or a balcony. An enclosed habitable 

space may occur above the colonnade, as long as it does not occur over the public 

sidewalk. 

b.  Supporting columns and posts shall be spaced and sized so that they do not 

block views of storefront windows from the street. 

Conclusion No colonnades are proposed. ☐ ☐ ☒ 17.64.020.M.1.  

Bay Windows 
None. 
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Conclusion None. ☐ ☐ ☒ 17.64.020.N.1. 

Front 

Porches/Stoops  

 

The following standards apply to front porches and stoops: 

a.  Front porches and stoops may be covered with a roof, a balcony, or an enclosed 

habitable space. However, an enclosed habitable space may not occur within the 

setback zone. 

b.  Front porches and stoops shall not be enclosed on the ground floor by 

permanent or temporary walls, windows, window screens, or plastic or fabric 

materials. 

c.  The raised platform of a front porch (not including stairways) shall be at least 

fifty (50) square feet in size with no one dimension less than six feet (6') in length. 

d.  The raised platform of a stoop (not including stairways) shall be at least twenty 

five (25) square feet in size with no dimension less than five feet (5') in length. 

Conclusion No front porches or stoops are proposed. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.O.1. 

Public Open Space 
a.  Public open spaces shall be designed to enhance the site and/or building as a 

place for pedestrians and shall include the following: 

(1)  Trash receptacles. 

(2)  A combination of landscaping and paved surfaces. 

(3)  Pedestrian scaled lighting. 

(4)  Amenities or features that encourage people to gather. Such features 

include (but are not limited to) outdoor seating, spas/hot tubs, pools, 

barbecue facilities, outdoor fireplaces, public art, fountains, kiosks, planters, 

and outdoor dining areas. 

b.  Public open spaces shall be usable throughout the year. These spaces shall 

either be heated for snow removal or maintained to remove snow during the 

winter months. 

Conclusion The current proposal offers public open space facing Washington Avenue in the form 

of a plaza with two (2) flights of stairs down to the sidewalk, a concrete bench, 

public art and a mix of hardscape and landscaping.  In addition, two (2) fire pit areas 

are proposed to encourage gatherings. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.P.1. 

Service Areas 

 

a.  Trash disposal areas and shipping and receiving areas shall be located within 

parking garages or to the rear of buildings. Trash disposal areas shall not be 

located within the public right of way and shall be screened from public views 

from streets, avenues, alleys, pedestrian walkways, sidewalks, plazas, and public 

spaces. Trash disposal areas with appropriately designed enclosures or screens 

may be allowed within rear parking lots, but in no case shall the disposal area be 

allowed along the street frontage. 

b.  Trash disposal areas shall be screened from public views from all sidewalks, 

streets, plazas, and public spaces. Trash enclosures shall be used to store outdoor 

garbage containers or dumpsters. 

c.  Garbage containers or dumpsters shall be kept in enclosures at all times, except 

when being emptied. 

d.  Trash enclosures shall be maintained and the surrounding area kept free of 

debris. 

e.  The location of trash enclosures shall not interfere with vehicular and 

pedestrian access and movement. 

f.  The number of trash receptacles per unit shall be provided based on formulas 

provided by trash disposal companies. 

Conclusion The service dock remains in the same location as in the original design with room for 

two (2) service trucks, dumpsters and recycling bins. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.Q.1. 

Mechanical And 

Electrical 

Equipment 

 

1.  The following shall not be located within the public right of way and shall be 

screened from public views from streets, pedestrian walkways, sidewalks, plazas, 

and public spaces: 

a.  Electric and water utility meters. 

b.  Power transformers and sectors. 

c.  Heating/ventilation/cooling equipment. 

d.  Irrigation and pool pumps. 

e.  Satellite dishes greater than eighteen inches (18") in diameter. 

f.  Antennas. 
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g.  Rooftop mechanical equipment. 

h.  Other mechanical equipment. 

2.  Appropriate methods of screening include fencing, landscaping, roof parapets, 

and equipment enclosures. The design of screening devices shall be compatible 

with the main structure and conform to other sections of this code. Noise levels of 

mechanical equipment shall be minimized. All utility and communication lines 

serving the site shall be underground. 

Conclusion 

 

The current application shows rooftop mechanical screening provided by a screening 

structure intended to house elevator overruns and rooftop mechanical units.  The 

original Design Review condition of approval #8 addressed this by requiring that a 

detailed mechanical screening plan shall be submitted for review by the Design 

Review Subcommittee prior to building permit approval.  Staff recommends that 

condition be made a part of the current approval. 

This standard may be met with condition of approval #8. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.R.1. 

Landscaping: The 

regulations and 

guidelines in this 

subsection apply to 

private property, 

including parking 

lots. Regulations 

and guidelines for 

the landscaping of 

streets are 

provided in 

subsection X, 

"Streets And 

Streetscapes", of 

this section. 

 

a.  The following areas shall be landscaped and regularly maintained to be free of 

weeds, overgrown vegetation, and litter: 

(1)  Unpaved portions of the site visible from public streets, sidewalks, plazas, 

parks, and other public spaces. 

(2)  Common outdoor areas within any development. 

(3)  Private and public surface parking lots. 

b. Landscaping treatments shall include a combination of trees, grasses, shrubs, 

flowering plants, and flowers. 

c.  All landscaped areas shall be irrigated with automatic drip irrigation systems 

that do not produce overspray on surfaces outside the planting area. 

d.  All new trees planted in the community core district shall be species that are 

recommended and approved by the city arborist. All new trees shall have a caliper 

size of three inches (3") measured twelve inches (12") from the ground. If the 

species is not available in this size, a caliper of two and one-half inches (21/2"), 

measured twelve inches (12") from the ground, will be acceptable. Evergreen 

trees shall be at least eight feet (8') tall when planted. All trees shall have a 

minimum height of fourteen feet (14') when fully grown. 

e.  In order to provide adequate pedestrian clearance, trees shall be pruned 

regularly so that there is at least seven feet (7') of vertical clearance between the 

lowest branches of the tree and the grade of the adjacent sidewalk or pedestrian 

walkway. They shall also be pruned to maintain the health, vigor, and natural 

shape of the tree, and to maintain vehicular clearance and sight lines. 

f.  All trees shall have an adequately sized planting area. The size of the planting 

area shall be based on the amount of room needed for tree roots. Root barriers 

shall be used when trees are planted near pedestrian walkways and sidewalks. 

g.  Shrubs shall have a minimum five (5) gallon container size. 

h. An exception to a development specification or design regulation (such as the 

built to line specification) is allowed if the exception will protect and preserve an 

established, healthy, and mature tree on the site. In cases where such a tree is 

protected and preserved, the exception to the development specification or 

design regulations shall be granted with verification of the city arborist and shall 

not require approval by the planning and zoning commission or city council. When 

proposed underground parking prohibits the preservation of mature and healthy 

trees, an assessment of alternatives shall be made by the planning department, 

city engineer, city arborist and the applicant. Such an assessment will include 

consideration of a parking demand plan. 

i.  When a healthy and mature tree is removed from a site, it shall be replaced 

with a new tree. Replacement trees may occur on or off site. 

j.  All landscaping shall be maintained in a healthy and attractive state and shall be 

watered, weeded, generally maintained, and replaced (if necessary) by the 

property owner/property manager. 

k.  Trees that are placed within a courtyard, plaza, or pedestrian walkway shall be 

placed within tree wells that are covered by tree grates. 

l.  The city arborist shall approve all parking lot trees. Trees that do not drop heavy 
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cones, sap, fruit, and seedlings shall be selected to minimize potential damage to 

cars in the parking lot. 

m.  All surface parking lots shall be designed with the following landscaping 

features: 

(1)  The use of porous or pervious surfaces in the parking lot design. These 

surfaces reduce the volume and rate of storm water runoff and can add to 

the visual character of the parking lot. 

(2)  Landscaped planters shall be located between public sidewalks and 

parking lots. Landscaped planters shall be at least five feet (5') wide and shall 

be planted with a combination of shrubs, trees, and flowering plants. Planter 

walls shall be limited to a height of twenty four inches (24"). 

(3)  Trees may be planted in landscaped planters, tree wells in pedestrian 

walkways, and/or diamond shaped planter boxes located between parking 

rows. Diamond shaped planter boxes and tree wells shall be at least five feet 

(5') square. Tree gates and root guards shall be required for trees planted 

within pedestrian walkways. 

(4)  Ground cover, low lying shrubs, and trees shall be planted within the 

planters and planter boxes. Tree grates or landscaping may be used in tree 

wells located within pedestrian walkways. 

Conclusion 

 

The proposed landscaping includes trees with grates or planters and a mix of 

hardscape and landscaping.  Specific species are not called out, and the plans are 

not entirely consistent.  Staff recommends that original Design Review condition of 

approval #7 shall continue to apply and that the Design Review Subcommittee shall 

review and approve the final landscape design with the City Arborist.  

This standard may be met with condition of approval #7.  ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.S.1. 

Fences, Walls And 

Gates 

 

a.  The design of fences and walls shall be compatible with the architecture of the 

building. 

b.  Entrance arbors are allowed on fences/walls. 

c. Fences and walls shall have an articulated design. Articulation can be created by 

having regularly spaced posts, changing the height of the fence/wall, and by using 

different building materials at the base, posts, or the cap of the fence/wall. Flat 

walls, chain link fences, and barbed wire fences are prohibited. 

d.  The maximum fence and wall height is four feet (4') within thirty feet (30') of 

the front property line and six feet (6') beyond thirty feet (30') of the front 

property line. 

Conclusion 

 

Fences and walls are proposed to enclose the swimming pool and fire pit areas on 

the Washington Avenue and River Street side of the project.  The applicant has 

stated that they will meet the height requirements but that a final design for the 

fence/wall elements has not been completed.  As condition of approval #8, prior to 

building permit approval, detailed fence and wall designs shall be submitted for 

review and approval by the Design Review Subcommittee. 

This standard may be met with condition of approval #8. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.T.1. 

Site Lighting 
a.  The following areas shall be illuminated at night to ensure the safety of users 

and to minimize opportunities for crime. Illumination shall conform to the city of 

Ketchum dark sky ordinance. 

(1)  Intersection of streets. 

(2)  Intersection of alleys and streets. 

(3)  Surface parking lots. 

(4)  Parking structures, including access points, elevators and stairwells. 

(5)  Pedestrian walkways and paths. 

(6)  Plazas. 

(7)  Sidewalks. 

(8)  Automated teller machines (ATMs). 

(9)  All entrances to buildings, including rear and service entrances. 

(10)  Garbage disposal areas. 

(11)  Alleys. 

(12)  Other areas that are routinely used by pedestrians. 

b.  Site, building, and sign lighting shall be located and directed to light the 
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intended area of illumination and to prevent off site glare impacts on adjacent 

buildings or properties. 

Conclusion 

 

The current application does not address exterior lighting.  The original Design 

Review condition of approval #8 addressed this by requiring that a final lighting plan 

be submitted for review by the Design Review Subcommittee prior to building permit 

approval.  Staff recommends that condition be made a part of the current approval. 

This standard may be met with condition of approval #8. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.U.1. 

Plazas, Pedestrian 

Walkways And 

Courtyards 

a.  All plazas, pedestrian walkways, and courtyards shall be designed with an 

ornamental surface that is differentiated from the sidewalk and asphalt streets 

and parking lots. Appropriate types of ornamental paving include: 

(1)  Natural stone. 

(2)  Turf block. 

(3)  Brick. 

(4)  Concrete unit pavers. 

(5)  Concrete with special textures, colors, and patterns. 

b.  At least two (2) sides of a plaza or courtyard shall be defined by building 

facades with active ground floor uses (such as restaurants, retail stores, cafes, 

bars, etc.). Edges that are not defined by building facades shall be defined with 

landscaping features, such as trees, low planters, seating, a pergola with vines, or 

sculptures. 

c.  All plazas and courtyards shall be designed with pedestrian amenities, such as 

seating, outdoor dining tables with umbrellas, winter ice rinks, planters, trees, 

vine covered pergolas, pedestrian scaled lighting, public artwork, outdoor 

fireplaces, and fountains. 

d.  Plazas shall be illuminated from dusk to dawn. A combination of overhead 

lighting and lighted bollards shall be used. 

e.  Plazas, pedestrian walkways, and courtyards that are paved shall be kept clear 

of snow and ice to ensure that the space is usable throughout the year. 
Conclusion 

 

The proposed plaza at the rear of the building contains hardscape and landscaping 

elements, seating, fire pit areas and public art and is contained on two (2) sides by 

the hotel building.  As noted in item R above, the landscape design is not fully 

developed.  Staff recommends that original Design Review condition of approval #7 

shall continue to apply and that the Design Review Subcommittee shall review and 

approve the final landscape design with the City Arborist.   

This standard may be met with condition of approval #7. ☐ ☐ ☒ 17.64.020.V. 1. 

Parks 

 

 

a.  Park improvements shall be designed to preserve mature trees, natural 

topographic features, rock outcroppings, and riparian and floodplain features. 

b.  All parks shall be designed with pedestrian amenities, such as shaded trails and 

paths, seating areas, picnic tables, barbecue areas, planters, trees, vine covered 

pergolas, gazebos, drinking fountains, pedestrian scaled lighting, public artwork, 

and fountains. 

c.  Parks shall be visible from streets, sidewalks, and adjacent uses to facilitate 

informal surveillance of the park and to increase safety and security. Edge 

treatments such as landscaping and fencing shall not block public views into the 

park. Parks shall not be isolated or walled off from the surrounding community. 

d.  Lighting shall be provided for pedestrian paths, parking lots, restrooms, picnic 

areas, gazebos, and other structures within parks. Lighting shall be located and 

directed to control off site glare. 

e.  Parks shall be designed with a combination of shaded areas to create cool areas 

during warm summer months and open space for solar access during the colder 

months. Canopy trees, trellises, gazebos, and/or other structures shall be provided 

to shade pedestrian paths, picnic areas, outdoor seating areas, and playgrounds. 

Conclusion No parks are proposed within the project. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.W.1. 

Bicycle Parking 
a.  

(1) All developments within downtown are required to have bicycle parking. 

The minimum number of bicycle racks shall be determined by whichever of the 

following is greater: 

(A)  Two (2) bicycle racks per use or business. 
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(B)  A number of bicycle racks that equals twenty percent (20%) of the 

required auto parking. 

(C)  Two (2) bicycle racks per lot. 

(2)  Schools are required to provide a minimum of one bicycle rack per ten (10) 

students or ten percent (10%) of required auto parking, whichever is greater. 

Recreation uses are required to provide a minimum of five (5) bicycle racks or 

ten percent (10%) of required auto parking, whichever is greater. 

b.  A single bicycle rack shall meet the following criteria: 

(1)  Support the bicycle upright by its frame in two (2) places. 

(2)  Prevent the wheel of the bicycle from tipping over. 

(3)  A U-lock should be able to lock the front wheel and the down tube of an 

upright bicycle or lock the rear wheel and seat tube of the bicycle. 

c.  Two (2) or more single racks may be mounted in a row on a common base or 

attached in a row to a frame. 

d.  Inverted "U" racks mounted in a row should be placed thirty inches (30") apart 

(on center) allowing enough room for two (2) bicycles to be secured to each rack 

and providing easy access to each bicycle. 

e.  The rack should be anchored so that it cannot be stolen with the bikes 

attached. Racks that are large and heavy enough such that the rack cannot be 

easily moved or lifted with the bicycles attached do not have to be anchored. 

f.  Bicycle racks may be placed on private property and public sidewalks. In both 

cases, the racks shall not be placed so that they block the entrance or inhibit 

pedestrian flow in or out of the building. If placed on a sidewalk or pedestrian 

walkway, they should be placed so that at least five feet (5') of sidewalk width is 

maintained. 

g.  Where multiple racks are installed in rows with aisles separating the rows, the 

following dimensions apply: 

(1)  Minimum aisle width should be forty eight inches (48"). The aisle is 

measured from tip to tip of bike tires across the space between racks. 

(2)  Minimum depth should be seventy two inches (72") for each row of 

parked bicycles. 

(3)  Areas with a high turnover rate should have a minimum aisle width of 

seventy two inches (72") and should have more than one entrance. 

h.  Racks shall be mounted within fifty feet (50') of the entrance it serves, or as 

close as the nearest car parking space, whichever is closer. 

i.  Racks shall be clearly visible from the entrance it serves. 

Conclusion 

 

The current design contains a 680 sf room dedicated to ski and bicycle storage, but 

does not indicate bicycle rack locations.  In the original Design Review approval, it 

was noted that a total of 23 bicycle racks would be required based on the total 

parking requirement.  However, locations of those racks had not been determined, 

and, per condition of approval #8, it was required that a final detailed bicycle rack 

plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Design Review Subcommittee prior to 

building permit approval.  Staff recommends that original condition of approval #8 

shall continue to apply. 

This standard may be met with condition of approval #8. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.X.1. 

Streets And 

Streetscapes 

 

a.  Streetscape improvements shall be designed in compliance with the city 

approved cross sections for downtown streets. 

b.  On street parallel parking spaces shall have a dimension of eight feet by twenty 

feet (8' x 20') (for non-ADA accessible spaces). On street angled parking spaces 

shall be provided at a forty five (45) to sixty degree (60°) angle. Angled parking 

spaces shall have a depth of eighteen feet (18') (as measured perpendicular from 

the curb face), and a width of nine feet (9') (as measured perpendicular to the 

stripes of the parking stall). A minimum distance of twenty feet (20') is required 

from the crosswalk or stop sign line to the first parking space. 

c.  The sidewalk radius at street intersections shall be minimized to shorten the 

length of pedestrian crossings and to prevent vehicles from making turns at high 

speeds. The city of Ketchum streets department and fire department shall 

determine the minimum sidewalk radius when designing streetscape 
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improvement plans. 

d.  All streetlight fixtures, traffic signals, traffic and directional signs, pedestrian 

wayfinding signs, parking signs, bicycle racks, parking meters, and fire hydrants 

shall be located within one to three feet (3') of the curb face. 

e.  All streets shall be designed with streetlights. Streetlights shall be provided 

along all sidewalks at spacing intervals not to exceed sixty feet (60'). 

f.  Streetscape furniture and amenities shall be located to maintain a clear 

pedestrian path of at least five feet (5') in width. 

g.  If permitted, tables, chairs, and other obstructions used for sidewalk dining 

shall be located to maintain at least five feet (5') of unobstructed sidewalk width. 

h.  All streetlights, streetscape furniture, and amenities shall be consistent with a 

city approved list of approved furniture. 

i.  Streetlights shall be scaled to pedestrians and shall be no taller than fourteen 

feet (14'). 

j.  Streetlights shall be equipped with hardware to allow flowerpots and banners 

to hang from the streetlight. At least seven feet (7') of vertical clearance shall be 

provided from the sidewalk to the bottom of the flowerpot or banner. 

k.  Community organizations are allowed to hang banners from public streetlights 

with the approval of a sidewalk use permit. The planning director shall approve all 

banners that are hung from public streetlights. The Ketchum streets department 

shall be responsible for hanging all streetlight banners. The city reserves the right 

to charge a fee for the banners. 

l.  All new public sidewalks shall be heated to facilitate the removal of snow. 

m.  All sidewalks shall be constructed of concrete pavers. Special paving features 

may be allowed on the sidewalks of unique streets within the downtown, such as 

Fourth Street and First Avenue. 

n.  The project applicant shall be required to pay for new sidewalk, curbs, and 

gutters within the public right of way adjacent to the project site when the value 

of construction exceeds twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00). 

o.  Root guards shall be installed for each street tree to minimize damage to the 

sidewalk. 

p.  All street trees shall be irrigated with automatic drip irrigation systems that do 

not produce overspray on the sidewalk. 

q.  All new trees shall have a caliper size of three inches (3") measured twelve 

inches (12") from the ground. If the species is not available in this size, a caliper of 

two and one-half inches (21/2"), measured twelve inches (12") from the ground, 

will be acceptable. Evergreen trees shall be at least eight feet (8') tall when 

planted. All trees shall have a minimum height of fourteen feet (14') when fully 

grown. 

r.  In order to provide adequate pedestrian clearance, trees shall be pruned 

regularly so that there is at least seven feet (7') of vertical clearance between the 

lowest branches of the tree and the grade of the adjacent sidewalk or pedestrian 

walkway. They shall also be pruned to maintain the health, vigor, and natural 

shape of the tree, and to maintain vehicular clearance and sight lines. 

s.  All trees shall have an adequately sized planting area. The size of the planting 

area shall be based on the amount of room needed for tree roots. Root barriers 

shall be used when trees are planted near pedestrian walkways and sidewalks. 

t.  All street trees planted in the community core district shall be species that are 

recommended and approved by the city arborist. 

Conclusion 

 

Twelve (12) on street parallel parking spaces are currently proposed.  The proposed 

street landscaping includes trees with grates.  Specific species are not called out, 

and the plans are not entirely consistent.  Staff recommends that original Design 

Review condition of approval #7 shall continue to apply and that the Design Review 

Subcommittee shall review and approve the final landscape design with the City 

Arborist.   

This standard may be met with condition of approval #7. ☒ ☐ ☐ 17.64.020.Y.1. 

Signage Plans 
a.  Exposed support structures for signs, including, but not limited to, posts, poles 

and sign sides or edges, must be faced or covered with wood, stone or metal 
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which is corrosion resistant, painted or anodized, or such other material as may be 

approved by the city as a reasonable, natural textured substitute. 

b.  All freestanding signs shall have landscaping around the base of the support 

structure in order to provide a transition from the ground to the sign. 

c.  All materials should prevent reflective glare. 

d.  Simple and easy to read typefaces should be used on signs. Hard to read and 

overly intricate typefaces should be avoided. 

e.  Signs that have symbols, characters, or graphics are encouraged. The symbol, 

character, or graphic should relate to the products sold in the business or to the 

name of the business. 

f.  Signs that show depth and cast shadows are encouraged. Depth and shadows 

can be created by mounting individually cut letters and symbols on the sign base 

or carving letters and symbols into the base of the sign. 

g.  Projecting signs are preferred over portable or sandwich board signs. Projecting 

signs generally are more effective for increasing visibility to both pedestrians and 

motorists. 

h.  Sign materials and colors should complement the building facade. Basic and 

simple color applications are encouraged and vibrant colors should be avoided. 

i.  The color of letters and symbols should contrast the base or background color of 

the sign to maximize readability. 

j.  Signs shall not cover or obscure windows, doors, storefronts, building entrances, 

eaves, cornices, columns, horizontal expression lines, or other architectural 

elements or details. 

k.  Signage on buildings with multiple tenants shall be limited to prevent sign 

clutter. Individual signs for tenants with ground floor storefront entrances are 

permitted. A directory sign with the names and suite numbers of all tenants 

without a ground floor storefront entrance may be provided at the lobby entrance 

for those tenants. 

l.  An address marker shall be provided at the main entrance to all buildings.  

Conclusion 

 

The original Design Review condition of approval #8 contained a provision that, prior 

to building permit approval, a Master Sign Plan, including circulation, shall be 

submitted for review and approval by the Design Review Subcommittee.  Staff 

recommends that original condition of approval #8 shall continue to apply. 

This standard may be met with condition of approval #8. 

 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 

1. The City of Ketchum is a municipal corporation organized under Article XII of the Idaho 

Constitution and the laws of the State of Idaho, Title 50, Idaho Code. 

 

2. Under Chapter 65, Title 67 of the Idaho Code, the City has passed a land use and zoning 

code, Title 17. 

 

3. The Commission has authority to hear the applicant’s Design Review Modification 

Application pursuant to Chapter 17.64 and 17.96 of Ketchum Code Title 17. 

 

4. The City of Ketchum Planning Department provided adequate notice for the review of 

this application. 

 

5. The project meets the standards of approval under Chapter 17.64 and 17.96 of Zoning 

Code Title 17. 
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DECISION 

 

THEREFORE, the Ketchum Planning and Zoning Commission approves this Design Review 

Modification application this Monday, February 23, 2015, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Ketchum City Engineer, Utilities, Street, Fire and Building Department requirements shall be 

met through the building permit approval; 

2. Design Review approval shall expire according to the requirements set forth in the PUD 

Development Agreement for the project; 

3. All Design Review elements as depicted in the Design Review Modification plans dated February 

9, 2015, and as required through the conditions of approval shall be completed prior to final 

inspection/occupancy; 

4. This Design Review approval is based on the plans dated February 9, 2015, and information 

presented and approved at the meeting on the date noted herein.  Building Permit plans must 

conform to the approved Design Review plans unless otherwise approved in writing by the 

Commission or the Director of the Planning and Building Department.  Any building or site 

discrepancies which do not conform to the approved plans or conditions of approval will be 

subject to removal; 

5. This Design Review approval is subject to the Planned Unit Development and Development 

Agreement approvals for Bald Mountain Lodge, LLC;   

6. Prior to issuance of a building permit the applicant shall receive a right of way encroachment 

agreement from the City for all right of way encroachments associated with the project;  

7. A Design Review Subcommittee consisting of two Commissioners and the Director of the 

Planning and Building Department shall review and approve the following building elements 

prior to building permit approval: 

a) Final composition of materials including placement of stucco, cor-ten, steel and wood 

siding; 

b) Final lighting plan - All proposed outdoor lighting, including all balcony, façade and 

terrace lighting shall be detailed in the building permit plans and shall be dark sky 

compliant;   

c) Final bicycle rack plan - Bicycle racks shall meet all requirements of Chapter 17.64 of the 

Ketchum Zoning Code and shall be installed prior to certificate of occupancy. The final 

number of required bike racks shall be determined by the Subcommittee.  Washington 

Avenue shall be prioritized with regard to bike rack placement; 

d) Location and screening of utility meters, transformers, pedestals and traffic light 

equipment.  Plans will need to illustrate how this equipment is screened from public 

view; 

e) Prior to building permit approval the applicant shall submit a detailed plan illustrating 

how rooftop mechanical equipment will be screened and how rooftop snow retention 

and drainage will be achieved and to ensure protection of public pathways, sidewalks 

and other public areas.  Height of mechanical screening shall be limited to minimum 

necessary to provide adequate screening;  
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f) Prior to building permit approval, detailed fence and wall designs shall be submitted for 

review and approval by the Design Review Subcommittee; and  

g) Master Sign Plan including circulation prior to building permit approval; 

 

8. The Design Review Subcommittee and the City Arborist shall review and approve all landscaping 

within the public Right of Way and within the resort prior to building permit approval.  This shall 

include review and approval of tree grates, guards, species and caliper sizes; 

 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit civil engineered street and 

sidewalk design drawings, showing grading, drainage and details, for review and approval by the 

Public Works Director; 

 

10. The Commission approves the proposed flat roof design and grants an exception to Ketchum 

municipal Code (KMC) Section 17.64.010.L.9.e. Building Type 6 Facade Specifications, A.  

Building cap, finding that the flat roof accomplishes a lower building height and solves roof run-

off and snow sliding issues; 

 

11. The Commission approves the proposed single roof access and grants an exception to KMC 

Section 17.64.010.L.9.c. Building Type 6 Mass and Height Specifications, E.5.  Roof access to a 

roof garden, finding that the roof access is necessary to serve the roof top mechanical units; 

and 

 

12. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit civil engineered on-site 

drainage plans for review and approval by the Design Review Subcommittee. 

  

Findings of Fact adopted this 9th day of March, 2015.      

       

             

      _______________________________  

      Steve Cook, Vice Chair 

      Planning and Zoning Commission 

STATE OF IDAHO  ) 

    ) ss. 

County of Blaine  ) 

 

 On this 9th day of March, 2015, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for 

said State, personally appeared Steve Cook, known or identified to me to be the person whose 

name is subscribed to the within instrument. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

 

 

_______________________  

Notary Public for Idaho 

Residing at: Blaine County 

Commission Expires: November 5, 2019 
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IN RE:     ) 
     ) 
Lift Tower Lodge   ) 
Conditional Use Permit   ) 
     ) 
File Number: 15-006   ) 

 
KETCHUM PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION - 
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 
DECISION 

 
 

BACKGROUND FACTS 
 
PROJECT:  Lift Tower Lodge Conditional Use Permit 
 
FILE NUMBERS:  15-006  
 
OWNER: Lift Tower Lodge, LLC or Blaine County Housing Authority (depending on timing)  
 
REQUEST: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a public use 
 
LOCATION: 703 South Main Street (Taxlot 7983) 
 
ZONING:  Tourist (T) and Recreational Use (RU) Zoning Districts 
 
NOTICE: Property owners within 300 foot radius of subject property and all properties 

on the Gem Streets were mailed notice on February 2, 2015.  A public hearing 
notice was published in the Legal Notices of the Idaho Mountain Express on 
February 4, 2015, and a display ad was published in the Idaho Mountain Express 
on February 11, 2015.  A public hearing notice was posted on the site on 
February 16, 2015. 

 
REVIEWER:  Rebecca F. Bundy, Senior Planner / Building and Development Manager 
 
Regulatory Taking Notice:  Applicant has the right, pursuant to section 67-8003, Idaho Code, to 
request a regulatory taking analysis. 

 
GENERAL FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Lift Tower Lodge has been gifted to the Blaine County Housing Authority (BCHA), with the 
Housing Authority granted “full and exclusive use” of the property as of November 1, 2014, and 
with the transfer of title to take place in late February or March. 

2. Most of the subject property is located in the Tourist Zoning District with the southeastern 
corner of the lot zoned Recreational Use.  That corner of the property contains mostly 
landscaping, some paved area and an out-building. 

3. Ketchum Municipal Code (KMC), Chapter 17.52 Tourist District (T), Section 17.52.010.B 
Conditional Uses allows public use as a conditional use, and Chapter 17.80 Recreational Use 
(RU), Section 17.80.010.B Conditional Uses allows public and semipublic uses as conditional 
uses.   

4. A public use is defined as “a structure or use intended or used for a public purpose by a city, 
other than the city of Ketchum, a school district, the county, the state, or by any other public 
agency, or by a public utility.”  As a public housing agency, BCHA meets the City’s definition of a 
public use as well as that of Idaho State Statute, Section 31-4202(c). 

84 of 103



5. The existing motel building is located on the portion of the property zoned Tourist, and use of 
the property as a motel is an allowed use in the T district.   

6. The existing off street parking is an allowed accessory use in the T zoning district and would be a 
conditional use in the RU zoning district were it a newly proposed use.  

7. BCHA intends to operate the Lift Tower Lodge under the requirements for a motel, with an 
exception requested to allow residents at the motel to stay longer than the thirty (30) days 
allowed by the motel definition:  “A building or group of buildings designed or used for short 
term occupancy which contains more than six (6) guestrooms offered for rent on a nightly basis 
with an on site office with a person in charge twenty four (24) hours per day. A motel room 
which includes cooking facilities shall not be considered a dwelling unit for the purpose of 
density, area, bulk or parking regulations of this title.”  Short term is defined as, “The rental or 
lease of any unit or structure or portion for a period of not more than thirty (30) days.”  The 
property has a manager’s apartment, and BCHA has hired a resident manager to reside in that 
unit to satisfy the requirement for a fulltime on site attendant for the facility.  BCHA is willing to 
accept a condition of approval that the property always has an on site manager, available 
twenty-four (24) hours per day.  Nearby residents have expressed concern that the manager 
may not be available 24/7.  The applicant should address their concerns with the Commisison. 

8. The existing twenty-two (22) parking spaces at the Lift Tower Lodge more than meet code 
requirements.  KMC, Section 17.124.060.A.2 requires .75 parking space per room for a motel.  
The motel contains fourteen (14) rooms and a two (2) bedroom apartment, resulting in 
requirement for sixteen (16) parking spaces.   

9. BCHA intends to utilize the motel to supply transitional and seasonal accommodations for low-
income workers in our community.  In addition, it may serve as emergency shelter on an as-
needed basis. 

10. BCHA has initiated a “Good Neighbor Policy” to try to ensure good communication with the 
surrounding neighbors.  As part of that policy, BCHA has developed “House Rules and 
Regulations” that limit visual and auditory impacts from the site.  According to BCHA, 
background checks on all applicants are conducted prior to placing them in housing situations. 

11. Staff recommends that, since the proposed use is somewhat different than the former use of 
the property, a condition of approval should be added to require Commission reevaluation of 
the CUP in a public hearing at a specified date in order to ensure City oversight and 
neighborhood input on the compatibility of the use.  Staff suggests reevaluation twelve (12) 
months from signature of the Findings of Fact.   

 

 
General Requirements for all Conditional Use Applications 

Compliant Standards and Conclusion 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Conclusion 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.040(A) Complete Application 
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☒ ☐ ☐ Department 
and Boards/ 
Commissions 
Comments 

Police Department 
o None to date. 

Fire Department 
o The fire department will require strict adherence to the occupant 

rules and regulations.  
o The smoke detectors are the owners responsibility to maintain 

and as noted shall not be disabled or tampered with at any time. 
o  No cooking devices other than the microwaves will be allowed in 

the rooms at any time.  
o BBQ’s and other open flame cooking devices are required to be at 

least 10 feet from the building and cannot be used on 
combustible decks or balconies.  

o A minimum of one 10 pound fire extinguisher is required in each 
rental room and in the manager’s apartment. 

 Public Works 
City Engineer 
o None to date. 
Street 
o We have received several complaints over the years from the Lift 

Tower Lodge associated with our snow removal operations. The 
edge of the roadway is about 50 feet from the front of the 
building. During heavy winters we will haul a lot of snow at night 
for several nights in a row, sometimes using as many as 20 trucks. 
The Lodge guests may not be used to the noise of the trucks at 
those hours of the day.  The Lodge may want to post a notice of 
snow removal operations and the associated noise. 

 Utilities 
o None to date. 

Building:   
o It appears that this would not be a change in use under the 

building code definition.  As such no building code action would 
be required.   

 

Compliance with Zoning District and Overlay Requirements 
 

Compliant Standards and Conclusion 
Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Conclusion 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.C Lot Area 

Conclusion No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.F Setbacks 

Conclusion No change.  
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.H Floor Area   

Conclusion No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.I Building Height 

Conclusion No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.124.060.A Curb Cut 

Conclusion No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.124.060.M Parking Spaces 

Conclusion No change. 
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Conditional Use Requirements 

 
1.  EVALUATION STANDARDS: 17.116.030 
A conditional use permit shall be granted by the commission only if the applicant demonstrates that: 

 
Compliant Standards and Conclusion 

Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Conclusion 
☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(A) 

CONDITIONAL 
USE  

The characteristics of the conditional use will not be unreasonably incompatible with 
the types of uses permitted in the applicable zoning district.  

Conclusion The proposed conditional use as an extended stay length motel with 
for qualified low income residents is not unreasonably incompatible 
with the allowed uses in the Tourist zoning district, including hotels, 
motels, lodges, tourist homes and tourist housing accommodations.  

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(B) The conditional use will not materially endanger the health, safety and welfare of 
the community.   

Conclusion The proposed use is very similar to the existing use at the property and 
to allowed uses in the Tourist zoning district.  The Fire Chief has placed 
conditions of approval, in line with the House Rules and Regulations, 
that limit use of cooking devices and barbeque grills and require 
maintenance of smoke detectors and fire extinguishers.  These have 
been included in Condition of Approval #1. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(C) The conditional use is such that pedestrian and vehicular traffic associated with the 
use will not be hazardous or conflict with existing and anticipated traffic in the 
neighborhood.     

Conclusion The conditional use will not increase the pedestrian and vehicular 
traffic impacts above those created by the existing motel use.  The 
existing use has more than adequate parking and access to Highway 
75.  There is adequate space for vehicles to turn around without 
impacting Highway 75 traffic.  No changes are proposed.   

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(D) The conditional use will be supported by adequate public facilities or services and 
will not adversely affect public services to the surrounding area or conditions can be 
established to mitigate adverse impacts.   

Conclusion Public utilities, emergency and essential services are available and can 
serve the subject property.  City departments have reviewed the 
proposal and have responded with no concerns for adequately serving 
the project as proposed. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(E) The conditional use is not in conflict with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan or 
the basic purposes of this Section.   
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Conclusion Staff Analysis:   
The proposed conditional use is supported by the following goals and 
policies of the 2014 Comprehensive Plan: 

• Goal H-1:  Ketchum will increase its supply of homes, including 
rental and special-needs housing for low-, moderate- and 
median-income households. 

o Policy H-1.1:  Affordable Housing Monitoring 
o Policy H-1.2:  Local Solutions to Attainable Housing 
o Policy H-1.3:  Integrated Affordable Housing iin 

Neighborhoods 
o Policy H-1.4:  Integrated Housing in Business and 

Mixed-Use Areas 
• Goal H-2:  The Ketchum community will support affordable 

housing programs. 
o Policy H-2.1:  Blaine County Housing Authority, 

ARCH Community Housing Trust and Ketchum 
Community Development Corporation (The City 
will partner with the above organizations to fulfill 
housing goals.) 

• Goal H-3:  Ketchum will have a mix of housing types and styles. 
 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

1. The City of Ketchum is a municipal corporation organized under Article XII of the Idaho 
Constitution and the laws of the State of Idaho, Title 50, Idaho Code. 
 
2. Under Chapter 65, Title 67 of the Idaho Code, the City has passed a land use and zoning 
ordinance, Title 17. 

 
3. The Planning and Zoning Commission has authority to hear the applicant’s Conditional Use 
Permit application pursuant to Idaho Code Section 67-6512 of the Local Land Use Planning Act and 
Chapters 17.52, 17.80 and 17.116 of Ketchum Zoning Code Title 17. 
 
4. The public hearing and consideration of the applicant’s Conditional Use Permit application was 
properly noticed pursuant to the Local Land Use Planning Act, Idaho Code Section 67-6512. 
 
5. The application does comply with Ketchum Zoning Code Title 17 and the Ketchum 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

DECISION 
 

THEREFORE, the Ketchum Planning and Zoning Commission approves this Conditional Use Permit 
application this 23rd day of February, 5 provided the following conditions are met: 

1. Ketchum City Engineer, Streets, Utilities, Fire and Building Department requirements shall be 
met, including: 
• The fire department will require strict adherence to the Lift Tower Lodge House Rules 

and Regulations Tenant Guide;  
• The smoke detectors are the owners responsibility to maintain and as noted shall not 

be disabled or tampered with at any time; 
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• No cooking devices other than the microwaves will be allowed in the rooms at any 
time;  

• Barbeques and other open flame cooking devices are required to be at least 10 feet 
from the building and  may not be used on combustible decks or balconies;  

• A minimum of one 10 pound fire extinguisher is required in each rental room and in the 
manager’s apartment; and 

• The Lodge shall post a notice informing residents of snow removal operations and the 
associated noise; 

2. An on site manager shall reside in the two (2) bedroom apartment at the Lift Tower Lodge and 
the manager and/or a BCHA representative shall be available twenty-four (24) hours per day; 

3. Per Title 17, Section 17.116.080:  TERM OF PERMITS:  Conditional Use Permit approval shall 
expire one (1) year from the date of approval if not acted upon within that time frame;  

4. The maximum term of stay at the Lift Tower Lodge for any occupant, except the on site 
manager, shall be limited to one year;   

5. This Conditional Use Permit approval is based on representations made and other components 
of the application presented and approved at the meeting on the date noted herein; and  

6. This Conditional Use Permit shall be reevaluated in a public hearing by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for compliance with all of the KMC Section 17.116.030 CUP evaluation standards 
and compliance with the above conditions of approval twelve (12) months from the date of the 
Findings of Fact. 
 

Findings of Fact adopted this 9th day of March 2015. 
 
        _____________________________ 

Steve Cook, Vice Chair  
Planning and Zoning Commission 

 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Blaine  ) 
 
 On this 9th day of March, 2015, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said 
State, personally appeared ____________________________, known or identified to me to be the 
person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument. 
 
 WITNESS my hand and seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 

 
_______________________  
Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at:  
Commission Expires:  

 Lift Tower Lodge Findings of Fact, CUP, PZ 3.9.15 
City of Ketchum Planning & Building Department      Page 6 of 6 
 

89 of 103



 Ketchum  
 Planning and Zoning Commission 480 East Avenue North 
  Ketchum, ID  83340 

 Regular Meeting http://ketchumidaho.org/ 
 
 ~ Minutes ~  
   

Monday, October 13, 2014 5:30 PM Ketchum City Hall 

Planning and Zoning Commission Page 1 Printed 3/4/2015 

 
Commissioners Present: Steve Cook, Vice Chairperson 
   Michael Doty 
   Jeff Lamoureux 
   Erin Smith 
    
Commissioners Absent: Deborah Burns, Chairperson  
 
Staff:   Joyce Allgaier, Director of Planning and Building 
   Rebecca Bundy, Senior Planner 
   Stephanie Bonnie, Attorney  
   Rachel Martin, Planning Technician  
  
3. OPENING OF MEETING 

Vice Chairperson Cook called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT - This is an opportunity for the public to speak with the 
Commission about issues and ideas not on the agenda. 
 
Vice Chairperson Cook invited the public to comment. There were none.  
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING upon the application of BIGWOOD PLAZA LLC, for an amendment to a conditional 
use permit (CUP) to allow a restaurant and small food establishment to serve after 9:00 P.M. in the 
Light Industrial - 2 (LI-2) Zone District, at 271 Northwood Way. Continued from September 22, 2014.  
 
Ms. Allgaier presented the staff report. She provided the commission public comments that were 
submitted during the last meeting. She also submitted an overview of the items that were discussed by 
the Commission and considerations for conditions of approval. The reason for the continuance was to 
provide the Commission time to read additional public comments.  
 
She provided background information on where other restaurants in the city are allowed to operate 
past 11:00 pm. She mentioned the CC and T districts as examples of where this can occur. Restaurants 
are allowed to operate as they see fit in other non-industrial districts where they are permitted.  
 
She then overviewed the proposed conditions of approval.  
 

1. All conditions that are in place need to be complied with.  
2. The applicant must act on the CUP within one year of approval. 
3. The CUP is designated for lot 4 of block 10 as amended of the subject property. 
4. The food service establishment must not have adverse impacts on the surrounding 

neighborhood.  
5. 11:00 pm is closing time. No outside food or beverage allowed at this time and no new inside 

food or beverage orders.  
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6. The number of days of operation are limited resulting in 150 days per year where the use would 
not be allowed to be opened past 9:00 pm and not more than three consecutive days in a row. 

7. No tents or shelters are allowed to be erected.  
8. No additional outside lighting beyond what was originally approved is allowed.  
9. No outdoor music is allowed.  No outdoor disposal of recyclables and trash is allowed between 

9:00 pm and 6:00 am. 
10. The CUP shall be reviewed before the Commission to determine and ensure that the conditions 

of the permit were complied with and that the use does not have an adverse impact on the 
neighborhood.  

11. A certificate of occupancy and business license shall be acquired for operations for the subject 
property prior to occupancy and use of the building.  

 
The applicant, Jim Laske stated that there were two emails in favor of the application. He stated that 
they are okay with the conditions, except for condition six regarding the three day consecutive use. He 
stated that they are okay with being restricted in the number of days they are allowed to be opened 
past 9:00 pm a year.   
 
Vice Chairperson Cook opened the meeting to public comment.  
 
William Glenn stated that he has occupied space in the industrial zone for over 40 years. He expressed 
concern that the restaurant would not be a good fit with industrial uses. He stated that industrial uses 
should not create traffic. He stated that the proposal is in conflict with the zoning ordinance and does 
not serve as a support service to the light industrial district. He indicated that the latest business in the 
LI zone closes at 6:00 pm and therefore the proposed CUP would not serve LI zone. There are not 
enough residents to support the restaurant. The private events being proposed would exclude residents 
of the LI zone. He stated that the application should be denied.  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook closed the public hearing and turned the time back to the applicant for rebuttal.  
 
Jim Laske stated the Mr. Glenn's comments have been addressed and mentioned that the restaurant 
supports the LI district during the day. He mentioned the Comprehensive Plan supports their intended 
use. It calls for a lively environment. He mentioned that the City Council was in favor of their use.   
 
George, the owner, stated that restaurant would serve dinner to the public as well.  
 
The Commission deliberated on the application. Commissioner Smith stated that the main issue has to 
do with the ordinance in regards to what a support service is. She stated that they need to look at the 
whole use and not just the time period beyond 9:00 pm. She stated that in general it is a support service 
and mentioned that the ordinance does not state that the use needs to be exclusively a support service.  
 
Commissioner Doty stated that the zoning ordinance criteria is met by the intended use. Due to the 
nature of the conditions, the 9-11 pm use will be controlled.  
 
Commissioner Lamoureux and Vice Chairperson Cook in general expressed concern that the use could 
compete with restaurants in the core.    
 
Commissioner Doty and Smith stated that the ordinance was changed in the past to allow a use just like 
this one.  
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Commissioner Smith mentioned that this use was accessory to the main use of the facility and it would 
not outshine the industrial use.  
 
Stephanie Bonnie, City Attorney stated that in order to amend or rescind a conditional use permit that 
the Commission would have to show how they violated the conditional use permit. She indicated the 
CUP could be amended to bring any adverse impact from the use into compliance with the CUP. The 
Commission would take evidence from the neighborhood. Noticing would be similar to how CUPs are 
noticed.  
 
Commissioner Doty mentioned that he would be in favor of the use being opened less than a standard 
restaurant use. He asked the question "Does the restaurant need to be open seven days a week to 11 
pm." 
 
George stated that all restaurants are different. He is willing to close 150 days a year at 9:00 PM.    
 
The Commission agreed that the use should have a condition that limited the open days to 215 a year 
and no more than four consecutive days.  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook asked for clarification on condition 5. Ms. Allageir explained that outdoor 
activities would not be allowed past 11 pm but no new indoor activities would be allowed past 11 pm.  
 
Commissioner Smith motioned "To approve the application Big Wood Bread Conditional Use Permit 
based on the Commission's findings and conclusions regarding the evaluation criteria subject to the 
conditions 1-11 as modified during this meeting."  
 
 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Erin Smith, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Mike Doty, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Erin Smith and Michael Doty  
ABSENT: Deborah Burns, Chairperson 
RECUSED: None 

 
 
6. CONSIDERATION upon the application of by Seaboard Investments, Inc., for Community Core 
Design Review submittal at Ketchum Townsite, Lot 7, Block 15 (520 North Washington Avenue)  
 
Rebecca Bundy, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. She mentioned that the Commission had 
seen the project a few months ago. She provided a list of items that the applicant should address. She 
explained that they were concerned with the dumpster location and that the dumpster would be 
located to the north side of the building and be placed on a glider system. Its location precludes the 
inclusion of an ADA space. There are five parking spaces required. The applicant has provided 
documentation from an ADA agency that states that if the space can’t be onsite that it should be located 
on street.  
 
The applicant is hoping to run the water line to his property by November. Power would be brought to 
the south side of the shed. About 80% of the line would be located underground. Snow retention on the 
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roof has been addressed. The building has been reengineered with a metal roof and snow guards. Roof 
mechanical access is being screened. Loading and deliveries are provided from the alley. There will be a 
walkway. The fence design is a shadow box. It does not provide 50% opacity, however that is a guideline 
and not a regulation. The sign plan has been submitted and meets the code. Exterior fixtures meet code.  
The proposed conditions in general have to do with screening the mechanical, maintaining the property, 
using the glider and obtaining an encroachment permit. Number nine requires the walkways and patios 
be kept clear of snow and ten requires a final set of plans in compliance with the commission's 
comments tonight.  
 
Very little had changed except for a roof design which is now a shed roof. There are proposed snow 
guards at the base of the roof to help with snow load issues. She overviewed the chimney, fire pits, an 
existing tree and walkway. The site plan shows the same elements.  
 
Vice Chairman Cook turned the time to the applicant. 
 
Jessie Shuey, mentioned that they wanted to keep it as authentic as possible. He overviewed the new 
building frontage. The new entry would be setback five feet with a two foot overhang. The new building 
would be used primarily for kitchen and industrial cooking space. He overviewed the cold entry and bike 
racks. He showed the rear of the building and described the size of the enclosure for the mechanical 
equipment. The equipment is heavy, large and intrusive.  There will be an ADA bathroom. The fence 
goes back 26 feet. It is a six foot fence that encloses the back yard. He overviewed the back yard and 
three hour fire wall. The walkway will be plowed and he indicated that he would pick up his own 
deliveries.  
 
Commissioner Doty inquired how keg beer would be delivered and Jessie indicated that it would be 
delivered by truck. Commissioner Doty further pointed out that an ADA person could access the rear 
door as well. Jessie explained that ADA access should come from the general access entrance.  
 
Commissioner Lamoureux stated that where ever the ADA space is located an access path of travel is 
needed.  Commissioner Cook mentioned that deliveries need a hard surface for hand trucks. Jessie 
stated that he would rather not pave the walkway. Commissioner Doty stated that he was okay with 
how the power was being delivered to the building.  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook opened the meeting to public comment.  
 
The Paola Barrasda, stated that she owned a nearby restaurant and was concerned that his patrons 
would park in her parking lot.  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook closed the public hearing and opened Commission deliberations. Commissioner 
Lamoureux stated that a condition should require an engineered plan for the ADA space in the street.  
 
Commissioner Doty asked who would pay for the parking space. Commissioner Lamoureux mentioned 
that the applicant would have to because it would satisfy their parking requirement.  He stated that the 
engineered plan, as condition 11, should show the ADA route of travel.  
 
Jessie expressed concern that he was being burdened with having to construct the ADA parking space. 
  
Commissioner Lamoureux suggested that they condition a paved walkway for deliveries.  Vice 
Chairperson Cook indicated that a condition should be placed to require all deliveries to be accessed 
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from the alley. Commissioner Cook suggested that if they found that deliveries were not being taken 
from the alley and were going through the front then a paved walkway would be required.  
 
Commissioner Lamoureux motioned that "This project the Kip and Kin addition meets the standards of 
Title 17 of the Ketchum City Code, and be approved with conditions 1-12 as amended."    
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Jeff Lamoureux, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Erin Smith, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Erin Smith and Michael Doty   
ABSENT: Deborah Burns, Chairperson  
RECUSED: None 

 
7. CONSIDERATION upon the application by JOHN T. HASTINGS, JR. AND EMBASSY AUDITORIUMS, 
INC., for a stream alteration/ waterways design review/ floodplain development permit at 1200 
Warm Springs Road, (Taxlots 8137 and 8138)  
 
Ms. Bundy overviewed the staff report. She explained that the applicant was proposing to move the 
main flow of the Big Wood River towards the center of the stream because it is currently eroding the 
western bank of the river near the bridge. She continued that the Commissioner had visited the site and 
it was clear that there is evidence of this occurring. They are proposing rip rap to secure a grove of 
cottonwood trees that are near the bank and starting to lean. They are proposing stone bars north of 
the rip rap and another one near a light pole. They will need to remove compensatory material, 
approximately 138 cubic yards, near the river. They have received approval from the Army Corp of 
Engineers and the Idaho Water Rights.  
 
These approvals have conditions requiring all work to be completed during times of low water, any 
materials being removed will need to be re-deposited upstream and minimizing the amount of impact to 
the stream bank.  She directed the Commission to photos and identified the impact area and an existing 
rock bar, which is similar to what the applicant is proposing. The applicant would like to plant willow 
cuttings near the bar. They will reseed with native grasses in any disturbed areas. Trent with Saw tooth 
Environmental Consulting stated that the erosion was not occurring at an advanced rate. Trent stated 
that the application was in keeping with standards and it would enhance stream habitat for fish in the 
long run. He stated that there would not be adverse public impacts. He recommended that conditions of 
approval included minimizing removal of existing riparian vegetation, to leave trees stumps and roots in-
tack if any trees needed to be removed and the city to insure that the project’s impact stay within the 
parameters proposed by the applicant. These have been included in staff’s condition number six.  
 
The applicant would like to complete all of the work in the fall. If it becomes too cold for the reseeding 
and re-vegetation, staff would allow them to bond for the work to be completed in the spring time. 
Commissioner Smith expressed concern that the vegetation could die or be compromised due to 
flooding and Ms. Allgaier stated that they could have a condition that requires the vegetation to be 
completed again if it was lost.  
 
Staff is proposing standard conditions to not use fertilizers near the river, that material be relocated up 
river and that all conditions from the State and Army Corp be met and no maintenance of the riparian 
zone will be allowed without a permit. Any removed trees will need to be replaced with an approved 
species and a new plan will need to be submitted.   
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Vice Chairperson Cook introduced the applicant and gave him the floor. Ben Worst, representative of 
the applicant, stated that in the last high water year the water re-deposited the gravel near the 
applicant’s property. He explained that one of the cottonwood trees has now pulled away from the 
bank. They are installing three rock bars which act as underwater speed bumps. He expressed concern 
regarding re-vegetating the willows. He explained that willows grow like weeds and having to re-
vegetate those requires taking the barbs out of the river and reweaving them.  
 
He explained that the rip rap would go where the tree needed to be stabilized. He expressed concern 
regarding the Nature’s Conservatory condition regarding obtaining an agreement from them to do their 
work. He would like this condition removed.  
 
Commissioner Lamoureux expressed concern that the plans were not detailed enough to provide the 
contractor enough information. Ben explained that when the plans go out to bid they would have 
engineered plans.  
 
Condition 13 was revised to state “prior to commencement of construction of any improvements on the 
adjacent property to the east, permission to make those improvements shall be obtained from the 
owner of said property  
 
Commissioner Doty motioned “That the Big Wood River Stabilization does meet the standards for 
approval under Chapter 17.88 of Ketchum Code Title 17 only if the following conditions of approval are 
met, 1 – 13 as amended.”   
 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Mike Doty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Erin Smith, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Erin Smith and Michael Doty   
ABSENT: Deborah Burns, Chairperson  
RECUSED: None 

 
8. EST 7:45 p.m. CONSENT AGENDA a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 1. June 9, 2014  
 
Commissioner Doty recused himself from the consent agenda and offered an edit of page 9 of 13 for 
June 9th, number 5 doesn’t state that he recused himself and would like that reflected in the record.  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook provided a revision to page six, 2nd sentence where it stated that the commission 
was not concerned. They decided to cut that sentence.   
 
Commissioner Smith motioned “To approved the minutes from the June 9th meeting as amended.”   
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RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Erin Smith, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Jeff Lamoureux, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Erin Smith and Michael Doty   
ABSENT: Deborah Burns, Chairperson  
RECUSED: None 

 
 
9. STAFF COMMENTS & CITY COUNCIL MEETING UPDATE  
 
Ms. Allgaier provided her farewell to the Commission and stated that this was her last meeting.  
 
10. COMMISSION COMMENTS 11.ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Smith motioned “To adjourn.”  
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Erin Smith, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Jeff Lamoureux, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Erin Smith and Michael Doty   
ABSENT: Deborah Burns, Chairperson  
RECUSED: None 
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Commissioners Present: Deborah Burns, Chairperson  
   Steve Cook, Vice Chairperson 
   Michael Doty 
   Jeff Lamoureux, (Via speakerphone) 
   Erin Smith 
    
Commissioners Absent: All in attendance 
 
Staff:   Joyce Allgaier, Director of Planning and Building 
   Rebecca Bundy, Senior Planner 
   Stephanie Bonnie, Attorney  
  
1. OPENING OF MEETING 
Vice Chairperson Cook called the meeting to order just after 5:30 p.m. (No specific time given) 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT - This is an opportunity for the public to speak with the 
Commission about issues and ideas not on the agenda. 
 
Vice Chairperson Cook invited the public to comment. There were none.  
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING upon the petition of TBDBV, LLC, BV, LLC –Dennis Hanggi and 
Glenn H. Hamilton Trust, for the vacation of the public right of way of Wick Strasse 
Street. Staff Report and Attachments  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook invited staff to speak. Ms. Allgaier explained that the procedures of the 
vacation would first go through the Planning and Zoning Commission in a public hearing and 
then to the City Council for a public hearing. The subdivision plat would need to be amended if 
approved. This is done administratively. She overviewed the criteria for review which included: 

• Future use of the land,  
• The comprehensive plan,  
• Applicant testimony, 
• Interests of adjacent property owners,  
• Potential development of neighboring properties,   
• Utilities and access, and  
• Long term use for the public and future generations.  

 
She referred the Commission to a photo of the site and explained that the land used to be part 
of the Bavarian multi-housing project. She then pointed out where city property is located in 
relation to the applicant's property.  
 
The ROW was previously used for parking and as a driveway for the Bavarian Village. It was not 
maintained or improved by the City. Lots 5, 6, 7 & 8 all front on the ROW and will gain land from 
the vacation. Exhibit B shows the potential street is 26 feet wide. The fire trucks need to be able 
to get within 150 of the farthest point of any building.  
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The lots are located in the GR-H district. The base FAR is 0.5 and can increased to 1.4 with 
Community Housing contributions. There is potential for higher density on this property.  
 
The key areas of concern are: 

• What infrastructure exists in the ROW? 
• Are there rights to the well pump house that serve all lots? 
• Who will invest in the upgrade and improvement of the private roadway and in the 

installation of water and sewer lines? 
• What is the utility plan to serve all lots? 

 
There is a new submittal by the applicants dated September 2nd. Staff and the Commission 
have not yet reviewed these plans. The applicant will provide a description of the new plans.  
 
The applicant, Garth McClure representing the applicant gave an overview of the property. He 
explained that the ROW is 172 long and 60 feet wide. It falls in the Bavarian Village Subdivision. 
He directed the Commission to the plat of record. No date is on the plat. He believes it was 
recorded in 1971. The total area is approximately 1/4 acre. Exhibit one shows the eight lots. The 
property was originally developed with multi-family condos, however those have since been 
leveled. Lot one was meant to be a well house, but never built. There are existing utilities on the 
property and adjoining ROW. The water line is shown in blue and the green line is the sewer 
line serving the neighborhood on Bird Drive. There are multiple utility boxes, power, phone gas, 
and cable TV shown in pink. Garth overviewed the plan with the Commission and pointed out 
the proposed lot configuration. He handed the Commission calculations of the existing lots and 
the area of lots 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 after the vacation. He turned the time over to Ed Lawson. 
Commission Cook asked if there was a dashed line that showed the increase property of lot 5. 
Garth explained that exhibit B shows the calculation.  
 
Mr. Lawson indicated that the applicant would install the street and utilities. Mr. Lawson's 
explained that Wick Strasse had only been used to access the four lots. Mr. Lawson also 
clarified that there would only be one sewer line that all of the homes would tap into. Mr. 
Lawson's comments were mostly inaudible.  
 
Ms. Allgaier explained that there needs to be a plan for the roadway before the building permit is 
approved. The infrastructure would need to be approved by the City. This can be done through 
the imposition of conditions. The applicant explained that they would construct a roadway and 
not a driveway. As soon as one permit is triggered all of the infrastructure would need to be 
installed. The Street Department is in favor of the vacation, however they expressed concern 
regarding the street design.  
 
The Commission discussed the project and felt that Wick Stasse was a road to nowhere, that it 
was land locked and would not serve a public purpose. The commission expressed that the land 
should be granted to the applicants. They would have to pay taxes on the property. They would 
have to pay taxes on the property. They expressed that they were comfortable with the vacation 
of the ROW. Vice Chairperson Cook is not comfortable with the declaration and minimizing 
access onto Bird Drive. In order to develop lot four an easement through lot six would be 
required.  
 
Ms. Allgaier summarized the Commission's recommendations as: 

• Limiting access onto Bird Drive from lots 5-8, 
• Change in the legal tool they would use to confirm the declarations that were presented 

tonight, and  
• Require a utility design drawing be approved by the city prior to a building permit.  

98 of 103



 

Monday, September 22, 2014 5:30 PM Ketchum City Hall 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission Page 3 Printed 2/2/2015 

 
Commissioner Doty suggested they broaden their recommendation to any lots contiguous to the 
road instead of just lots 5-8. Vice Chairperson Cook recommended that the Commission hold off 
on making their recommendation until they had their condition figured out. He suggested that 
staff take more time to work out the details with the applicant.  Ms. Allgaier stated that staff is 
comfortable with having the Commission make a recommendation tonight and then to work with 
the applicant before going to the City Council.  
 
Chairperson Burns motioned "To recommend to the City Council approval of the request for 
vacation of Wick Strasse with the three stated conditions" 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Deborah Burns, Chairperson  
SECONDER: Erin Smith, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Erin Smith, Michael Doty and Deborah Burns.  
ABSENT: None 
RECUSED: None 

 
The Commissioner took a five minute break.  
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING upon the application of BIGWOOD PLAZA LLC, for an amendment 
to a conditional use permit (CUP) to allow a restaurant and small food establishment to 
serve after 9:00 P.M. in the Light Industrial - 2 (LI-2) Zone District, at 271 Northwood Way. 
Staff Report and Attachments  
 
Chairperson Burns recused herself from hearing the item. She explained that she was now 
impartial in her decision.  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook turned the time to staff. Ms. Allgaier overviewed the conditional use 
permit. She explained that due to a code amendment restaurants could not serve after 9:00 PM 
with a conditional use permit. The Big Wood Bakery and Restaurant in 2013 obtained a 
conditional use permit to operate the restaurant and bakery use together. The CUP allowed for 
500 square feet of retail and 1,000 square feet of restaurant. She overviewed the criteria that 
the Commission uses in reviewing CUPs.  
 
She directed the Commission to a power point and photos of the site. Restaurants and small 
food establishments can be allowed if they follow specific criteria:  
 

• Not be larger than 1000 square feet of gross floor area (they meet this) 
• They serve as a support service to the LI district 
• They can't serve after 9:00 PM except through the CUP 
• They must meet parking requirements 
• Does it pose a traffic hazard (staff doesn't think so) 
• Parking over flow and noise should be discussed (the applicant will provide more 

details) 
• No goods merchandise or commodities shall be sold outdoors 
• One space is required for every 250 gross floor area of the restaurant. The applicant 

does already meet this requirement. There may be some associated events.  
• It must not material danger the health, safety and welfare of the community. 
• Is the project in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan?  
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She explained that the Comprehensive Plan encouraged bringing visitors and customers to 
downtown and discouraged them from the Industrial Zones. The Commission needs to weigh 
this.  
 
Ms. Allgaier then discussed considerations based on review criteria which included: 
 

• Does extending restaurant serving hours provide "support service to the LI district?” 
• Parking, 
• Noise, 
• Lighting, 
• Sale or display of merchandise outdoors, and  
• Community health safety and welfare.  

 
The applicant, Jim Laske from Big Wood Plaza presented their proposal. He provided a brief 
background and history of the project. The building does include the restaurant and patio space. 
The CUP doesn't restrict them from having customers using the patio. They would like to use 
the space for evening events. They would like to hold bread making classes and allow their 
clients to eat dinner. This may go past 9:00 PM. They believe that they have the demand or will 
soon, and want to be able to accommodate this activity.  
 
Mr. Laske referenced the staff report criteria which requires the use after 9:00 pm to support the 
LI district, and stated that it was overly strict to require supporting LI district to be the only 
purpose. It is however one of the purposes. He mentioned that there are 30+ housing units 
adjacent to the property that will use the restaurant after 9:00 PM. He explained that the use 
supports businesses and entrepreneurism. He believes that the parking demand will go down 
after 9:00 PM. There is a staggered timeframe with other adjacent business and they could 
share parking. They do not plan to host parties near the property to the north. They would not 
have amplified music after 9:00 PM. The patio is also oriented towards the street and not the 
residential uses. No additional lighting would be required. They have no intention of displaying 
or selling merchandise outside. They do plan to sell food as it is ordered. He believes that there 
is significant public support for their proposal.       
 
He requested that his packet handed out to the city council and staff report be part of the record. 
The attorney requested that the Commission make a decision. She did not feel it was relevant to 
the application.  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook stated that he did not have a conflict of interest with the proposed 
application and opened the meeting to public comment.  
 
Linda Potter, 95 Greenhorn Road in Hailey: She stated that she is in support of the application. 
There is no compelling need to restrict the use and the Commission should consider amending 
the LI District to be less restrictive. The use will meet a need the community has. This location 
provides a walk-able destination for nearby neighborhoods. They have sufficient parking. This 
CUP amendment will support local jobs.  
 
Mr. Nova (Couldn't hear his first name), lives in the adjacent building. He is in favor of the use 
and has no complaints regarding the use. He explained that most of the operation would be 
over by 9:00 PM. The area is a ghost town after 6:00 PM.  
 
William Glenn: Occupies space in the LI Zone. The only problems that he has involves the 
mixed use thing. He believes zoning shouldn't allow this. He stated that his tenants have 
problems with the conditional uses that have been approved. He referred to specific businesses 
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and sited problems with their violation of hours of operation. He is not in favor of the CUP 
amendment and feels that the City won't enforce the conditions of the application.    
 
Jan Swanson, she is a resident of the Scott Building, stated that there is nothing in the area. 
She does not want noise that will be associated with late night activity. The area is not designed 
for that type of use. Not in favor of the proposed events. She mentioned that she sent an email 
along these lines.   
 
The applicant, Mr. Laske clarified that there would not be any tents set up for events. There 
would not be larger parties extending beyond the patio. He doesn't believe it is fair to be lumped 
in with other businesses that people are having problems with.  
 
Commissioner Doty asked Mr. Laske why he didn't get the past-9:00 PM use approved initially. 
Mr. Laske responded that those opportunities for later service presented themselves after they 
got approved. Vice Chairperson Cook asked if they could host the events at the downtown 
location. Mr. Laske responded that the downtown location is smaller.  
 
Commissioner Smith stated that if they were to enter the requested documents into the record 
they need to read it first and should therefore continue the item to another meeting.  
 
Commissioner Doty mentioned that they should continue the public hearing as well since the 
application is being amended. Ms. Bonnie also mentioned that it would allow for people that 
commented at the City Council meeting to attend and to explain their comments. Ms. Allgaier 
recommended that the Commission establish a deadline for adding material to the application.  
 
Commissioner Smith suggested that they continue the meeting but not allow for additional 
comments.  
 
The Commission would like the applicant to elaborate of the events they are planning to host.  
 
George, the applicant spoke next: He stated that they will not have music beyond 9:00 PM. No 
tents will be used. He is willing to agree to an 11:00 PM restriction.  
 
Commissioner Doty requested that all of the trash be held and not dumped until the next 
morning. George then stated that all of the residents from the Scott Building were in favor of the 
use except for two. If the restaurant was open until 11:00 PM the employees would go home 
around 11:30 PM.     
 
Commissioner Smith motioned "To continue this until October 13th, and that no comments 
would be accepted after the 6th of October at 5:00 PM." 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Erin Smith, Commissioner  
SECONDER: Michael Doty, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Erin Smith and Michael Doty  
ABSENT: None 
RECUSED: Deborah Burns, Chairperson 
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5. CONSENT AGENDA  
 a. FINDINGS OF FACT  
  1. Jensen - Conditional Use Permit  
  2. Washington Federal Bank - Conditional Use Permit  
  3. Schoolhouse Townhomes – Townhouse Subdivision Preliminary  
  Plat and Design Review  
 b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
  1. June 17, 2014  
  2. July 14, 2014  
 
Commissioner Doty commented that staff did a good job on rewriting condition five of the 
Washington Federal Bank CUP. He had a question regarding number two and asked where the 
findings of fact were. Ms. Allgaier directed him to where they were in the packet.  
 
He then mentioned there was not a condition for a barrier near the opening. Staff confirmed that 
no motion was made to require a condition. Ms. Bundy also stated that a note in item six 
requires them to come back in and obtain a master sign plan for any new signage.  
 
Vice Chairperson Cook pointed to page 13 number seven and asked what the definition of an 
infrastructure construction plan was. He recommended striking roadway and to call out the 
shoulder and walkway surface materials instead.  
 
Commissioner Smith recused herself from voting on the findings of fact because she was not 
there.  
 
Chairperson Burns motioned "To approve the findings of fact for Jensen Conditional Use Permit, 
Washington Federal Bank Conditional Use Permit and Schoolhouse Townhomes, Townhouse 
Subdivision Preliminary Plat and Design Review" 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Deborah Burns, Chairperson 
SECONDER: Michael Doty, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Deborah Burns and Michael Doty  
ABSENT: None 
RECUSED: Erin Smith, Commissioner  

 
Commissioner Smith pointed out that the June 17, 2014 minutes stated that Commissioner 
Fabiano was absent and it should instead say Commissioner Erin Smith.  
 
Chairperson Burns motioned "To approve the minutes of the June 17, 2014 and July 14, 2014" 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Deborah Burns, Chairperson 
SECONDER: Michael Doty, Commissioner 
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Deborah Burns and Michael Doty  
ABSENT: None 
RECUSED: Erin Smith, Commissioner  
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6. STAFF COMMENTS & CITY COUNCIL MEETING UPDATE  
There are no staff comments. 
 
7. COMMISSION COMMENTS  
Vice Chairperson Cook commented that at the previous meeting they had taken a straw poll. 
The Roberts Rules says that straw polls are not valid and should not be taken. They should go 
into committee. He asked regarding going into committee. The attorney stated that they can't go 
into committee because everything has to be in the public. Straw polls can only be used in 
administrative decisions and not in substantive decisions.   
 
8. ADJOURNMENT  
Chairperson Burns motioned "To adjourn." 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Deborah Burns, Chairperson 
SECONDER: Erin Smith, Commissioner  
AYES: Steve Cook, Jeff Lamoureux, Erin Smith, Deborah Burns and Michael Doty  
ABSENT: None 
RECUSED: None   

 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Planning and Zoning Commission 
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February 18, 2015 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
City of Ketchum 
Ketchum, Idaho 
 
Commissioners: 
 

STAFF REPORT 
KETCHUM PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 23, 2015 
 
 
PROJECT:  Lift Tower Lodge Conditional Use Permit 
 
FILE NUMBERS:  15-006  
 
OWNER: Lift Tower Lodge, LLC or Blaine County Housing Authority (depending on timing)  
 
REQUEST: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a public use 
 
LOCATION: 703 South Main Street (Taxlot 7983) 
 
ZONING:  Tourist (T) and Recreational Use (RU) Zoning Districts 
 
NOTICE: Property owners within 300 foot radius of subject property and all properties on the 

Gem Streets were mailed notice on February 2, 2015.  A public hearing notice was 
published in the Legal Notices of the Idaho Mountain Express on February 4, 2015, and 
a display ad was published in the Idaho Mountain Express on February 11, 2015.  A 
public hearing notice was posted on the site on February 16, 2015. 

 
REVIEWER:  Rebecca F. Bundy, Senior Planner / Building and Development Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

A. Conditional Use Permit Application Submittal, dated January 28, 2015 
• Application, dated January 28, 2015 
• Narrative to Support Conditional Use Permit Application, received January 29, 2015 
• Site Photos 

B. Public Comment 
• Mike and Jane Nicolais, dated February 16, 2015 
• Julie Dahlgren, dated February 17, 2015  

 



BACKGROUND 
 

1. The Lift Tower Lodge has been gifted to the Blaine County Housing Authority (BCHA), with the Housing 
Authority granted “full and exclusive use” of the property as of November 1, 2014, and with the 
transfer of title to take place in late February or March. 

2. Most of the subject property is located in the Tourist Zoning District with the southeastern corner of 
the lot zoned Recreational Use.  That corner of the property contains mostly landscaping, some paved 
area and an out-building. 

3. Ketchum Municipal Code, Chapter 17.52 Tourist District (T), Section 17.52.010.B Conditional Uses 
allows public use as a conditional use, and Chapter 17.80 Recreational Use (RU), Section 17.80.010.B 
Conditional Uses allows public and semipublic uses as conditional uses.   

4. A public use is defined as “a structure or use intended or used for a public purpose by a city, other 
than the city of Ketchum, a school district, the county, the state, or by any other public agency, or by a 
public utility.”  As a public housing agency, BCHA meets the City’s definition of a public use as well as 
that of Idaho State Statute, Section 31-4202(c). 

5. The existing motel building is located on the portion of the property zoned Tourist, and use of the 
property as a motel is an allowed use in the T district.   

6. The existing off street parking is an allowed accessory use in the T zoning district and would be a 
conditional use in the RU zoning district were it a newly proposed use.  

7. BCHA intends to operate the Lift Tower Lodge under the requirements for a motel, with an exception 
requested to allow residents at the motel to stay longer than the thirty (30) days allowed by the motel 
definition:  “A building or group of buildings designed or used for short term occupancy which contains 
more than six (6) guestrooms offered for rent on a nightly basis with an on site office with a person in 
charge twenty four (24) hours per day. A motel room which includes cooking facilities shall not be 
considered a dwelling unit for the purpose of density, area, bulk or parking regulations of this title.”  
Short term is defined as, “The rental or lease of any unit or structure or portion for a period of not 
more than thirty (30) days.”  The property has a manager’s apartment, and BCHA has hired a resident 
manager to reside in that unit to satisfy the requirement for a fulltime on site attendant for the facility.  
BCHA is willing to accept a condition of approval that the property always has an on site manager, 
available twenty-four (24) hours per day.  Nearby residents have expressed concern that the manager 
may not be available 24/7.  The applicant should address their concerns with the Commisison. 

8. The existing twenty-two (22) parking spaces at the Lift Tower Lodge more than meet code 
requirements.  KMC, Section 17.124.060.A.2 requires .75 parking space per room for a motel.  The 
motel contains fourteen (14) rooms and a two (2) bedroom apartment, resulting in requirement for 
sixteen (16) parking spaces.   

9. BCHA intends to utilize the motel to supply transitional and seasonal accommodations for low-income 
workers in our community.  In addition, it may serve as emergency shelter on an as-needed basis. 

10. BCHA has initiated a “Good Neighbor Policy” to try to ensure good communication with the 
surrounding neighbors.  As part of that policy, BCHA has developed “House Rules and Regulations” 
that limit visual and auditory impacts from the site.  According to BCHA, background checks on all 
applicants are conducted prior to placing them in housing situations. 
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11. Staff recommends that, since the proposed use is somewhat different than the former use of the 
property, a condition of approval should be added to require Commission reevaluation of the CUP in a 
public hearing at a specified date in order to ensure City oversight and neighborhood input on the 
compatibility of the use.  Staff suggests reevaluation twelve (12) months from signature of the Findings 
of Fact.   

 
General Requirements for all Conditional Use Applications 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A City Code City Standards and Staff Comments 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.040(A) Complete Application 

☒ ☐ ☐ Department 
and Boards/ 
Commissions 
Comments 

Police Department 
o None to date. 

Fire Department 
o The fire department will require strict adherence to the occupant 

rules and regulations.  
o The smoke detectors are the owners responsibility to maintain 

and as noted shall not be disabled or tampered with at any time. 
o  No cooking devices other than the microwaves will be allowed in 

the rooms at any time.  
o BBQ’s and other open flame cooking devices are required to be at 

least 10 feet from the building and cannot be used on 
combustible decks or balconies.  

o A minimum of one 10 pound fire extinguisher is required in each 
rental room and in the manager’s apartment. 

 Public Works 
City Engineer 
o None to date. 
Street 
o We have received several complaints over the years from the Lift 

Tower Lodge associated with our snow removal operations. The 
edge of the roadway is about 50 feet from the front of the 
building. During heavy winters we will haul a lot of snow at night 
for several nights in a row, sometimes using as many as 20 trucks. 
The Lodge guests may not be use to the noise of the trucks at 
those hours of the day.  The Lodge may want to post a notice of 
snow removal operations and the associated noise. 

 Utilities 
o None to date. 

Building:   
o It appears that this would not be a change in use under the 

building code definition.  As such no building code action would 
be required.   
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Compliance with Zoning District and Overlay Requirements 
 

Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 
Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Staff Comments 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.C Lot Area 

Staff Comments No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.F Setbacks 

Staff Comments No change.  
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.H Floor Area   

Staff Comments No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.52.010.I Building Height 

Staff Comments No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.124.060.A Curb Cut 

Staff Comments No change. 
☐ ☐ ☒ 17.124.060.M Parking Spaces 

Staff Comments No change. 
 

 
Conditional Use Requirements 

 
1.  EVALUATION STANDARDS: 17.116.030 
A conditional use permit shall be granted by the commission only if the applicant demonstrates that: 

 
Compliant Standards and Staff Comments 

Yes No N/A Guideline City Standards and Staff Comments 
☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(A) 

CONDITIONAL 
USE  

The characteristics of the conditional use will not be unreasonably incompatible with 
the types of uses permitted in the applicable zoning district.  

Staff Comments The proposed conditional use as an extended stay length motel with 
for qualified low income residents is not unreasonably incompatible 
with the allowed uses in the Tourist zoning district, including hotels, 
motels, lodges, tourist homes and tourist housing accommodations.  

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(B) The conditional use will not materially endanger the health, safety and welfare of 
the community.   

Staff Comments The proposed use is very similar to the existing use at the property and 
to allowed uses in the Tourist zoning district.  The Fire Chief has placed 
conditions of approval, in line with the House Rules and Regulations, 
that limit use of cooking devices and barbeque grills and require 
maintenance of smoke detectors and fire extinguishers.  These have 
been included in Condition of Approval #1. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(C) The conditional use is such that pedestrian and vehicular traffic associated with the 
use will not be hazardous or conflict with existing and anticipated traffic in the 
neighborhood.     

Staff Comments The conditional use will not increase the pedestrian and vehicular 
traffic impacts above those created by the existing motel use.  The 
existing use has more than adequate parking and access to Highway 
75.  There is adequate space for vehicles to turn around without 
impacting Highway 75 traffic.  No changes are proposed.   

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(D) The conditional use will be supported by adequate public facilities or services and 
will not adversely affect public services to the surrounding area or conditions can be 
established to mitigate adverse impacts.   

Staff Comments Public utilities, emergency and essential services are available and can 
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serve the subject property.  City departments have reviewed the 
proposal and have responded with no concerns for adequately serving 
the project as proposed. 

☒ ☐ ☐ 17.116.030(E) The conditional use is not in conflict with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan or 
the basic purposes of this Section.   

Staff Comments Staff Analysis:   
The proposed conditional use is supported by the following goals and 
policies of the 2014 Comprehensive Plan: 

• Goal H-1:  Ketchum will increase its supply of homes, including 
rental and special-needs housing for low-, moderate- and 
median-income households. 

o Policy H-1.1:  Affordable Housing Monitoring 
o Policy H-1.2:  Local Solutions to Attainable Housing 
o Policy H-1.3:  Integrated Affordable Housing iin 

Neighborhoods 
o Policy H-1.4:  Integrated Housing in Business and 

Mixed-Use Areas 
• Goal H-2:  The Ketchum community will support affordable 

housing programs. 
o Policy H-2.1:  Blaine County Housing Authority, 

ARCH Community Housing Trust and Ketchum 
Community Development Corporation (The City 
will partner with the above organizations to fulfill 
housing goals.) 

• Goal H-3:  Ketchum will have a mix of housing types and styles. 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission may attach conditions to a conditional use application approval as it 
determines necessary pursuant the provisions listed below in order to make the use more compatible with 
the vicinity and adjoining uses, mitigate impacts, and allow for health, safety and welfare, among other 
criteria by which CUPs are evaluated.  
 
17.116.050: CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:  
 
Upon the granting of a conditional use permit, the Commission may attach conditions to said permit pertaining 
to the proposed use, including, but not limited to, those: 
A.  Minimizing adverse impact on other development. 
B.  Controlling the sequence and timing of development. 
C.  Controlling the duration of development. 
D.  Assuring that development is maintained properly. 
E.  Designating the exact location and nature of development. 
F.  Requiring the provision for on site or off site public facilities or services. 
G. Requiring more restrictive standards than those generally required in an ordinance. 
H.  Requiring mitigation of effects of the proposed development upon service delivery by any political 

subdivision, including school districts, providing services within the city. (Ord. 208 § 22.5, 1974) 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Commission must consider the Lift Tower Lodge CUP application as it relates to the criteria used for 
evaluating such applications and has the option of approval or denial.  Staff recommends approval of the CUP 
with conditions of approval 1 – 5. 
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COMMISSION OPTIONS 
  
Suggested Motion: 
 
1. This project, Lift Tower Lodge Conditional Use Permit application for a public use does not meet the 

standards for approval under Chapter 17.116 of Ketchum Zoning Code Title 17 because of the 
following standards (Commission to insert reasons for denial); or, 

 
2. This project, Lift Tower Lodge Conditional Use Permit application for a public use does meet the 

standards for approval under Chapter 17.116 of Ketchum Zoning Code Title 17 with the following 
conditions. 

 
PROPOSED CONDITIONS 

1. Ketchum City Engineer, Streets, Utilities, Fire and Building Department requirements shall be met, 
including: 
• The fire department will require strict adherence to the Lift Tower Lodge House Rules and 

Regulations Tenant Guide;  
• The smoke detectors are the owners responsibility to maintain and as noted shall not be 

disabled or tampered with at any time; 
• No cooking devices other than the microwaves will be allowed in the rooms at any time;  
• Barbeques and other open flame cooking devices are required to be at least 10 feet from the 

building and  may not be used on combustible decks or balconies;  
• A minimum of one 10 pound fire extinguisher is required in each rental room and in the 

manager’s apartment; and 
• The Lodge shall post a notice informing residents of snow removal operations and the 

associated noise. 

2. An on site manager shall reside in the two (2) bedroom apartment at the Lift Tower Lodge and shall be 
available twenty-four (24) hours per day. 

3. This Conditional Use Permit shall be reevalated in a public hearing by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for compliance with all of the above CUP evaluation criteria and compliance with the 
conditions of approval twelve (12) months from the date of the Findings of Fact; 

4. Per Title 17, Section 17.116.080:  TERM OF PERMITS:  Conditional Use Permit approval shall expire one 
(1) year from the date of approval if not acted upon within that time frame; and 

5. This Conditional Use Permit approval is based on representations made and other components of the 
application presented and approved at the meeting on the date noted herein.   
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Attachment A: 
Conditional Use Permit Application Submittal,  

 
• Application, dated January 28, 2015 
• Narrative to Support Conditional Use Permit Application, received January 29, 

2015 
• Site Photos 

 
  



 

Conditional Use Permit Application Page 1 of  2 

 

 

                 File No.:__________ 

 

   CITY OF KETCHUM CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

 

Name of Applicant:__________________________________________________________________________

       

Name of Owner of Record:____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Mailing Address:____________________________________________________________________________  

 

Contact Phone Number:_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Street Address of Property Requiring a CUP:______________________________________________________ 

 

Legal Description of Property Requiring a CUP:____________________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Description of Proposed Conditional Use:_________________________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Description of Proposed and Existing Exterior Lighting:______________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Zoning District:______________________________ 

 

Overlay District:  Flood_____    Avalanche_____    Pedestrian_____    Mountain_____ 

 

The Applicant agrees in the event of a dispute concerning the interpretation or enforcement of the Conditional 

Use Permit Application in which the City of Ketchum is the prevailing party to pay reasonable attorney fees, 

including attorney fees on appeal, and expenses of the City of Ketchum.  I hereby acknowledge I have filled in 

this application accurately and provided the required information to the best of by knowledge. 

 

__________________________________________________  Date______________________ 

Applicant's Signature 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 08-123, any direct costs incurred by the City of Ketchum to review this application will be the responsibility of the applicant.  Costs 

include but are not limited to: engineer review, attorney review, legal noticing, and copying costs associated with the application.  The City will require a retainer to 

be paid by the applicant at the time of application submittal to cover said costs.  Following a decision or other closure of an application, the applicant will either be 

reimbursed for unexpended funds or billed for additional costs incurred by the City.  

Blaine County Housing Authority 

Lift Tower Lodge, LLC or Blaine County Housing Authority (depending on timing)

PO Box 4045, Ketchum, ID 83340

(208) 788-6102

703 South Main Street

KETCHUM FR SWSW TL 7983 SEC 18 4N 18E SURVEY 523394

Residential use of The Lift Tower Lodge

Existing Lighting to remain. Down-turned exterior lights. Tower is lit with

decorative lights year-round. 

T - Tourist

1/28/15
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P.O. Box 4045 
200 West River Street, Suite 103 
Ketchum, ID 83340 
 
 

Phone     ~ 208.788.6102  
Fax           ~ 208.788.6136  
Website ~ www.bcoha.org 
 

 
Narrative to Support Conditional Use Permit Application 

 
Introduction 
The Blaine County Housing Authority (BCHA) is applying for a conditional use permit to operate The Lift 
Tower Lodge as a public use. By approving this conditional use application, the City of Ketchum will enable 
BCHA to further its mission to provide “desirable and affordable housing choices in all areas of Blaine 
County.” 
 
Specifically, BCHA is applying for a permit to operate The Lift Tower Lodge as a residential use as 
allowed in the T -Tourist Zoning District.  
 
Background 
On November 1, 2014 The Lift Tower Lodge ceased operating as a motel. At that time, the BCHA was granted 
“full and exclusive use” of the property. We are currently operating the property under a separate agreement 
with the owner until BCHA takes title. We anticipate this will happen in late February or March.  
 
BCHA refrained from immediately utilizing the property out of respect for neighbors who expressed concerns 
about the change in ownership. On December 9, 2014 BCHA hosted a neighborhood meeting at the property. 
We discussed many topics at that meeting. 
 

1. We introduced our Good Neighbor Policy. 
2. We introduced other developments BCHA is associated with (Fields, Scott USA, Frenchman’s,                                                                             

Cold Springs Crossing, etc). 
3. We reviewed the existing design elements (14 rooms, two-bedroom apartment, 22 parking spaces,  

      on-site storage). 
4. We discussed the targeted resident demographic. We are not able to develop an exclusive list because  

      that would unnecessarily limit our ability to react and adapt to the changing needs of the community. 
      The current need, and the demographic we intend to serve, is low-income workers, first   
      responders, temporary workers and seasonal workers.  

5. Virtually all of the attendees expressed their strong desire that BCHA have an on-site manager living  
      in the two-bedroom apartment. BCHA has heard that desire loud and clear and we will have an on- 
      manager.  

6. BCHA committed to build our management capacity before filling the property to capacity.  
     Having an on-site manager is part of this capacity building.  
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7. Finally, we conducted an exercise where the attendees placed dots next to their preferred proposed use 
     of the property from a list of uses we compiled. (see attached photo) The uses presented included all                            
     suggestions BCHA had received since announcing the donation.  

 
     The majority of attendees indicated they would like to see BCHA sell the property for a market-rate 

      development. BCHA has considered this option and the board has determined that we can best serve  
      the community and our mission by keeping the property and using in its current form.    

 
Current Status 
Since the neighborhood meeting, we have donated rooms to Higher Ground and the Idaho School for the Deaf 
and Blind to house students and chaperones that came to Sun Valley for a ski program. We are also renting 
rooms, on a limited basis in accordance with #6 above, to low-income workers. These residents tend to be very 
low-income ($8-$9/hr) working in the food service and other resort sectors. They have access to cafeterias and 
other food service options. Previously, these residents were staying on friends or relatives couches, sleeping in 
cars or living in studio apartments with several other individuals. The Lift Tower Lodge has provided these 
workers with a better alternative.  
 
We have hired an on-site manager who is currently taking care of the property. He is a City of Sun Valley 
firefighter and will move into the manager’s apartment full-time on February 1, 2015.  
 
Restrictions and Constraints 
The rooms at The Lift Tower Lodge do not have kitchens and therefore do not meet the definition of a 
“dwelling unit” in the Ketchum Code. This has the effect of excluding the Lift Tower Lodge from the relatively 
unrestricted residential uses allowed in the T - Tourist district.  We are currently restricted to “short term 
occupancy” which is defined as not more than thirty (30) days in the Ketchum Code.  
 
The 30 day limit unnecessarily limits BCHA’s effectiveness in fulfilling our mission and the benefits that could 
be realized by the community. It limits the highest and best use of the property with respect to bridging the gap 
between low incomes and high rents that are typical in resort economies.   
 
Proposed Operation As A Public Use 
In Section 31-4202(c) the Idaho Legislature declares that “…the providing of safe and sanitary dwelling 
accommodations for persons of low income are public uses and purposes for which public money may be spent 
and private property acquired and are governmental functions.” (emphasis added)   
 
There should be no doubt that BCHA’s proposed use of The Lift Tower Lodge is a public use. By granting 
BCHA a conditional use permit to operate The Lift Tower Lodge as a public use, the City of Ketchum will 
allow residents to occupy a room for more than 30 days and allow BCHA to fulfill its obligation to the workers 
of Blaine County.  
 
BCHA does not believe The Lift Tower Lodge is a permanent solution for residents. We actively work with 
each resident to identify a permanent housing solution. It is very uncommon to find a permanent housing 
solution in less than 30 days. For example, the current waiting list for a Housing Choice Voucher from IHFA is 
2 years. Additionally, some of the workers who come to us are seasonal and are only seeking housing for the 
season, typically three or four months.  
 
BCHA is committed to maintaining an on-site manager and will accept this as a condition of approval. It has 
been made clear that the neighbors want this and we agree that an on-site manager is necessary for the 
successful operation and management of The Lift Tower Lodge.   
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CUP Standards & Criteria - Self evaluation 
 
A. The characteristics of the conditional use will not be unreasonably incompatible with the types of uses 
permitted in the applicable zoning district. 
 
 The Lift Tower Lodge is located within Ketchum’s T - Tourist zoning district. The purpose of the T - 
Tourist District is to “provide the opportunity for high density residential and tourist use…” (Ketchum Code 
17.52.070).  The characteristics of BCHA’s proposed public use is residential in nature and is completely 
compatible with the residential uses permitted in the Tourist District.  
 
B. The conditional use will not materially endanger the health, safety and welfare of the community. 
 
 BCHA’s proposed public use of the Lift Tower Lodge is virtually the same as the previous use with the 
potential for longer periods of residency. This use will not, in any way, endanger the health, safety or welfare of 
the community. We will primarily use two tools to ensure the integrity of the property:  

1) Residents will have to pass a background check; and  
2) The Lift Tower Lodge House Rules (attached) will be strictly enforced by the on-site manager and     

     BCHA staff.  

C. The conditional use is such that pedestrian and vehicular traffic associated with the use will not be 
hazardous or conflict with existing and anticipated traffic in the neighborhood. 

 The Lift Tower Lodge is accessed from Highway 75. We are not proposing any change in the pedestrian 
or vehicular use patterns from the previous use. At the neighborhood meeting we conducted, it was pointed out 
that the accumulation of snow piles along Highway 75 can present a hazard. The Lift Tower Lodge stores its 
snow at the back and on the side of the property where it does not present a hazard. The accumulation of snow 
piles along Highway 75 noted in the meeting is from neighboring properties to the north of the Lift Tower 
Lodge.  

D. The conditional use will be supported by adequate public facilities or services and will not adversely 
affect public services to the surrounding area, or conditions can be established to mitigate adverse 
impacts. 

 The Lift Tower Lodge was previously served by electric, gas, CATV, Clear Creek Disposal and the City 
of Ketchum water services. All of these services have been transferred to BCHA and will continue to serve the 
property. Additionally, The Lift Tower Lodge serves as a year-round Mountain Rides bus stop for the Valley 
Route as well as the Red Route stop in the winter season. Mountain Rides Green Route also serves the property 
with a stop at the Westridge Condos on Second Avenue. There will be no adverse impacts to mitigate.  

E. The conditional use is not in conflict with the policies of the comprehensive plan or the basic purposes 
of this chapter. 

 BCHA’s proposed use does not conflict with Ketchum’s Comprehensive Plan. To the contrary, many 
chapters specifically support our proposed public use; specifically Chapter 3: Housing.  

 
The Blaine County Housing Authority’s mission is to advocate, promote, plan and preserve the long-term supply of 

desirable and affordable housing choices in all areas of Blaine County in order to maintain an economically diverse and 
vibrant community. 
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Landlord reserves the right to prescribe additional rules and make changes to these rules and regulations 
below, as Landlord shall in its judgment determine to be necessary for the safety, care and cleanliness of the 
Premises and/or for the preservation of order of the Premises generally. The house rules and regulations 
apply to all members of the household and household’s guest(s) and visitors. If any members of the 
household or its guest(s) or visitors violate any of the House Rules and Regulations or terms of the lease, the 
household may be evicted. 
 
If and when a household is charged for any type of damage and/or cleaning, caused by a member of the 
household or caused by the household’s guests/visitors, the owed amount must be paid within 30 days of 
invoice. 
 

1- Noise. All radios, televisions, stereos, voices, etc., must be kept to a level of sound that does not violate 
ordinances, annoy or interfere with the neighbors.  Special care should be exercised between 10:00 pm 
and 8:00 am. Tenants are responsible for insuring that disturbing noises are not caused by Tenants 
family or guest.  

2- Vehicles must be moved for snow removal. Every attempt will be made to clear snow before 7:30 am 
when snow has accumulated the night before. The snow removal contractor will return later in the day 
to clean up areas he was not able to clear in the morning. All vehicles shall be moved to cleared areas 
prior to this “second pass.” BCHA reserves the right to tow vehicles, at the owner’s expense, to 
accommodate snow removal.  

3- Tenant shall not make mechanical repairs and/or oil changes to motor vehicles (including 
motorcycles) on the Premises.   

4- No trailers of any kind are permitted to park in the parking area.  Only vehicles or motorcycles may be 
parked in parking area. Tenant shall be limited to one car unless Landlord expressly approves an 
additional vehicle. Tenant shall provide the make, model and license plate number to the Landlord.  

5- Tenant shall not be allowed to keep or store any non-operative vehicle on the Premises and if Tenant 
abandons a vehicle on the Premises or there is an unauthorized vehicle on the Premises under Idaho 
law, Tenant gives Landlord authorization to remove the vehicle at Tenants expense for storage, or 
public or private sale at Landlord option and Tenant or the owner of the vehicle shall have no right of 
recourse against Landlord.  

6- Tenants shall not keep any furniture, grills or any other personal belongings outside of the rooms. 
7- The use of any open flame stove, hot plate or any other cooking device in the rooms other than a 

microwave is strictly prohibited.    
8- The Lift Tower Lodge is a Smoke Free/Drug Free Environment. Smoking is not allowed anywhere on 

the Premises.  
9- BCHA strongly recommends that all Tenants have renters insurance.  
10- Intimidation, harassment, verbal abuse, physical threat or violence or social misconduct of or to any 

employee of The Blaine County Housing Authority or its Representatives, residents and/or his/her 
guest(s) is prohibited. 

11- Guest. Tenant shall be responsible and liable for the conduct of guest and family members.  Acts of 
guests/Family members in violation of this lease of Landlords rules and regulations may be deemed by 
Landlord to be a breach by the Tenant. Tenant must obtain the express written consent of the 
Landlord for any overnight guest.     
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12- Entrances, walks, lawns, stairways, common area and driveways shall not be obstructed, shall be kept 
clear of all obstructions, including but not limited to snow and rubbish and used only for the sole 
purpose of ingress and egress. 

13- Locks. Tenant is prohibited from adding locks to, changing or in any other way altering locks installed 
on doors. All keys must be returned to Landlord upon termination of Tenants occupancy. 

14- Lockout. If Tenant becomes locked out of Premises, Tenant will be required to pay a $35 service 
charge to regain entry. 

15- There shall be no storage of any kind outside a room. I.E. Bikes, Skis, Snow Boards etc.  
16- Any additions or changes to the window coverings and affixed room furnishings are prohibited. 
17- Picture hangers employing a thin nail or pin and adhesive picture hangers of any kind are prohibited. 

Tenant is responsible for the cost of any repairs or painting required as a result of the hanging of 
pictures or other objects. 

18- Awnings, radio antennas, TV antennas, satellite dishes, wires of any type or other aerial projections 
are prohibited.  

19- In order to avoid possible damage to the property and plumbing system during cold weather, your unit 
must maintain a minimum temperature of 55 degrees Fahrenheit. 

20- Storage: No goods or materials of any kind or description, which are combustible or would increase the 
fire risk or shall in any way increase the fire insurance rate with respect to the Premises or any law or 
regulation, may be taken or placed in a storage area or the Premises itself. Storage in all such areas 
shall be at the Tenants risk and Landlord shall not be responsible for any loss or damage.   

21- Any environmental hazards, as defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation 
and Liability Act, known as CERCLA, or any other federal or state law which Tenant causes by 
negligence or otherwise or permits to be placed on the Premises shall be the sole responsibility of 
Tenant and Tenant shall indemnity and hold Landlord harmless for any and all monies expended or 
damages incurred by Landlord as a result of such environmental hazard.  

22- Smoke Detectors: All units are equipped with working smoke detectors.  It is the responsibility of the 
Tenant to notify the Property Management or a representative of BCHA when and if the smoke 
detector is not functioning properly. Tampering with, disconnecting, removing or damaging the 
smoke detector(s) will result in the cost to replace and/or reinstall the smoke detector and/or possible 
termination of your lease. It is a violation of the law to remove or tamper with a properly functioning 
smoke detector, including removing working batteries. 

23- For the safety and protection of all residents, guests and visitors the speed limit within the property is 
5MPH.   

24- All keys to the unit must be returned at the time of move-out. The unit must be returned in the same 
condition it was originally in. This condition includes but is not limited to the unit being clean, 
decent, sanitary and undamaged. Reasonable wear and tear is anticipated and acceptable. The return 
of unit key(s) will constitute possession of the unit. Any belongings left in the unit after BCHA 
assumes possession of the unit, shall be disposed of in accordance with state and local law. 

25- Any household moving into the unit or out of a unit must do so between the hours of 9:00 A.M. & 
8:00 P.M. A unit inspection will be conducted on the day of move-in. A unit will also be inspected on 
the day Tenant moves out and when unit is fully vacated. 

26- The use of any type of weapon, firearm, dangerous object, fireworks, or hazardous materials is 
prohibited anywhere on or within the property. 

27- Storage of containers of flammable fluids or explosive materials (e.g. propane tanks) within the unit, 
storage area, or adjacent to the building exterior, is strictly prohibited.   
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28- Each household is responsible for the care and use of each appliance & fixture in his/her unit. Failure 
to maintain a clean or sanitary appliance could cause damage to the appliance and/or could 
cause a health risk to the household and/or property. Households are not allowed to add or remove 
appliances into or from the unit. Damage to any appliance due to Tenants neglect or misuse will result 
in Tenant paying for either repair or replacement of appliance.  

29- No signs, advertisements, notices, other letterings, or flyers are to be exhibited, inscribed, painted, or 
affixed, by any resident and/or guest of resident, on or to any part of the exterior of the apartment 
building or apartment community property is strictly prohibitive.  

30- Littering is prohibited. 
31- Termination of tenancy may result if the police are called to the property due to any type of 

disturbance or violation. Additionally, if the police are called for serious disturbances, serious lease 
violations, or have been called repeatedly, termination of the lease will result for the household(s) 
involved. Police have the right to enter the property and the power to make arrests as needed, within 
the law.  EXCEPTION: Any resident who becomes a victim due to Domestic Violence should contact 
the public authority immediately!  Doing so WILL NOT result in a lease violation.  

32- Trash Enclosure/Recycling:  In order to preserve the appearance and cleanliness of your building and 
unit, Tenants shall take care to prevent waste from dropping or spilling on carpeting, concrete and 
walkways when disposing refuse. Tenants are required to cooperate with all recycling programs that 
are in effect.  Refuse and recycling must be placed in the designated containers.  

33- Deliveries: Landlord is not responsible for the delivery or acceptance of damage to or loss of messages, 
packages, mail or other material left at the entrances to the building or elsewhere on the premises.  

34- If the household is planning to be away from the unit for a period that is longer than seven days, the 
Landlord or its Representative or BCHA must be notified. In case of an emergency we recommend 
leaving an alternative method of contact.  

35- Verbal requests to notify Landlord, its Representative or BCHA of household changes are not allowed.   
36- Agreements between resident and Landlord, its Representative or BCHA must be in writing; Verbal 

agreements of any kind will not be accepted.  
37- In order to prevent the growth of mold and mildew in the unit, residents must maintain a sanitary unit 

and inform Landlord, it’s Representative or BCHA of any water leaks, water overflows, excessive 
moisture, or inoperable exhaust fans. 
 
 
 
 

               
 Landlord/Management      Date 
 
 
              
 Tenant         Date 
 
 
              
 Tenant         Date 

 



Aerial View of the Site 

Aerial View of the Parking Area 



Street View of Lift Tower Lodge 

Street View of Lift Tower Lodge 2 



Highway 75 Heading South towards Lift Tower Lodge 



Attachment B: 
Public Comment 

 
• Mike and Jane Nicolais, dated February 16, 2015 
• Julie Dahlgren, dated February 17, 2015 



From: Mike Nicolais [mailto:mnicolais@Highlander-Partners.com]  
Sent: Monday, February 16, 2015 11:06 AM 
To: Participate 
Cc: Evan Robertson; Jane; garyvinagre@hotmail.com 
Subject: Concerns and questions about BCHA's application for Lift Tower Lodge conditional use permit 
 
 
Commission members: 
 
>>> My family owns the home directly across the street from the Lift  
>>>Tower Lodge. Our address is 104 Garnet Street and our side yard  
>>>fronts Main Street.  We have questions we would like to have  
>>>addressed as you consider the conditional use permit being applied  
>>>for by the Blaine County Housing Authority. 
>>>  
>>> 1. The BCHA does not yet own the property. Are they technically  
>>>allowed to apply for the permit prior to the ownership change?  Why  
>>>has the ownership change not taken place? 
>>> 2. In communication to neighbors, the BCHA said they would have a  
>>>full time on site manager.  During our neighborhood meeting in early  
>>>December this was the single most important issue brought up by us  
>>>and other neighbors. Dave Patrie's recent email to us introduced a  
>>>gentleman selected to be the on site manager.  He is a local  
>>>firefighter and snow maker for Sun Valley. He sounds like a terrific  
>>>guy.  Our question/concern is the following: the on site manager  
>>>selected by the BCHA works full time.  Unless we are  
>>>misunderstanding, he will not be physically on site a lot of the time- after all, he works full time. 
>>>While the property was operated as a motel, there was a full time on  
>>>site manager.  I don't believe the BCHA's selection of the on site  
>>>manager is consistent with the concerns of neighbors to have a full  
>>>time on site manager. 
>>> 3. BCHA has also stated they will do background checks on potential  
>>>residents. Could they specify what findings in the background checks  
>>>will disqualify applicants?  Also, we have heard from a good friend  
>>>and current employee of the Sun Valley company that at least a couple  
>>>of the current tenants at the Lift Tower were expelled from the  
>>>company dorms at Sun Valley for "fighting, drinking to excess and/or  
>>>drug use".  Will BCHA be willing, in addition to background checks,  
>>>be willing to certify that this is not true and in the future, to  
>>>require an "employee in good standing" certificate (or something  
>>>similar) from Sun Valley Company before accepting the applicant for residency? 
>>> 4. The rooms at the lodge have no cooking facilities.  We have  
>>>concerns that residents will bring cooking instruments into their  
>>>rooms. What assurances can BCHA give that a fire hazard will not be  
>>>created?  Will there be periodic room inspections for such things?  
>>>While operated as a motel, there were motel employees in the rooms  
>>>daily to check on such things. 
>>> 5. What time limits, if any, will there be for residency? 

mailto:mnicolais@Highlander-Partners.com
mailto:garyvinagre@hotmail.com


>>> 6. What taxpayer funds will be used, if any, to subsidize the  
>>>operations of this facility, including tax abatements or other forms  
>>>of subsidization? 
>>> 7. A couple of years ago, we applied to you to remove a building and  
>>>build a fence around our property.  All of our requests were within  
>>>the existing building code for the city- we were not requesting any  
>>>variances. Nonetheless, we worked collaboratively with you and  
>>>adjusted our plans (at several thousand dollars of personal expense)  
>>>to be good neighbors and to address your concerns about the  
>>>importance of the "entrance to the city". (We are the first property  
>>>on the road immediately north of Reinheimer Ranch).  What  
>>>requirements do you plan to impose on the BCHA to make sure the  
>>>"entrance to the city" is maintained at the same level that was  
>>>required of us?  The essence of this question has to do with the  
>>>general upkeep and appearance of the facility.  I am skeptical of  
>>>BCHA's financial wherewithal to adequately maintain the building and  
>>>am concerned about the appearance of the gateway to Ketchum. 
>     
>>>  
>>>  
>>> Thank you and we look forward to responses to our questions. 
>>>  
>>> Regards, 
>>> Mike and Jane Nicolais 
>>> 104 Garnet Street 
>>> Ketchum, Idaho 83340 
>>> P.O. Box 1806 
>>>  
>>>  
>>> Sent from my iPad 
 



Memo 
To :   Ketchum Planning & Zoning Commission 
From   :    Julie Dahlgren 
Subj.   :     CUP application for BCHA’s Lift Tower Lodge 
Date    :     February 17, 2015 
 
Although I support the efforts Ketchum is making for providing affordable housing, I do 
not support this proposal for the following reasons.   
 
1)  The “new” Lift Tower Lodge is operating as a motel.  Why would the City of 
Ketchum go against its motel rules of a maximum of a 30-day stay?  Is the motel really a 
boarding house and do different rules apply for that designation? 
 
2)  Why require strict landscaping requirements for the residence across the street from 
the Lift Tower Lodge, but not require anything for esthetics on the opposite side of 
Highway 75?  What are you planning for the entrance of Ketchum in the near future as 
Highway 75 is enhanced, a roundabout proposed, and more worker housing suggested on 
Serenade and 2nd Ave?   
 
3)  The employee hired to manage the new Lift Tower Lodge cannot be on duty 24 hours 
as he has other jobs.  This is concerning because Mr. Patrie guaranteed the neighbors a 
full time manager, similar to the usual motel model. Twenty-four hour management is 
necessary to take care of problems such as sewer leaks, smoking violations, pet 
violations, cars leaving the parking lot unsafely, and all sorts of challenges that arise from 
higher density living conditions. 
 
4)  There are no kitchens, linens, or laundry facilities for the tenants, and no plans for 
remodeling the 200 sq. ft. rooms.  Could this be because the rooms and building are not 
up to code?  There are no plans to upgrade the look of the building or a maintenance 
schedule.   
 
5)  The response from Mr. Patrie about smoking violations (marijuana, cigars, cigarettes) 
was answered promptly by an email about #8 Lift Tower Lodge House Rules and 
Regulations in the Tenant Guide.  In that e-mail he guaranteed that proper receptacles 
would be placed in a “No Smoking Area.”   This should not have been an issue if the 
tenants had observed the Smoke Free/Drug Free Environment Rule as well as Ketchum’s 
smoke-free law.  
 
6)  The existing exterior lighting includes the antique lift tower decorated with bold red 
and green Christmas lights.  Would the P&Z consider having the current Lift Tower 
Lodge comply with the Dark Sky Ordinance 743, Section 3.2.d allowing holiday lighting 
from November 1 – April 15 only instead of every night all year?   
 



7)  If, on February 23, 2015, the P&Z Commission approves the CUP application, I 
suggest a review of that decision in a reasonable period of time.  I am assuming that 
because tenants will now be allowed unlimited stays, the review of not enforcing the 
motel requirement of a maximum 30-day maximum stay will set a precedent for other 
motels. 
 
Thank you for reading this public comment into the records. I cannot attend the February 
23rd meeting to engage in the conversation about BCHA’s CUP application for the Lift 
Tower Lodge. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Dr. Julie S. Dahlgren 
Box 4402 
103 Garnet Street 
Ketchum, ID  83340 
 
(208) 726-2505 
juliesd@cox.net 
 



Invoice
Date

2/3/2015

Invoice #

79320

Bill To

LIFT TOWER LODGE
703 MAIN STREET SOUTH
KETCHUM, ID 83340

Sweet's Septic Tank & Backhoe Service

403 S. Rail St. W.
Shoshone, ID 83352

Phone #

208-886-2297

Web Site

www.sweetsservices.com

Total

Description Amount

425.00
225.00

20.00
Sales Tax 0.00

$670.00



XfvL , 

BALANCE 
.-1,2 s 

CHARGES CREDITS 

S " 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

Pumped Pump Station 

Inline T.V. Inspection/Locating 

Line Cleaning Snaked ❑ Sewer Jetted 

aoo  0. 00  

Plumbing 

Dumping Charge 

Digging 

Fuel 

Parts 

	d .20 

Pressure Wash 

CREDIT CARD ❑ CASH ❑ CHECK # 	 AMOUNT PAID 	  TOTAL DUE 

❑ place 

Septic Tank over 50 feet from well 	Yes° Unknown ❑ No0 Outlet Baffle in place Yes ❑ No ❑ 

Drain Field over 100 feet from well Yes ❑ Unknown ❑ No ❑ Wants riser installed Yes ❑ No ❑ 

Did not want line cleaned Yes Ei-VNo ❑ Plumbing Water Yes ❑ No ❑ 

2 Week guarantee on pipes cleaned Yes 0 No Er Plumbing Sewer Yes ❑ No ❑ 

Inlet Baffle in Yes No ❑ ❑ field Yes No appears to be working at this time ❑ 

Kitchen Sink ❑ 
Wash Machine ❑ 	Bathroom Sink ❑ 

Bath Tub 	❑ 

COMMENTS OR MAINTENANCE r1EEDED: 

Main Line 
Toilet 	❑ 

Floor Drain ❑ 

Roof Vent ❑ 
Drain Field ❑ 
Rain Gutters ❑ 

SEWER rid DR/1/17 
CLE11/7/11G 

403 S. RAIL ST. WEST 
SHosHONE, ID 83352 

DAVE PATTERSON 
President 

TECHNICIAN 

DATE  — 3  

TICKET # 17?  7../ Lia 

SWEET'S SEPTIC TANK & BACKHOE SERVICE INC.  INVOICE 

Offi
Mal" 208.886.2297 

ce 
Hayey 208.788.0245 

twin Falls 208.733.2288 
guise 208.342.1947 

"It's a dirtyjob but someone's gotta do it" 
LINE CLEANING, INSTALLATION, & REPAIRS 

 
    

NAME 

PHONE # 

ADDRESS 

    

    

    

WORK PERFORMED AT: 

LINES CLE ED: 

79320 

BILL T 

TERMS: AMOUNT DUE ON INVOICE UNLESS APPROVED. ACCOUNTS ARE DUE THE 10TH OF THE MONTH FOLLOWING PURCHASE. 
A 1.75% FINANCE CHARGE (21% ANNUAL RATE) (MINIMUM $3.00 BIWNG FEE) WILL BE CHARGED ON ALL PAST DUE ACCOUNTS. 
IF COLLECTION IS MADE WITH OR WITHOUT SUIT. THE UNDERSIGNED AGREES TO PAY ALL COURT COSTS AND ATTORNEY FEES. 

— W444 1/ Ole — 
SIGNATURE Owner not home ❑ 
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

Client: Blaine County Housing Authority Home: (208) 788-6102
Property: 703 S Main

Ketchum, ID 83340
Billing: PO Box 4045

Ketchum, ID 83340

Operator: TV

Estimator: Brad Mantz Business: (855) 733-9111
E-mail: brad@the-restorers.comBusiness: 720 N Main Unit A

Bellevue, ID 83313

Type of Estimate: Sewage
Date Entered: 2/3/2015 Date Assigned: 2/3/2015

Date Est. Completed: 2/12/2015 Date Job Completed:

Price List: IDSV8X_FEB15
Labor Efficiency: Restoration/Service/Remodel

Estimate: 6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E

We have established the Category and Class of this loss based on observations made during the initial inspection and followed
by a detailed inspection. Unless specifically directed otherwise, we have instituted drying strategies using our understanding of
accepted standards of practice including the value of materials and the likelihood of  returning  those materials to pre-loss
condition.

To meet common insurer's requirements, descriptions of individual items in this recap of services are input using computerized
estimating software and pricing databases containing approximated pricing information and generalized work specifications.
Due to this standardized formatting, the computer generated descriptions of work performed tend to be imprecise and based upon
typical mitigation scenarios. Any line item entry should be understood to contain the suffix "or similar, comparable or
equivalent" to account for any lack of accuracy inherent in such a system. Based upon our knowledge, experience and training,
we may have employed alternative methods deemed appropriate to provide equal or more efficient results in mitigating damage.
We do not generally rent equipment and any descriptions suggesting equipment rental may be extrapolated from mitigation
configurations described in the IICRC S-500-2006 Standard and Reference Guides for Professional Water Damage Restoration
or similar documents.
Please be advised that while we may cooperate with your insurance carrier, we are not working for your insurance carrier. Our
contract is with and we work for the property owner. While we may be called upon to express opinions and to assist in
developing a scope of work to complete repairs/restoration, we do not control terms of the insurance policy, we do not decide
what is covered and what is not covered by insurance and we do not control dollar amounts paid by the insurance that may be in
force
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 2

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E

Main Level
Main Level

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

1.  Emergency service call - during 1.00 EA 0.00 145.23 0.00 145.23
business hours

2.  Equipment setup, take down, and 6.00 HR 0.00 49.58 0.00 297.48
monitoring (hourly charge)

3.  Air mover (per 24 hour period) - No 5.00 EA 0.00 28.10 0.00 140.50
monitoring

4.  Haul debris - per pickup truck load - 1.00 EA 109.58 0.00 0.00 109.58
including dump fees

5.  Add for personal protective 3.00 EA 0.00 11.02 1.76 34.82
equipment (hazardous cleanup)

6.  Disposable rain suit 3.00 EA 0.00 9.83 2.36 31.85

7.  Personal protective gloves - Heavy 3.00 EA 0.00 3.98 0.96 12.90
duty (per pair)

8.  Respirator - Full face - multi- 3.00 DA 0.00 7.61 0.00 22.83
purpose resp. (per day)

9.  Respirator cartridge - organic vapor 3.00 EA 0.00 13.97 3.35 45.26
& acid gas (per pair)

Total:  Main Level 8.43 840.45

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10
Closet

18
' 9

"

19
' 5

"

2' 6"

7"
7' 7"

7' 11"

11
' 1

"
10

' 1
1"

2'
 6

"
4'

 1
0"

4"

10' 6"
11'

Room 7 Height: 8'

468.00 SF Walls
664.88 SF Walls & Ceiling
21.88 SY Flooring
58.50 LF Ceil. Perimeter

196.88 SF Ceiling
196.88 SF Floor
58.50 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into Exterior

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into BATH_7

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

10.  Floor protection - self-adhesive 30.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.29 11.99
plastic film

Totals:  Room 7 0.29 11.99
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 3

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10

Closet

7'
 6

"

4' 6"

4' 10"

2'
 6

"
4'

 1
0"

4" 2"

4' 8"

Bath 7 Height: 8'

192.00 SF Walls
225.75 SF Walls & Ceiling

3.75 SY Flooring
24.00 LF Ceil. Perimeter

33.75 SF Ceiling
33.75 SF Floor
24.00 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_7

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

11.  Clean bathroom fixtures - Heavy 1.00 EA 0.00 103.07 0.04 103.11

12.  Clean floor - Heavy 67.50 SF 0.00 0.58 0.05 39.20

Clean the floor twice - or equivalent.

13.  Clean part of the walls - Heavy 96.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.08 37.52

Clean the lower portion of the walls - or equivalent.

14.  Clean door - with detail (per side) 2.00 EA 0.00 9.60 0.04 19.24

15.  Apply biological cleaning agent 129.75 SF 0.00 0.24 0.52 31.66
(spore-based)

Apply disinfecting agent - or equivalent.

16.  Clean shower curtain - Full service 1.00 EA 0.00 21.88 0.00 21.88

Totals:  Bath 7 0.73 252.61

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10
Closet

10
' 1

1"

11
' 1

"

4' 8"

4' 6"2' 6"

4' 8"

4' 6"

2' 6"

6"

11' 4"

11' 6"

Room 8 Height: 8'

401.33 SF Walls
555.99 SF Walls & Ceiling
17.18 SY Flooring
50.17 LF Ceil. Perimeter

154.65 SF Ceiling
154.65 SF Floor
50.17 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into BATH_8

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into Exterior

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

17.  Floor protection - self-adhesive 30.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.29 11.99
plastic film

Totals:  Room 8 0.29 11.99
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 4

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10

Closet

4' 6"

4' 10"

7'
 6

"

2' 6"6" 1' 10"

Bath 8 Height: 8'

192.00 SF Walls
225.75 SF Walls & Ceiling

3.75 SY Flooring
24.00 LF Ceil. Perimeter

33.75 SF Ceiling
33.75 SF Floor
24.00 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_8

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

18.  Clean bathroom fixtures - Heavy 1.00 EA 0.00 103.07 0.04 103.11

19.  Clean floor - Heavy 67.50 SF 0.00 0.58 0.05 39.20

Clean the floor twice - or equivalent.

20.  Clean part of the walls - Heavy 96.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.08 37.52

Clean the lower portion of the walls - or equivalent.

21.  Clean door - with detail (per side) 2.00 EA 0.00 9.60 0.04 19.24

22.  Apply biological cleaning agent 129.75 SF 0.00 0.24 0.52 31.66
(spore-based)

Apply disinfecting agent - or equivalent.

23.  Clean shower curtain - Full service 1.00 EA 0.00 21.88 0.00 21.88

Totals:  Bath 8 0.73 252.61

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10
Closet

3'

9" 7"
2"

14
' 1

0"
14

' 8
"

11' 4"
11' 8"

2'
 6

"
4'

 1
0"

2"
10

' 1
1"

11
' 1

"

Room 9 Height: 8'

481.33 SF Walls
693.83 SF Walls & Ceiling
23.61 SY Flooring
60.17 LF Ceil. Perimeter

212.50 SF Ceiling
212.50 SF Floor
60.17 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 3' X 6' 8" Opens into ENTRY

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into BATH_9

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

24.  Floor protection - self-adhesive 30.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.29 11.99
plastic film

25.  Contents - move out then reset 0.50 EA 0.00 52.33 0.00 26.17

Move contents to store contents from rooms 10, 11 & 12 - or equivalent.

Totals:  Room 9 0.29 38.16
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 5

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10

Closet4' 8"

7'
 6

"

4' 6"

4' 10"

2'
 6

"
4'

 1
0"

2" 4"

Bath 9 Height: 8'

192.00 SF Walls
225.75 SF Walls & Ceiling

3.75 SY Flooring
24.00 LF Ceil. Perimeter

33.75 SF Ceiling
33.75 SF Floor
24.00 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_9

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

26.  Clean bathroom fixtures - Heavy 1.00 EA 0.00 103.07 0.04 103.11

27.  Clean floor - Heavy 67.50 SF 0.00 0.58 0.05 39.20

Clean the floor twice - or equivalent.

28.  Clean part of the walls - Heavy 96.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.08 37.52

Clean the lower portion of the walls - or equivalent.

29.  Clean door - with detail (per side) 2.00 EA 0.00 9.60 0.04 19.24

30.  Apply biological cleaning agent 129.75 SF 0.00 0.24 0.52 31.66
(spore-based)

Apply disinfecting agent - or equivalent.

31.  Clean shower curtain - Full service 1.00 EA 0.00 21.88 0.00 21.88

Totals:  Bath 9 0.73 252.61
Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10

Closet

3'

7" 9"
2"

4'

3' 6"

8"

6"

8"

Entry Height: 8'

124.00 SF Walls
139.00 SF Walls & Ceiling

1.67 SY Flooring
15.50 LF Ceil. Perimeter

15.00 SF Ceiling
15.00 SF Floor
15.50 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 3' X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_10

Door 3' X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_9

Door 3' X 6' 8" Opens into Exterior

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

32.  Floor protection - self-adhesive 15.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.14 5.99
plastic film

Totals:  Entry 0.14 5.99
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 6

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10
Closet

3'
7" 9"

2"
2'

 6
"

11
' 4

"
11

' 6
"

10' 6"
10' 10"

2'
 6

"
4'

 9
"

5"
11

' 1
"

10
' 1

1"

Room 10 Height: 8'

468.00 SF Walls
664.88 SF Walls & Ceiling
21.88 SY Flooring
58.50 LF Ceil. Perimeter

196.88 SF Ceiling
196.88 SF Floor
58.50 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 3' X 6' 8" Opens into ENTRY

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into CLOSET

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into BATH_10

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

33.  Contents - move out then reset 0.50 EA 0.00 52.33 0.00 26.17

Move contents to another room - or equivalent.

34.  Water extraction from carpeted 80.00 SF 0.00 1.23 0.00 98.40
floor - Category 3 water

35.  Tear out wet non-salvageable 196.88 SF 0.71 0.00 0.94 140.72
carpet, cut/bag - Cat 3 water

36.  Tear out wet carpet pad, cut/bag - 196.88 SF 0.68 0.00 0.94 134.82
Category 3 water

37.  Floor prep (scrape rubber back 196.88 SF 0.00 0.58 0.00 114.19
residue)

Padding was glued to the concrete - or equivalent.

38.  Tear out tackless strip and bag for 12.00 LF 1.00 0.00 0.07 12.07
disposal - Category 3

39.  Tear out baseboard 11.00 LF 0.42 0.00 0.00 4.62

40.  Clean floor - Heavy 393.75 SF 0.00 0.58 0.32 228.70

Clean floor twice - or equivalent.

41.  Apply biological cleaning agent 196.88 SF 0.00 0.24 0.79 48.04
(spore-based)

42.  Clean more than the floor 117.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.09 45.72
perimeter - Heavy

Clean lower 2' of wall perimeter - or equivalent.

Totals:  Room 10 3.15 853.45



7

REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 7

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10

Closet

7'
 6

"

4' 6"

4' 10"

2'
 6

"
4'

 9
"

5" 3"

4' 8"

Bath 10 Height: 8'

192.00 SF Walls
225.75 SF Walls & Ceiling

3.75 SY Flooring
24.00 LF Ceil. Perimeter

33.75 SF Ceiling
33.75 SF Floor
24.00 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_10

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

43.  Clean bathroom fixtures - Heavy 1.00 EA 0.00 103.07 0.04 103.11

44.  Clean floor - Heavy 67.50 SF 0.00 0.58 0.05 39.20

Clean the floor twice - or equivalent.

45.  Clean part of the walls - Heavy 96.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.08 37.52

Clean the lower portion of the walls - or equivalent.

46.  Clean door - with detail (per side) 2.00 EA 0.00 9.60 0.04 19.24

47.  Apply biological cleaning agent 129.75 SF 0.00 0.24 0.52 31.66
(spore-based)

Apply disinfecting agent - or equivalent.

48.  Clean shower curtain - Full service 1.00 EA 0.00 21.88 0.00 21.88

Totals:  Bath 10 0.73 252.61

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10
Closet

14
' 1

0"
14

' 8
"

4'
4' 4"

2'
 6

"

11
' 4

"

11
' 6

"

Closet Height: 8'

298.67 SF Walls
357.33 SF Walls & Ceiling

6.52 SY Flooring
37.33 LF Ceil. Perimeter

58.67 SF Ceiling
58.67 SF Floor
37.33 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_10

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

49.  Contents - move out then reset 1.00 EA 0.00 52.33 0.00 52.33

50.  Water extraction from hard surface 58.67 SF 0.00 0.76 0.00 44.59
floor - Cat 3 water

51.  Water Extraction & Remediation 1.50 HR 0.00 49.58 0.00 74.37
Technician - per hour

Clean contents removed from the closet before they were reset - or equivalent.

52.  Clean floor - Heavy 117.33 SF 0.00 0.58 0.09 68.14
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 8

CONTINUED - Closet

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TOTALTAX

53.  Apply biological cleaning agent 58.67 SF 0.00 0.24 0.23 14.31
(spore-based)

54.  Clean door (per side) 2.00 EA 0.00 6.42 0.03 12.87

Totals:  Closet 0.35 266.61

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10
Closet

10
' 1

1"

11
' 1

"

4' 8"

4' 6"2' 6"

4' 8"

4' 6"

3' 10' 7"

10' 9"

7"

9"

Room 11 Height: 8'

401.33 SF Walls
555.99 SF Walls & Ceiling
17.18 SY Flooring
50.17 LF Ceil. Perimeter

154.65 SF Ceiling
154.65 SF Floor
50.17 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into BATH_11

Door 3' X 6' 8" Opens into Exterior

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

55.  Contents - move out then reset 0.50 EA 0.00 52.33 0.00 26.17

Move contents to another room - or equivalent.

56.  Water extraction from carpeted 154.65 SF 0.00 1.23 0.00 190.22
floor - Category 3 water

57.  Tear out wet non-salvageable 154.65 SF 0.71 0.00 0.74 110.54
carpet, cut/bag - Cat 3 water

58.  Tear out wet carpet pad, cut/bag - 154.65 SF 0.68 0.00 0.74 105.90
Category 3 water

59.  Floor prep (scrape rubber back 154.65 SF 0.00 0.58 0.00 89.70
residue)

Padding was glued to the concrete - or equivalent.

60.  Tear out tackless strip and bag for 1.00 LF 1.00 0.00 0.01 1.01
disposal - Category 3

61.  Clean floor - Heavy 309.31 SF 0.00 0.58 0.25 179.65

Clean floor twice - or equivalent.

62.  Apply biological cleaning agent 154.65 SF 0.00 0.24 0.62 37.74
(spore-based)

63.  Clean more than the floor 100.33 SF 0.00 0.39 0.08 39.21
perimeter - Heavy

Clean lower 2' of wall perimeter - or equivalent.

Totals:  Room 11 2.44 780.14
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 9

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10

Closet

4' 6"

4' 10"

7'
 6

"

2' 6"
1' 10" 6"

Bath 11 Height: 8'

192.00 SF Walls
225.75 SF Walls & Ceiling

3.75 SY Flooring
24.00 LF Ceil. Perimeter

33.75 SF Ceiling
33.75 SF Floor
24.00 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_11

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

64.  Clean bathroom fixtures - Heavy 1.00 EA 0.00 103.07 0.04 103.11

65.  Clean floor - Heavy 67.50 SF 0.00 0.58 0.05 39.20

Clean the floor twice - or equivalent.

66.  Clean part of the walls - Heavy 96.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.08 37.52

Clean the lower portion of the walls - or equivalent.

67.  Clean door - with detail (per side) 2.00 EA 0.00 9.60 0.04 19.24

68.  Apply biological cleaning agent 129.75 SF 0.00 0.24 0.52 31.66
(spore-based)

Apply disinfecting agent - or equivalent.

69.  Clean shower curtain - Full service 1.00 EA 0.00 21.88 0.00 21.88

Totals:  Bath 11 0.73 252.61

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10
Closet

18
' 9

"

19
' 5

"

11' 4"
11' 10"

2'
 6

"
4'

 1
0"

2"
10

' 1
1"

11
' 1

"

3' 7' 9"

8' 1"
7"
9"

Room 12 Height: 8'

481.33 SF Walls
693.83 SF Walls & Ceiling
23.61 SY Flooring
60.17 LF Ceil. Perimeter

212.50 SF Ceiling
212.50 SF Floor
60.17 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into BATH_12

Door 3' X 6' 8" Opens into Exterior

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

70.  Contents - move out then reset 0.50 EA 0.00 52.33 0.00 26.17

Move contents to another room - or equivalent.

71.  Water extraction from carpeted 212.50 SF 0.00 1.23 0.00 261.38
floor - Category 3 water

72.  Tear out wet non-salvageable 212.50 SF 0.71 0.00 1.02 151.90
carpet, cut/bag - Cat 3 water
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 10

CONTINUED - Room 12

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TOTALTAX

73.  Tear out wet carpet pad, cut/bag - 212.50 SF 0.68 0.00 1.02 145.52
Category 3 water

74.  Floor prep (scrape rubber back 212.50 SF 0.00 0.58 0.00 123.25
residue)

Padding was glued to the concrete - or equivalent.

75.  Tear out tackless strip and bag for 60.17 LF 1.00 0.00 0.34 60.51
disposal - Category 3

76.  Tear out baseboard 11.00 LF 0.42 0.00 0.00 4.62

77.  Clean floor - Heavy 425.00 SF 0.00 0.58 0.34 246.84

Clean floor twice - or equivalent.

78.  Apply biological cleaning agent 212.50 SF 0.00 0.24 0.85 51.85
(spore-based)

79.  Clean more than the floor 120.33 SF 0.00 0.39 0.10 47.03
perimeter - Heavy

Clean lower 2' of wall perimeter - or equivalent.

Totals:  Room 12 3.67 1,119.07

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10

Closet 4' 8"

7'
 6

"

4' 6"

4' 10"

2'
 6

"
4'

 1
0"

2" 4"

Bath 12 Height: 8'

192.00 SF Walls
225.75 SF Walls & Ceiling

3.75 SY Flooring
24.00 LF Ceil. Perimeter

33.75 SF Ceiling
33.75 SF Floor
24.00 LF Floor Perimeter

Door 2' 6" X 6' 8" Opens into ROOM_12

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

80.  Clean bathroom fixtures - Heavy 1.00 EA 0.00 103.07 0.04 103.11

81.  Clean floor - Heavy 67.50 SF 0.00 0.58 0.05 39.20

Clean the floor twice - or equivalent.

82.  Clean part of the walls - Heavy 96.00 SF 0.00 0.39 0.08 37.52

Clean the lower portion of the walls - or equivalent.

83.  Clean door - with detail (per side) 2.00 EA 0.00 9.60 0.04 19.24

84.  Apply biological cleaning agent 129.75 SF 0.00 0.24 0.52 31.66
(spore-based)

Apply disinfecting agent - or equivalent.

85.  Clean shower curtain - Full service 1.00 EA 0.00 21.88 0.00 21.88
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REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 11

CONTINUED - Bath 12

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TOTALTAX

Totals:  Bath 12 0.73 252.61

Total: Main Level 23.43 5,443.51

Line Item Totals: 6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 23.43 5,443.51

Grand Total Areas:
4,276.00 SF Walls 1,404.22 SF Ceiling SF Walls and Ceiling5,680.22
1,404.22 SF Floor 156.02 SY Flooring 534.50 LF Floor Perimeter

0.00 SF Long Wall 0.00 SF Short Wall 534.50 LF Ceil. Perimeter

1,404.22 Floor Area 1,527.44 Total Area 4,276.00 Interior Wall Area
1,765.50 Exterior Wall Area 196.17 Exterior Perimeter of

Walls

0.00 Surface Area 0.00 Number of Squares 0.00 Total Perimeter Length
0.00 Total Ridge Length 0.00 Total Hip Length
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 12

Summary
Line Item Total 5,420.08

Material Sales Tax 23.43

Replacement Cost Value $5,443.51
Net Claim $5,443.51

Brad Mantz
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 13

Recap by Room

Estimate: 6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E

Area: Main Level 832.02 15.35%
Room 7 11.70 0.22%
Bath 7 251.88 4.65%
Room 8 11.70 0.22%
Bath 8 251.88 4.65%
Room 9 37.87 0.70%
Bath 9 251.88 4.65%
Entry 5.85 0.11%
Room 10 850.30 15.69%
Bath 10 251.88 4.65%
Closet 266.26 4.91%
Room 11 777.70 14.35%
Bath 11 251.88 4.65%
Room 12 1,115.40 20.58%
Bath 12 251.88 4.65%

Area Subtotal:  Main Level 100.00%5,420.08

Subtotal of Areas 100.00%5,420.08

Total 5,420.08 100.00%
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REE-Construction

REE-Construction/First General Idaho
720 N Main Unit A
Bellevue, ID 83313
(208) 788-9111
FEIN#82-0419547

6602-BLAINEHOUSING-E 2/12/2015 Page: 14

Recap by Category

Items Total %

CONT: GARMENT & SOFT GOODS CLN 131.28 2.41%
CLEANING 2,060.02 37.84%
CONTENT MANIPULATION 157.01 2.88%
GENERAL DEMOLITION 975.99 17.93%
FLOOR COVERING - CARPET 327.14 6.01%
WATER EXTRACTION & REMEDIATION 1,768.64 32.49%

Subtotal 5,420.08 99.57%
Material Sales Tax 23.43 0.43%

Total 5,443.51 100.00%

This document represents a fixed price bid to complete the work described per the terms of the engagement agreement put in
place for this project prior to beginning work described.  As owner and or authorized agent for the property owner, I approve the
work as described.
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Main Level

Room 7

Room 8

Room 9

Bath 9Bath 7 Bath 8

Entry

Bath 10 Bath 12Bath 11

Room 12

Room 11

Room 10
Closet

Main Level

10' 6"

3'
 9

"

11' 4"4' 6"4' 6" 4' 6"

14' 2"

4' 6" 4' 6"

7'
 6

"

4' 6"

14' 2"

18
' 9

"

19
' 5

"

11' 4"

10
' 1

1"

10' 6"

14
' 8

"

4'

78' 8"



10726 

Project: Billed To: 

A service charge of  per annum will be charged on all amounts 

overdue on regular statement dates. 

Thank you for your prompt payment! 

Non-Taxable Amount: 

Taxable Amount: 

Sales Tax: 

Amount Due 

Due Date: Terms: 

Blaine County Housing Authorit
703 S. Main St.
Ketchum ID 83340 

Blaine County Housing Authorit
P.O. Box 4045
Ketchum ID 83340 

Order# 03/20/2015 

5,303.01 

132.55 

7.95 

5,443.51 

30DY 

02/18/2015 

Invoice#: 

Date:  

18.00 % 

Description Amount

Mitigation billing per itemization 6602-BlaineHousing-E-Taxable 132.55

Airmover Rental

Mitigation billing per itemization 6602-BlaineHousing-E-Non-Taxable 5,303.01

Notes:

Invoice 
RSR, Inc.
dba Ree-Construction
/First General Idaho
720 N. Main, Ste A
Bellevue, ID  83313
TEL 208/788-9111
FAX 208/788-2583 









 

   

 
 
 
 
 
02-03-2015 
 
 
Kathy Grotto 
Blaine County Housing Authority 
PO Box 550 
Hailey, ID  83333 
 
 
RE: Claim Number: 2015044248 
 Date of Loss:  2/2/2015 
 Claimant:   Blaine County Housing Authority 
 Description:  Sewer backup 
 
Dear Kathy Grotto: 
 
This acknowledges receipt of the above captioned claim.  Please make a note of this 
claim number and refer to it when speaking with us.  An adjuster from our claims 
department will contact you shortly. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Scott Oldham 
Claims Manager 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
February 26, 2015 
 
 
David Patrie 
Blaine County Housing Authority 
PO Box 550 
Hailey, ID  83333 
 
 
RE: CLAIM NUMBER: 2015044248 
 INSURED:  Blaine County Housing Authority 
 CLAIMANT:   Blaine County Housing Authority 
 DATE OF LOSS: 2/2/2015 
 
Dear David Patrie: 
 
I wanted to let you know that we have closed our file in this matter.  Payments made on 
behalf of the Blaine County Housing Authority totaled $11,911.73 which represents the 
amount of the claim less the $500.00 deductible.  Should you receive anything further 
regarding this claim, please let me know immediately.  
 
Should you have any questions or wish to discuss this issue further, please feel free to 
contact me at 208-336-3100. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Jeff Boice 
Senior Claims Specialist 
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Main Level

Room 7

Bathroom 7

Room 8

Bathroom 8Bathroom 9

Room 9

Entry/Foyer

Under Stairs

Room 10

Bathroom 10

Room11

Bathroom 11Bathroom 12

Room 12

Main Level

10' 5" 4'4' 5" 4' 6"

14' 1"

4' 6"

3'
 9

"

11
'

11' 3"

18
' 9

"

19
' 5

"

12' 4' 6"

14
' 8

"

4' 5"

14' 1"

4' 6"

7'
 5

"

11'

79' 6"



Estimate
Date

6/12/2019

Estimate #

6288-001

Name / Address

Bobbi
C/O bcoha.org

Valley Maintenance & Restoration Inc.
4030 Glenbrook Drive
Hailey, ID 83333
(208) 788-2789

Physical Address

703 N Main Lift Tower Lo...

Signature...

Total

Date:_______________

(208)788-8565 Fax

Item Description Total

Mitigation Mitigation-Labor to perform demo of recommended demo for cat 3 (black water) affected
materials. Scope based on revised discussion as of May 2019 between Eric and Corey. 
Additional work may be required depending on additional damages discovered during the
course of initial mitigation:  If Insurance claim is perused all paperwork and estimates and
invoicing will run through xactimate data base pricing etc.

700.00

approx scope:
cover contents with painter plastic for repairs
remove 3 vanities, remove approximately 15 linear feet of drywall and 2' up,  Remove and
dispose of approx 30 l.f. of baseboards, remove 3 sets of door casings, remove 1 room of
carpet and pad
disposal of all removed materials,   Treat remaining structural materials with antimicrobial.

Equipment 3 Dehumidifiers for 3 days & 6 airmovers for 3 days-structural drying after demo-*****self
dried due to time no longer required

0.00

Supplies-Job May include but not limited to:  PPE, dump disposal fee, plastic, property protection, trash
bags, plastic, caps etc.

375.00

Monitoring/Assess... Monitoring/Assessment-final drying documentation--Self dried over time no longer required 0.00

Restoration repairs New carpet-installed in room # 10
3 vanities installed in 10, 11, 12
drywall paint unit 10
Post const. cleaning

5,000.00

Overhead & Profit Overhead & Profit 15% 911.25

_____________________________...

This document has been prepared by Valley Maintenance & Restoration Inc. as a good faith
estimate based on info obtained at the time of inspection.  While we intend to complete the
scope of work  in this estimate for the amount presented, often times unforseen
circumstances arise and the scope of work changes during the course of completing work on
a  project.  Any substantial additions or deletions in the work outlined will be brought to the
attention of the responsible party for verbal or written approval to proceed.  Change orders
requiring additional work will entail payment by owner of all additional direct & indirect
costs plus overhead and profit allowances.
Payment terms: 50% down before any work can be scheduled. Balance due upon
completion. Estimates are Valid for 30 days from date of submittal. 
ID Contractor # RCE-8779

$6,986.25



Invoice
Date

8/8/2019

Work Order #

6288-002

Bill To

Bobbi
C/O bcoha.org

Valley Maintenance & Restoration Inc.

4030 Glenbrook Drive
Hailey, ID 83333
(208) 788-2789

Due Date

Due on receipt

Rep

JL

PHYSICAL ADDRESS

703 S Main Lift Tower Lodge

We accept VISA and MASTERCARD. A 2.95% Convenience Fee will be charged for any
payments over $2,500.00.

Accounts 30 days past due will be subject to a FINANCE CHARGE of 1 .75 % per month
on the unpaid balance.

Idaho Contractors License # RCE-8779

Item Description Amount

2nd HALF OF WORK PERFORMED PER ESTIMATE #6288-001 - 6/12/19

Mitigation Mitigation-Labor to perform demo of recommended demo for cat 3 (black water)
affected materials. Scope based on revised discussion as of May 2019 between Eric
and Corey.  Additional work may be required depending on additional damages
discovered during the course of initial mitigation:  If Insurance claim is perused all
paperwork and estimates and invoicing will run through xactimate data base pricing
etc.

350.00

approx scope:
cover contents with painter plastic for repairs
remove 3 vanities, remove approximately 15 linear feet of drywall and 2' up, 
Remove and dispose of approx 30 l.f. of baseboards, remove 3 sets of door casings,
remove 1 room of carpet and pad
disposal of all removed materials,   Treat remaining structural materials with
antimicrobial.

Supplies-Job May include but not limited to:  PPE, dump disposal fee, plastic, property
protection, trash bags, plastic, caps etc.

187.50

Restoration repairs New carpet-installed in room # 10
3 vanities installed in 10, 11, 12
drywall paint unit 10
Post const. cleaning

2,500.00

Page 1



Invoice
Date

8/8/2019

Work Order #

6288-002

Bill To

Bobbi
C/O bcoha.org

Valley Maintenance & Restoration Inc.

4030 Glenbrook Drive
Hailey, ID 83333
(208) 788-2789

Due Date

Due on receipt

Rep

JL

PHYSICAL ADDRESS

703 S Main Lift Tower Lodge

We accept VISA and MASTERCARD. A 2.95% Convenience Fee will be charged for any
payments over $2,500.00.

Accounts 30 days past due will be subject to a FINANCE CHARGE of 1 .75 % per month
on the unpaid balance.

Idaho Contractors License # RCE-8779

Item Description Amount

Overhead & Profit Overhead & Profit 15% 455.62

Page 2

$3,493.12

$3,493.12

$0.00



From: Dick Fosbury
To: Carissa Connelly; Sarah Michael; Susan Scovell
Cc: Sabina Gilbert; Ann Sandefer; Nathan Harvill
Subject: RE: Follow-up to Jan 6 2022 Lift Tower Room Tour
Date: Wednesday, January 12, 2022 1:56:21 PM

Hi Carissa,
 
Nathan as Executive Director should know who has done maintenance work on LTL in the past, so
that may help.
 
The Board can review the budget in their next meeting regarding these contemplated expenditures
and the possible need for additional funding, but Blaine County is in support of maximizing available
units.
 
Yes, it may be helpful in order to re-apply for the same terms as previously requested. The Board can
manage that process after next week’s meeting.
 
Thank you,
 
Dick Fosbury
Chair Blaine County Commissioners
 

From: Carissa Connelly <CConnelly@ketchumidaho.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 11, 2022 10:24 AM
To: Dick Fosbury <dfosbury@co.blaine.id.us>; Sarah Michael <ms.sarahmichael@gmail.com>; Susan
Scovell <sscovell@gmail.com>
Cc: Sabina Gilbert <sabina.d.gilbert@gmail.com>; Ann Sandefer <asandefer@bcoha.org>; Nathan
Harvill <nharvill@bcoha.org>
Subject: RE: Follow-up to Jan 6 2022 Lift Tower Room Tour
 
Good morning all,
 
Dick – I agree. We’ll want to get that moving.
 
Jade and I checked in with our wastewater management – they confirmed that it would be helpful to
have a plumber check the system with a camera to make sure regular clearings would do the trick.
They recommend Sawtooth Plumbing or Evans Plumbing (the latter is potentially more expensive).
Our equipment would not be able to do the clearing, but we are open to contracting with Sweets to
get that done.
 
So, a couple of questions / thoughts for you:

1. Would it be helpful to have our facilities manager run point for the plumber and contracting
for clearing the systems?

2. Then from there, we can establish costs. We’ll then want to see if it’s feasible within BCHA’s
budget. If not, just let us know. Since this is clearly for a public good, the City can help and we

mailto:dfosbury@co.blaine.id.us
mailto:CConnelly@ketchumidaho.org
mailto:ms.sarahmichael@gmail.com
mailto:sscovell@gmail.com
mailto:sabina.d.gilbert@gmail.com
mailto:asandefer@bcoha.org
mailto:nharvill@bcoha.org


can discuss with the county if they’d participate.
3. Do you need any help from me on renewing the CUP?

 
Thanks!
 
CARISSA CONNELLY | CITY OF KETCHUM
Housing Strategist
P.O. Box 2315 | 191 Fifth St. W. | Ketchum, ID 83340
o: 208.806.7046 | f: 208.726.7812 
cconnelly@ketchumidaho.org | www.ketchumidaho.org
 

From: Dick Fosbury <dfosbury@co.blaine.id.us> 
Sent: Monday, January 10, 2022 9:09 AM
To: Carissa Connelly <CConnelly@ketchumidaho.org>; Sarah Michael
<ms.sarahmichael@gmail.com>; Susan Scovell <sscovell@gmail.com>
Cc: Sabina Gilbert <sabina.d.gilbert@gmail.com>; Ann Sandefer <asandefer@bcoha.org>; Nathan
Harvill <nharvill@bcoha.org>
Subject: RE: Follow-up to Jan 6 2022 Lift Tower Room Tour
 
Everyone,
 
I was not aware that the LTL had a CUP for rentals longer than one month. While there has been no
enforcement or oversight, this needs to be re-applied to enable renting rooms for those persons
seeking short term rentals during relocation or other needs. I suggest immediate action for this
Spring.
 
Thank you,
 
Dick Fosbury
 

From: Carissa Connelly <CConnelly@ketchumidaho.org> 
Sent: Friday, January 7, 2022 11:24 AM
To: Sarah Michael <ms.sarahmichael@gmail.com>; Susan Scovell <sscovell@gmail.com>
Cc: Sabina Gilbert <sabina.d.gilbert@gmail.com>; Ann Sandefer <asandefer@bcoha.org>; Nathan
Harvill <nharvill@bcoha.org>; Dick Fosbury <dfosbury@co.blaine.id.us>
Subject: RE: Follow-up to Jan 6 2022 Lift Tower Room Tour
 
Good morning,
 
Sarah - thank you for arranging the visit!
 
Update on my end:
 
Conditional use permit: It was approved in 2015 and reapproved in 2016 for a 12-month period.
The agreement was that it would be used to house low-income workers. Specifically, first

mailto:lenourato@ketchumidaho.org
http://www.ketchumidaho.org/
mailto:dfosbury@co.blaine.id.us
mailto:CConnelly@ketchumidaho.org
mailto:ms.sarahmichael@gmail.com
mailto:sscovell@gmail.com
mailto:sabina.d.gilbert@gmail.com
mailto:asandefer@bcoha.org
mailto:nharvill@bcoha.org
mailto:CConnelly@ketchumidaho.org
mailto:ms.sarahmichael@gmail.com
mailto:sscovell@gmail.com
mailto:sabina.d.gilbert@gmail.com
mailto:asandefer@bcoha.org
mailto:nharvill@bcoha.org
mailto:dfosbury@co.blaine.id.us


responders, temporary workers, and seasonal workers. At one point it was used to house
construction workers, which do not fall under the categories above.
 
Sewer: It is on city sewer already. We are meeting with Mick, from Utilities and Wastewater, on
Monday to discuss options (such as regular clearing). I will update you on what we can do from
there.
 
Take care,
 
Carissa
 
CARISSA CONNELLY | CITY OF KETCHUM
Housing Strategist
P.O. Box 2315 | 191 Fifth St. W. | Ketchum, ID 83340
o: 208.806.7046 | f: 208.726.7812 
cconnelly@ketchumidaho.org | www.ketchumidaho.org
 

From: Sarah Michael <ms.sarahmichael@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 6, 2022 4:43 PM
To: Susan Scovell <sscovell@gmail.com>
Cc: Carissa Connelly <CConnelly@ketchumidaho.org>; Sabina Gilbert <sabina.d.gilbert@gmail.com>;
Ann Sandefer <asandefer@bcoha.org>; Nathan Harvill <nharvill@bcoha.org>; Dick Fosbury
<dfosbury@co.blaine.id.us>
Subject: Re: Follow-up to Jan 6 2022 Lift Tower Room Tour
 
Susan - On the roof, Patrie indicated that he thought when the BCHA took possession of
the Lift Tower that the re-roof was not the best and Patrie noted it for monitoring.  
There was an estimate for connecting to city water and it was too expensive, so I assume
that the Lift Tower was grandfathered in regarding its well.  
Nathan may be able to provide more information.
Sarah
 
 
Sarah Michael
(208) 721-1593
 
 
On Thu, Jan 6, 2022 at 4:38 PM Susan Scovell <sscovell@gmail.com> wrote:

Did you ask Patrie what the concerns about the roof are ?  Sounds like we just need Sweets to
clean the system on a regular basis in the Winter.  Also,  I understood that the city requires the
building to be hooked up to the main water system. ?  This was enforced in other parts of the city
decades ago.  I would think that the city could pass on the city fees for this hookup,.  But the
actual plumbing time / costs to create the hookup will cost money. 
 
Susan
 

On Jan 6, 2022, at 3:39 PM, Sarah Michael <ms.sarahmichael@gmail.com> wrote:
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Dear Friends,
This is a follow-up to our Jan 6, 2022,  tour of the Lift Tower Lodge, rooms
1,3,4, 7, 9, 10, 12, (rooms 14 & 15 were not accessible due to snow build
up) with Susan Scovell, Sabina Gilbert, and Carissa Connelly.  The rooms
looked clean and attractive and were being kept warm in a manner which we
speculated was to keep the pipes from freezing.
The plumbing issues were discussed.  Sarah agreed to talk to David Patrie
about the work he had done in 2015/2016 to address the plumbing issues. 
A report from Nathan on more recent work should be added.
 
Plumbing: Here is my report from David Patrie:
1) The Lift Tower is on Ketchum City sewer.  When there was the back-up
and sewage overflow in two of the lower units in February 2015 or 2016,
Sweets came in and cleaned the blockage in the pipes and later Lunceford
Excavation replaced approximately 150 feet of old cast iron pipe leading from
the Lift Tower across the parking lot towards the Second Avenue city sewer
connection.  The cause of the sewage overflow occurred in February when
the downstairs rooms were not rented and the upstairs rooms were using
water and the discharge was blocked downstairs. His recommendation is to
contact Sweets again if this is reoccurring.
David indicated that while he was Executive Director, it only occurred once.
2) The Lift Tower is on its own well and has its water tested annually to
certify water quality.
Maintenance
Room #1-This room has been vacant until Oct/November appears to be
rentable.  It is my understanding that Natalie, the lodge manager, is
responsible for repairs when someone moves out. Fundraising to have these
rooms maintained professionally so that they can be more quickly rented
should be discussed.
 
Overall comments: Susan Scovell's assessment is that the Lift Tower Lodge
looks structurally sound and, if plumbing issues are resolved, then it appears
to her that it should be able to be more fully rented. 
 
Next steps:  Get an updated evaluation of the pipes and drainage to
determine whether more rooms can be rented.  Inspect the roof in the
Spring.
 
Look at the Conditional Use Permit regarding limitations and opportunities.
 
If I have missed any comments, please let me know.   Thank you for
participating in touring the property. 
 
 Sarah
 
Sarah Michael
(208) 721-1593

 



 
 
  
 
  

Items needed for full operation of the Lift Tower Lodge 
 

• New vacuum 
• New portable carpet cleaner 
• Steam cleaner 
• New lawn mower  
• Linen to include new comforters, blankets, sheet sets, pillows, towels, mattress 

protectors, mattress pads 
• Bike rack 
• Community BBQ 
• Shower curtains and rings 
• New lamp shades 
• Interior paint, brushes, rollers, tape, trays 
• Exterior painting of entire lodge and apartment 
• Check structural damage of decks on apartment 
• Check for all plumbing issues to include rooms 4 & 9 for pressure issues  
• Check all electrical 
• Check roof integrity and possible repairs 
• Budget to cover general, regular maintenance issues and some room turns that may 

need professional services (plumber, carpet cleaning, electrical) 
• Additional budget for snow removal, roof clearing and removal depending on amount of 

snow, sprung window repair and screen replacement as needed, toilet seats, shower 
heads, supply of mouse traps, light bulbs, batteries, etc. 

• Additional budget for landscaping in the summer 
• Additional budget for annual fire extinguisher checks and replacement 
• Additional budget for maintenance of plumbing issues (Sweets) 
• Professional blow out of sprinkler system annually 
• Currently no internet and only 6 rooms have cable 

 
 



Blaine County Housing Authority 
Special Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday December 15, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. 
Via Teleconference 
www.zoom.us/join 

Phone Number: (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID:  837 9109 6983 

Password:  83333 
Members Present:  Absent:  
Nate Hart, Chair  
Liz Keegan, Vice Chair 
Mason Frederickson, Treasurer 
Tara Bell 
Sabina Gilbert 
Chase Hamilton 
Sarah Michael 

Staff: 
Nathan Harvill, Executive Director 
Ann Sandefer, Program Administrator 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
BCHA Board Chair, Commissioner Nate Hart called the Regular Monthly Meeting to order at 5:05 p.m.
Roll call was taken by Ann Sandefer. Nate Hart, present, Liz Keegan, present, Mason Frederickson, present, Tara Bell,
Sabina Gilbert, present, Chase Hamilton, present, Sarah Michael, present.

2. Agenda Review - none

3. Comments from the Partner Organizations & the Public
No comments, Carissa Connelly, Housing strategist for the City of Ketchum, Peter Hendricks, Mayor of the City of

Sun Valley and Mike Schultz of the IME were on the call.

4. Comments from Liaisons from Elected Bodies - Dick Fosbury, Blaine County Commissioner and County liaison to
BCHA was on the teleconference call, he thanked Nathan Harvill, ED of BCHA for testifying at the Hailey City Council
meeting, in support of no covered parking/solar panels at the new Blaine Manor senior building at this time.
Funding sources will continue to be explored for this to happen at a later date.  The ribbon cutting ceremony was
held this morning.  Commissioner Fosbury continues to work on housing strategies for the county that include
THROW’s (tiny homes on wheels), ADU’s.  He further reported the possibility of office space in Hailey for BCHA but
not as county employees, he will continue to offer guidance to BCHA in regards to our real estate holdings.

http://www.zoom.us/join


 

5. Discussion/Action Items 
A.  Discussion related to Draft Strategic Plan Goals and Objectives (Broad Discussion) 
Nathan Harvill, ED, kicked off the discussion by presenting main points/topics for discussion with several Board 
members giving input for consideration/addition to the draft strategic plan.  
 
B.  Discussion related to the redevelopment of the Lift Tower Lodge (LTL) site, and update from Meeting of 12/15/21 
Nathan Harvill, ED met with the City of Ketchum today to discuss the improvements of the intersection @ Serenade 
Lane and will continue to collaborate with the City and IDT and also SV Company as they own the land directly south 
of the Lift Tower Lodge.  He has another meeting on January 18th and will report back the latest considerations. 
 
C.  Discussion related to the nomination of officers for CY 2022, vote to be held during the Annual Meeting in 
January 2022 
Any nominations for officers can be emailed to Nathan, ED in advance of the Annual meeting and Nathan will email 
all Board members of such nominations. 
 
D.  Discussion of the Blaine County Housing Foundation activities and funding 
Approval by Nathan Harvill was made for 2 rental assistance requests and 1 deposit assistance for Blaine Manor.  
There was an article in the IME non-profit special section about the BCHF and Housing GAP assistance grants.  
Nathan continues to collaborate with the Blaine County Charitable fund and his goal is to assist 20 households. 
Commissioner Hart thought it might be good to start thinking about a free standing, dedicated person for BCHF. 
 

6. Commissioner Reports -  
        Commissioner Chase Hamilton announced his resignation from the Board as its longest serving member.  He  
        highlighted several items that he felt were mistakes by the Board over the years and reminded everyone that  
        affordable housing has been a need since the 1970’s.  He was pleased that the BCHF was established and has been  
        helping households with Housing GAP grants.  He expressed his desire that a replacement be found within the               
        affordable Community Housing owners or the Latino community.                 
        Commissioner Keegan expressed her thanks to Commissioner Hamilton for his long tenure on the Board.  She 
        expressed her opinion that the Board look @ Deed Restrictions like the City of Vail Co in its strategic plan moving 
        forward and should consider a 2–3-year work plan.  She provided comments on short-term rentals to the Ketchum  
        City Council, is supportive of THROW’s and attended the Ketchum In-Lieu meeting and supports increasing the fees. 
        Commissioner Keegan will be terming off the board but will always be and advocate for workforce housing. 
        Commissioner Sabina Gilbert expressed her thanks to both Chase Hamilton and Liz Keegan for their service. 
        Commissioner Nate Hart expressed his thanks to Commissioner Chase Hamilton and reported that Commissioner 
        Hamilton was the reason he was on the board as he had suggested Nate become a board member.  He expressed 
        his thanks to Commissioner Liz Keegan and was thankful for the insight she brought to the Board. 
        Commissioner Mason Frederickson expressed his thanks to Commissioner Hamilton and Keegan 
        Executive Director, Nathan Harvill thanked both Commissioner Chase Hamilton and Liz Keegan for their service on 
        the Board. 
  
7. Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of October 20, 2021 BCHA Regular Meeting Minutes  
Commissioner Liz Keegan moved to approve the Consent Agenda and Minutes, as presented, Commissioner Sabina 
Gilbert seconded.  No further discussion, motion passed with a majority vote and non-vote from Commissioner Bell, 
an abstinence from Commissioner Michael at 7:11 p.m. 
 
 
 



 

8. Staff Reports 
A. Receive and file Executive Director’s Report  
B. Receive and file Program Administrator’s Report 
C. Receive and file Financial Reports  
 

  9.     Executive Session– Idaho Code 74-206 (1) to discuss, (a) hiring, (b) personnel (c) acquiring  
 interest in real property, (d) records disclosure, (f) pending litigation, or (i) pending claims   

 
10.  Action Item – none 
 11.   Announcements – Calendar of Upcoming Meetings & Events 

A. December 24 & 27, 2021, Christmas Eve and Christmas Day (observed), BCHA Offices closed 
B. December 31, New Year’s Day (observed), BCHA Offices closed 
C. January 17, 2022, Rev. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (observed) BCHA Offices closed 
D. January 19, 2022, BCHA Annual and Regular Meetings, via teleconference 

 
 12.  Adjournment – Commissioner Nate Hart adjourned the meeting at 7:25 p.m.    

 
Respectfully Submitted by     Approved by 

 
 
             
Ann Sandefer       Nate Hart 
BCHA Program Administrator     BCHA Chair 



Executive Director Report 1 

MEMORANDUM 

To: BCHA Commissioners 

From: Nathan S. Harvill, Executive Director 

Date: January 19, 2022 

Re: Executive Director Report December 15, 2021 — January 14, 2021 

Meetings Attended 

12/16/2021: Meeting with Heather Dawson (Hailey City Administration) re: new 
BCHA offices in Hailey City Hall 
• Hailey is offering one office in City Hall for use by BCHA
• Contract for Services will be modified to reflect the use of the

office
• New Contract will be adopted at January 24, Hailey City Council

Meeting
• BCHA will vacate Executive Director’s office before February 1,

2022.
• Ketchum Works Landlord Notified of Intent to Vacate one office

12/20/2021: Meeting with Carissa Connelly (City of Ketchum, Housing Strategist),
re: Introduction and BCHA support of the City’s Strategic Housing Plan
• Ongoing monthly update meetings to be determined

12/21/2021: Meeting with prospective BCHA Board Member (via Zoom) 
• Informational Meeting related to service on the BCHA Board
• Gave next steps, letter of interest, and CV for referral to Blaine

County Commissioners
12/21/2021: Initiated contact with Idaho Alliance for translation of BCHA 

Application into Spanish, to follow up in the New Year 
• Sent BCHA Application for review

12/21/2021: Initiated contact with the Intermountain Fair Housing Council for future
Fair Housing workshop
• Would like to schedule in April 2022, in conjunction with Fair

Housing Month
12/22/2021: Nathan on vacation for the holidays until 01/06/2022 

• 12/22/2021: Call with Realtor re: mid-valley property for use as
workforce housing (preliminary discussions, confidential information
discussed)

• 12/23/2021: Returned call with developer re: workforce housing
development in Ketchum (preliminary discussion, confidential
information)
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• 12/24/2021: BCHA Offices Closed (Christmas Eve) 
• 12/27/2021: BCHA Offices Closed (Christmas Day, Observed) 
• 12/31/2021: BCHA Offices Closed (New Year’s Day, Observed) 
• 01/03/2022: Call to Ann Sandefer re: Updates on BCHA Office 
• 01/03/2022: response to new Ketchum Board Member, next steps 
• 01/06/2022: Call to Ann Sandefer re: Updates on BCHA Office, and 

the tour of Lift Tower Lodge 
01/10/2022: Submitted Resignation to BCHA Board, effective April 30, 2022 
01/10/2022: Hispanic/Latin US Leadership Task Force (via Zoom) 

• General Activities of Blaine County School District, including new 
classes to be offered to promote Hispanic and Latin culture 

• General Activities of Hailey Public Library, including a film series 
and use of technology to provide real-time English to Spanish 
translation 

• Made introduction, expressed BCHA’s interest in future 
involvement in advocacy for the Latinx Community in Blaine 
County, will be invited to future events and meetings 

01/10/2022: Meeting with Morgan Landers (City of Ketchum Planning) re: potential 
non-compliance on two properties within Ketchum 

01/11/2022: Meeting with prospective BCHA Board Member (via Telephone) 
• Informational Meeting related to service on the BCHA Board 
• Gave next steps, letter of interest, and CV for referral to Blaine 

County Commissioners 
 
Other Items: 
 

• I have received the FY 2021 BCHA Audit. Brady Workman, our auditor is not able to 
attend this meeting but will present the Audit during the February 2022 meeting. The 
FY 2021 Audit is attached for your reference ahead of February’s meeting. No issues 
or findings were raised in the Audit. 

• I have provided information to the City of Ketchum related to the number of 
households currently within the BCHA Database 

• I provided support to the City of Hailey regarding the updates to its Community 
Housing PUD 

• I provided data and signed a letter of support for a grant by Mountain Rides Transit 
Authority 

• I plan to donate my time to move the Ketchum Offices down to Hailey during one 
of the last weekends of January, contingent on the schedules of other volunteers 

• Ann has continued her outreach to our Community Homeowners for updates, as 
required by the Community Housing Guidelines, using the new forms. The response 
rate continues to be strong.  

• I have requested our FY 2022 First Quarter outlays from the jurisdictions, to date, I 
have only received Ketchum’s contribution.  

• I would like to thank our partners and stakeholders for the kind words and well 
wishes they sent me upon their learning of my resignation 

 
Attachments: 
 
I have attached the following: 

1. Advertised rental rates for review. 
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2. Letter of Support for Mountain Rides Transit Authority. 
3. FY 2021 BCHA Audit by Workman and Associates. 

 
 
 
 



Advertised Rents FY 2022

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 5 21 28 21 9 8 92
Bellevue 1 6 3 2 1 0 13
Hailey 1 1 7 7 8 3 27
Ketchum 0 8 13 4 0 1 26
Sun Valley 2 5 4 7 0 3 21
Not Specified 1 1 1 1 0 1 5

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 0.3 1.4 1.9 1.4 0.6 0.5 6.2
Bellevue 0.1 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.9
Hailey 0.1 0.1 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.2 1.8
Ketchum 0.0 0.5 0.9 0.3 0.0 0.1 1.8
Sun Valley 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.5 0.0 0.2 1.4
Not Specified 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.3

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 33.3% 63.6% 50.0% 31.3% 39.1% 32.0% 42.0%
Bellevue 100.0% 200.0% 100.0% 0.0% 185.7%
Hailey 25.0% 25.0% 46.7% 53.8% 57.1% 50.0% 48.2%
Ketchum 0.0% 42.1% 39.4% 11.1% 0.0% 12.5% 24.5%
Sun Valley 100.0% 100.0% 50.0% 58.3% 0.0% 33.3% 53.8%
Not Specified 33.3% 50.0% 25.0% 0.0% 100.0% 45.5%

As of

104 28.6%

15  

30

Thursday, January 13, 2022

Days Since Beginning of Fiscal Year:

Weeks Since Beginning of Fiscal Year:

Adverstising Days Since Beginning of 
Fiscal Year:

Average Number of Ads Placed per Week

Percentage of Number of Ads (FY 2020 of FY 2019)

Year to Date
Total Ads Placed

Page 1 of 3
Advertised Rent Data as of 1/13/2022

Arregation by Blaine County Housing Authority



Advertised Rents FY 2022

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 1,995$       1,520$       2,300$       3,436$       3,914$       2,520$       
Bellevue 1,100$       1,567$       1,533$       2,800$       1,975$       1,744$       
Hailey 2,300$       675$          1,636$       3,357$       4,156$       2,892$       
Ketchum 1,000$       1,684$       2,945$       3,688$       2,606$       
Sun Valley 2,130$       1,375$       2,250$       3,600$       2,406$       

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 79,818$     60,811$     92,000$     137,444$   156,556$   100,795$   
Bellevue 44,000$     62,667$     61,333$     112,000$   79,000$     69,769$     
Hailey 92,000$     27,000$     65,429$     134,286$   166,250$   115,667$   
Ketchum 40,000$     67,371$     117,818$   147,500$   104,243$   
Sun Valley 85,200$     55,000$     90,000$     144,000$   96,235$     

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 33.9% 0.4% -19.7% -6.8% -13.9%  -15.4%
Bellevue 44.3% 38.2%  -1.8%   14.9%
Hailey 28.4% -44.3% -29.8% 36.3% 14.2%  12.2%
Ketchum -27.4% 2.8% -6.7% -14.6%   -19.9%
Sun Valley 30.3% -8.9% -14.5% 10.4%   -21.3%

As of

32 34.8%

31 33.7%

29 31.5%

Thursday, January 13, 2022

No Pet Policy Given:

Pets Prohibited:

Pets Allowed:

Minimum Income Needed for Affordability (Average Advertised Rent)

Year to Date
Average Advertised Rent

Percent Increase/Decrease in Average Advertised Rent (FY 2019-2020)

Page 2 of 3
Advertised Rent Data as of 1/13/2022

Arregation by Blaine County Housing Authority



Advertised Rents FY 2022

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 1,600$       1,600$       2,050$       3,000$       4,000$       2,200$       
Bellevue 1,100$       1,600$       1,350$       2,800$       1,975$       1,600$       
Hailey 2,175$       675$          1,750$       3,000$       4,000$       2,750$       
Ketchum 1,000$       1,650$       2,600$       2,800$       2,200$       
Sun Valley 1,600$       1,550$       2,250$       3,500$       2,250$       

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 64,000$     64,000$     82,000$     120,000$   160,000$   88,000$     
Bellevue 44,000$     64,000$     54,000$     112,000$   79,000$     64,000$     
Hailey 87,000$     27,000$     70,000$     120,000$   160,000$   110,000$   
Ketchum 40,000$     66,000$     104,000$   112,000$   88,000$     
Sun Valley 64,000$     62,000$     90,000$     140,000$   90,000$     

Jurisdiction Studio 1BD 2BD 3BD 4BD NS All
All Ads 7.4% 0.3% -19.6% 0.0% 22.1%  -12.0%
Bellevue 44.3% 73.0%  -1.8%   64.1%
Hailey 64.2% -45.9% -30.0% 46.3% 50.9%  20.9%
Ketchum -25.7% 3.1% -2.8% -13.8%   -17.8%
Sun Valley 7.0% -3.1% -14.3% -6.7%   -18.2%

Green Text = Decrease in Price and Increase in Ads over FY 2021 (Year End)

Red Text = Increase in Price and Decrease in Ads over FY 2021 (Year End)

Minimum Income Needed for Affordability (Median Advertised Rent)

Year to Date
Median Advertised Rent

Percent Increase/Decrease in Median Advertised Rent (FY 2019-2020)

Page 3 of 3
Advertised Rent Data as of 1/13/2022

Arregation by Blaine County Housing Authority



December 30, 2021 
 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Federal Transit Administration 
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE 
Washington, DC 20590 
 
ATTN:   Christina Gikakis— Office of Research, Demonstration, and Innovation 
RE:   Support Mountain Rides to Enhance Workers’ Mobility through Microtransit 
 
To the Grant Review Committee, 
 
Thank you for your consideration of Mountain Rides Transportation Authority and their initiative to 
address the needs of workers in Blaine County, Idaho. As existing partners of Mountain Rides, we are 
committed to increasing the livability of our community for all people. Doing so will require dynamic 
solutions to that incorporate public transportation.  
 
The Blaine County economy and community relies on seasonal tourism, yet suffers from high prices 
driven by high-earning visitors. Property values in Blaine County have always surpassed statewide 
averages, resulting in an ongoing housing crisis. Now, pandemic-related immigration has spiked property 
values and exacerbated the crisis. 
 
Since the start of the pandemic, Blaine County’s number of available advertised rental units has 
decreased by 65%; average market-rate monthly rents have increased by 47%— for example, costing 
$3,700 for a 3 bedroom unit—and essential workers are moving further and further away from their places 
of work. Our housing crisis has never been worse. Compounded by the nationwide employment crisis, 
local businesses and public services (including the school district) are struggling to keep staff, stay open, 
and meet community’s needs. 
 
ARCH Community Housing Trust and Blaine County Housing Authority are committed to improving the 
quality of life for hard-working families who, in a more typical community, would not need housing 
assistance. We ensure that the people who provide vital services in this community can afford to live in it 
by developing solutions to housing affordability. In addition, we partner with organizations that help 
ensure the feasibility of our housing solutions. For example, we partner with Mountain Rides to ensure 
that where people live, they also have access to work and basic services by way of public transportation. 
Access to Mountain Rides’ fare-free transit services alleviates working families’ travel burdens and 
supports their livelihood.  
 
We ardently support Mountain Rides’ to launch a microtransit service that will 1) increase mobility 
for existing workforce housing and 2) provide a mechanism to access displaced workers in hard-
to-reach, isolated neighborhoods.  
 
Please join us in implementing a solution to improve mobility and provide increased access to transit for 
workers in rural Blaine County, Idaho. Social equity and the economic sustainability of our community 
relies on multi-faceted partnerships and solutions like ours.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Michelle Griffith     Nathan Harvill 
Executive Director   Executive Director 
ARCH Community Housing Trust  Blaine County Housing Authority 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

December 22, 2021

To the Board of Commissioners
Blame County Housing Authority
Ketchum, Idaho

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund of the Blame County Housing Authority, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Blame County Housing Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design. implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentaton of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respcnsibility is to express opinicns on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approphate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund
of the Blame County Housing Authority, as of September 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
pr!ncipies generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary In formation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on page 16 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Management has omitted a management’s discussion and analysis that
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, afthough not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. My opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by
this missing information. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22,
2021, on our consideration of the Blame County Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
controi over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Blame County Housing
Authority’s internal control over financia reporting and compliance.

Wcrk4ncw Cmnjnny

WORKMAN AND COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants
Twin Falls, Idaho
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position

at September 30, 2021

Total
Governmental Business-type Primary

Activities Activities Government

ASSETS

Cash and Deposits $ 25,738 $ 0 $ 25738
Prepaid Expenses 0 0
Restricted and Asssigned Cash 24,025

_____________

24025
Totals 49,763 0 49,763

Capital Assets:
Land 86,500 400000 486500
Buildings and Improvements 228,040 640,521 868561

Total 314540 1,040,521
Accumulated Deprecation

_____________

(81,220) (81.220)
Total Capital Assets 314,540 959,301 1273.841

Total Assets 364,303 959,301 1,323,604

LIABILITIES

Cash Deficit 9,610 9,610
Accounts and Payroll UabiIitiesPayabe 5.877 5,877
Refundable User Deposits 1,150 1,150
Long-term Liabilities:

Compensated Absences 6,024 6,024

Total Liabilities 13,051 9.610 22.661

NET POSITION

invested in Capital Assets - net of reated debt 314,540 959,301 1,273.841
Restricted For:

Debt Service 0
Other Purposes 24.025 24,025

Unrestricted 12.687 (9,610) 3,077

Total Net Position $ 351,252 $ 949,691 $ 1,300,943

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenues and
Fees, Fines, Capital Changes in Net Position
and Charges Grants and Governmental Business Type

Activities: Expenses for Services Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental:

Wages and Benefits $ 153,482 $ $ 14,575 $ (138,907) $ (138,907)
Insurance 1,609 (1609) (1,609)
Miscellaneous 60 (60) (60)
Professional Fees 14.892 (14,892) (14,892)
Rent 14,850 (14,850) (14,850)
Travel and Meetings 167 (167) (167)
Office Expense 3,255 (3,255) (3,255)
Technology and Website Expense 1,228 (1.228) (1,228)
Repairs and Maintenance 911 (911) (911)
Advertising and Marketing , 43 (43) (43)
HOA Dues and Memberships 13,309 (13.309) (13,309)
Telephone and Internet 257 (257) (257)

Total Governmental Activities 204,063 0 14,575 (189,488) (189,488)

Business Type:

Lift Tower Lodge Rental 49,391 44,748 0 $ (4,643) (4,643)
Interest - debt 0 0 0

Tolal Business-type Activities 49,391 44,748 0 (4,643) (4.643)

Total Blame County Housing Authority $ 253.454 44,748 14,575 (189,488) (4,643) (194.131)

General Revenues:

Community Housing Fees 13,657 13,657
County and Cily Support 139,350 139.350
Rental Income 18,900 18,900
Rental Administration 9,351 9,351
Gain on Sale of Assets 0 0
Interesl Income 68

___________

68

Total general revenues and transfers 181.326 0 181.326

Changes in net position (8,162) (4.643) (12,805)

Net Position - Beginning 359,414 954,334 1.313,748

Net Position - Ending S 351.252 $ 949,691 $ 1,300,943

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
at September 30, 2021

ASSETS:

Cash and Deposits $ 25.738

Assigned Cash 24,025

Prepaid Expenses 0

Investment in Community Housing 314,540

Total Assets $ 364,303

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable $ 3327

Accrued Payroll Tax Payable 2,550

Security and Other Deposits 1,150

Total Liabi!ities $ 7,027

FUND BALANCE:

Non-Spendable

Restr!cted

Committed

Assigned 24.025

UnassIgned 333,251

Total Fund Balance 357,276

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 364,303

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position

(page 3) are different because:

Goverrmentai fund focus on current resources, liabilities that will not be
paid in the current period will not be included on the governmental

fund balance sheet

Governmental Funds Balance S 357276

Accrued compensated absences (6024)

Net Position of Governmental Funds $ 351,252

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
for the years ended September 30, 2021

REVENUE:

Community Housing Fees $ 13,657

County and City Support 139,350

Grants and contributions 14,575

Rental Administration 9,351

Rental Income 18,900

Proceeds from Sale of Assets 0

Interest 68

Total Revenue $ 195.901

EXPENDITURES:

Wages and Benefits 155,315

Insurance 1,609

Miscellaneous 60

Professional Fees 14,892

Rent 14,850

Travel and Meetings 167

Office Expense 3,255

Technology and Website Expense 1,228

Repairs and Maintenance 911

Advertising and Marketing 43

HOA Dues and Memberships 13,309

Utilities and Telephone 257

Debt Service and Interest Expense 0
Captial Outlay 0

Total Expenditures 205,896

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (9,995)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 367,271

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 357,276

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities

for the years ended September 30, 2021

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds (Page 6) S (9995)

Net proceeds from sale of assets are not recorded in the activities

Purchase of capital assets are not recorded in the activzies

Payment of long-term liabilities are not recorded in the activities 0

Liability for personal leave days are not recorded in
Governmental Funds. 1833

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Page 4) $ (8,162)

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
at September 30, 2021

Assets:
Current Assets:

Cash and Deposits S 0
Accts receivable - customers 0

Total Current Assets $ 0

Capital Assets:
Property. Plant and Equipment 1,040,521
Accumulated depreciation (81,220)

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 959,301

Total Assets 959.301

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:

Cash Deficit 9,610

Total Current Liabilities 9,610

Total Liabilities 9,610

Net Position:
Investment in capital assets

net of related debt 959,301
Restricted
Unrestricted (9,610)

Total Net Position $ 949,691

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
for the years ended September 30, 2021

Operating Revenues:

Rents $ 44,748
Security Deposit Refunds

___________

Total Operating Revenue $ 44,748

Operating Expenses:

Administrative Labor and Costs 17:257
Administrative Rent 1,650
Maintenance 14,546
Utilities. Telephone, Internet 0
Supplies and Small Fixtures 0
Housekeeping 0
Legal and Accounting 714
Insurance 2,413
Depreciation 12,811

Total Operating Expenses 49,391

Operating Income (Loss) (4:643)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Grants and Contributions
Interest Expense 0

Total Nonoperating 0

Income (Loss) before transfers (4,643)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net Income (Loss) (4,643)

Total Net Position - Beginning 954,334

Total Net Position - Ending $ 949,691

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
for the years ended September 30, 2021

Cash F!ows From Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers $ 44,748
Payments to suppliers and labor (36,580)

Net cash provided (used) by operations $ 8,168

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities:

Purchase and construction of capital assets 0
Proceeds from grants and contributions 0

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities 0

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest Income 0

Net Increase in Cash and Deposits 8,168

Balances - Beginning of the year (17,778)

Balances - Ending of the year $ (9,610)

Displayed as:
Cash and Deposits (9,610)

Balances - Ending of the year $ (9,610)

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (4,643)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 12,811

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts and other payables 0

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activates $ 8,168

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

At September 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In 1996, the Blaine-Ketchum Housing Authority was created by a joint powers agreement between
Blame County, Idaho and the City of Ketchum, Idaho under Idaho Code, Title 31 and 50. In 2007,
Blame County by resolution and under authority of Idaho Code Tile 31, changed the Housing Authority
to a county wide entity and renamed it Blame County Housing Authority. Its purpose is to provide
affordable housing to county residents.

The Housing Authority’s financial statements include the accounts of all operations under the
oversight authority of the Board. Oversight responsibility is derived from the governmental unit’s
authority and includes, but is not limited to, financial interdependency, selection of governing
authority, designation of management. ability to significantly influence operations and accountability
for fiscal matters. Based on the foregoing criteria, no component units are included in the Housing
Authority’s financial statements.

(A) Basis of Accounting — Measurement Focus

Basis of Accounting:

For this reporting period, the Housing Authority has conformed its financial statement model to
Governmental Auditing Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34. This model presents the
financial statements as follows:

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the Housing Authority).

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each activity of the Authority. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are c!early identifiable to a particular function, Indirect expense
allocations that nave been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities.
Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all assessments and fees, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Authority’s
funds. Governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are included on the balance sheet. Under
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both measurable
and available. Available for purposes of revenue recognition is defined as sixty days. Revenue
sources susceptible to accrual include assessments from the County and Cities, and fees charged for
services. Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.

Budgetary Data: the budget is legally enacted prior to October 1 in accordance with the Idaho Code
following an analysis of the proposed expenditures and the means of financing them, and a public
budget hearing held to obtain county residents comments. The budget is prepared on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The encumbrance method is not used the Housing Authority.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

At September 30, 2021
-Continued

Entity Classifications.

A Authority-Wide Financial Statements — The Authority reports net position in three
categories — invested in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

B. Fund Financial Statements — The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 54 “Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions” (GASB 54) which defines
how fund balances of the governmental funds are presented in the financial statements.
There are five classifications of fund balances as presented below:

Non-spendable — These funds are not available for expenditures based on legal or
contractual requirements. In this category, one would see inventory, long-term
receivables, unless proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned and legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact (corpus or a permanent fund).

Restricted — These funds are governed by externally enforceable restrictions. In this
category, one would see restricted purpose grant funds, debt service or capftal projects.

Committed — Fund balances in this category are limited by the governments highest level
of decision making. Any changes of designation must be done in the same manner that it
was implemented and should occur prior to end of the fiscal year, though the exact amount
may be determined subsequently.

Assigned — These funds are intended to be used for specific purposes. intent is expressed
by governing body or an official delegated by the governing body.

Unassigned — This classification is the default for all funds that do not fit into the other
categories. This, however: should not be a negative number for the general fund. If it is,
the assigned fund balance must be adjusted.

Order of Use of Fund Balance — The Authority’s policy is to apply expenditures against
non-spendable fund balance, restricted fund balance, committed fund balance, assigned
fund balance and unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year. For all funds, non-
spendable fund balances are determined first and then restricted fund balances for specific
purposes are determined.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(B) Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Deposits and Investments

The cash balances of substantially all funds are pooled and invested by the State of Idaho Treasurer’s
Office for the purpose of increasing earnings through investment activities. The poo1’s investments
are reported at fair value at September 30th of each year based on market prices. The individual
funds’ portions of the pool’s fair value are presented as ‘Pooled Cash and Investments”. Earnings on
the pooled funds are apportioned and paid or credited to the funds monthly based on the average
daily balance of each participating fund.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

At September 30, 2021

-Continued

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets used in operations with an initial useful life that extends
beyond one year are capitalized. They are reported net of accumulated depreciation on the Statement
of Net Assets. The Authority capitalizes assets in excess of $1000.

Capital assets are recorded at their historical cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method
of depreciation over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives

Buildings 50
Furnishings and Fixtures 15

Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences is recorded in the government-wide statement of net position
and represents amounts estimated to be currently owed to the Authority’s employees for unused
vacation and personal leave days.

Restricted Cash

The Authority’s board of commissioners restricts certain cash for specific purposes.

NOTE 2—CASH AND DEPOSITS

Deposits: Custodial credit risk, in the case of deposits, is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Authority has no deposit policy for custodial
credit risk. At year end, $ 656 of the Authority’s bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk
because it was insured by the EDIC.

Investments; Custodial credit risk, in the case of investments, is the risk that in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. At year end, the Authority held the
following investments:

Investment Type

Idaho State Local Government Investment Pool $ 18,511

These investments are unrated external investment pools sponsored by the Idaho State Treasurer’s
Office. They are classified as “Investments in an External Investment Pool” and are exempt from
custodial credit risk and concentration of credit risk reporting.

Interest rate risk is summarized as follows: Asset-backed securities are reported using weighted
average life to more accurately reflect the projected term of the security, considering interest rates
and repayment factors.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

At September 30, 2021
-Continued

The elected Idaho State Treasurer, following Idaho Code, Section 67-2328, is authorized to sponsor
an investment pool in which the Authority voluntarily participates. The Pool is not registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or any other regulatory body - oversight is with the State
Treasurer, and Idaho Code defines allowable investments. All investments are entirely insured or
collateralized with securities held by the Pool or by its agent in the Pool’s name. And the fair value of
the Authority’s position in the external investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Credit Risk: The Authority’s policy is to comply with Idaho State statutes which authorize the Authority
to invest in obligations of the United States, obligations of the State or any taxing district in the State,
obligations issued by the Farm Credit System, obligations of public corporations of the State of Idaho,
repurchase agreements, tax anticipation notes of the State or taxing district in the State, time
deposits, savings deposits, revenue bonds of institutions of higher education, and the State
Treasurer’s Pool.

Interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk The Authority has no policy regarding these two
investment risk categories.

Cash and Deposits are comprised of the following at the financial statement date:

Cash on Hand $
Deposits with financial institutons:

Demand deposits 21,641
State of Idaho Investment Pool 18.511

Total $_ 40153

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT IN COMMUNITY HOUSING

Blame County Housing Authority has several properties it has acquired to renovate and make
available to qualifying individuals in the affordable housing arena. During the current year, one
property has been sold and another acquired. The total amount invested in these properties is
$314,540. The properties are rented in the short term and made available for purchase by qualifying
individuals in the long term.

NOTE 4 - LITIGATION

The Authority is involved in a legal dispute at the date of these financial statements that could have a
material effect on the financial position. Management and legal council have been unable to
determine the economic impact, if any, of this dispute.

NOTE 5 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the fiscal year.
the Authority is contracted with Idaho County Risk Management Program (ICRMP) for property, crime
and fleet insurance and the State Insurance Fund for workman’s compensation. Under the terms of
the ICRMP policy, the Authority’s liability is limited to the amount of annual financial membership
contributions, including a per occurrence deductible. There has been no significant reduction in
insurance coverage in the current year. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage
for the current year or the three prior years.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements

At September 30, 2021

-Continued

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the current year ended for general government funds were as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Land and Infrastructure $ 86,500 $ $ $ 86500
• Buildings and Improvements 228,040 228040
• Vehicles and Equipment 0

Totals 314,540 0 0 314540

Accumulated Depreciation 0 0

Net Book Value S 314,540 S 0 $ 0 $ 314,540

Capital asset activity for the current year ended for the enterprise funds were as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Land and Infrastructure $ 400,000 $ $ $ 400000
Buildings and Improvements 640,521 640521

i Vehicles and Equipment 0 0

Totals 1,040,521 0 0 1,040,521

Accumulated Depreciation (68,408) (12,812) (81,220)

Net Book Value $ 972,113 $ (12,812) $ 0 $ 959,301

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN

The Authority has no long-term pension plan obligation or liability.

NOTE 8 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of the auditor’s report, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund
for the year ended September 30, 2021

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUE:

Community Housing Fees $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 13,657 $ (11.343)

County and City Support 161.850 161,850 139.350 (22500)

Grants and contributions 0 0 14,575 14.575

Rental Administration 9.085 9,085 9,351 266

Rental Income 18,900 18,900 18,900 0

Proceeds from Sale of Assets 0 0 0 0
Interest 835 835 68 (767)

Total Revenue 215,670 215,670 195,901 (19,769)

EXPENDITURES:

Wages and Benefits 156,281 156,281 155,315 966
Insurance 1,476 1,476 1,609 (133)

Miscellaneous 0 0 60 (60)
Professional Fees 11,500 11,500 14,892 (3,392)
Rent 18,000 18,000 14,850 3,150
Repairs 1,000 1,000 911 89

Advertising and Public Outreach 500 500 43 457
Travel and Meetings 250 250 167 83
Office Expense 2,650 2,650 3,255 (605)
Technology and Website Expense 1,250 1250 1,228 22
Capital Outlay Real Estate 0 0 0
HOA Dues and Subscriptions 14,200 14,200 13,309 891
Telephone and Internet 2,000 2,000 257 1,743
Debt Service 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 209,107 209,107 205,896 3,211

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 6,563 (9,995) (16,558)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 367.271 367,271

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 373,834 $ 357,276

The accompanying notes are a part of these financial statements.
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WORKMAN
& COMPANY I Accounting

2190 Village Park Avenue, Suite 300 • Twin Falls, ID 83301 • 208.733,1161 • Fax: 208.733.6100

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

December 22, 2021

To the Board of Commissioners
Blame County Housing Authority
Ketchum, Idaho

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generaHy accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activibes, the business-type activities and each major fund of the Blame County Housing Authority, as of
and for the year ended September 30. 2021. and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Blame County Housing Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report tnereon dated December 22. 2021.

internal Control over Financial Reporting

In p!anning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Blame County Housing
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate n the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Biaine County Housing
Authority’s internal controL Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Blame
County Housing Authority’s internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Blame County Housing Authority’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations. contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordmnomy. we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Report Continued—

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compilance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
GovernmentAuditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

WarkmavvEr Co-vnfnny

WORKMAN AND COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants
Twin Falls, Idaho

-18-



January 2022 Report 

December 15, 2021 - January 11, 2021 

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR 

Administrative and Board 

 Maintained office billings, made on-line payments and BCHA deposits; and submitted invoices to bookkeeper for
monthly billing cycles.

 December 15, 2021; attended and took minutes for BCHA Special Board Meeting (Teleconference)

Program Activities - Specific duties performed since November 12, 2021: 

 Community Home Renters/Homeowners -
o Emailed digital annual Compliance request forms to all remaining CHO’s - 78% response on this group.  I

will follow-up with those who have not responded.
o all vacancies filled in the KETCH buildings, last move-in was January 1, 2022 with a qualified applicant
o accepted and processed 5 new applicants to the database
o followed-up with one Community Homeowner on her request for Rental, sent form and requested

documentation.  This owner has decided not to rent.
o Rental Management − Collected rents, made bank deposits, updated tenant’s ledgers and files. Invoiced

landlord for property management fees.
 Inquiries - directed inquiries to our website for the digital application process and educated them on the ease of

use, (7), fielded phone calls (16). Added 5 new households to database which now has 264 applicants.

Lift Tower Lodge 

 Fielded 5 inquiries, 4 new applicants.
 All rents are current, maintained contact with on-site caretaker, follow-up unit inspection on #2 was conducted,

sent follow-up email and lease addendum.
 One move-in the first week of January from waitlist, homeless (couch surfing).  Current occupancy:  100% of

available units, (5 occupied).  Twelve applicants on our waitlist.



Dec 31, 21 Dec 31, 20 $ Change

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Cash in Bank

Checking US BANK 15,974.32 27,042.08 -11,067.76
BCHA - Operating Reserve 2478 336.64 336.00 0.64

Total Cash in Bank 16,310.96 27,378.08 -11,067.12

Restricted Cash
Capital Repl Reserve US Bank 5,850.00 5,850.00 0.00
Restricted Cash-LGIP 3138

Restricted Cash - Capital 33,000.00 33,000.00 0.00
Restricted-Comm Hsg Pres Fund 425.16 425.16 0.00
Restricted-Contingency Fund 25.00 25.00 0.00
Restricted Cash-LGIP 3138 - Other -15,270.22 -15,304.88 34.66

Total Restricted Cash-LGIP 3138 18,179.94 18,145.28 34.66

Total Restricted Cash 24,029.94 23,995.28 34.66

Total Checking/Savings 40,340.90 51,373.36 -11,032.46

Other Current Assets
Prepaid Insurance -10.01 -10.01 0.00

Total Other Current Assets -10.01 -10.01 0.00

Total Current Assets 40,330.89 51,363.35 -11,032.46

Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depr Lift Tower -81,220.22 -68,408.80 -12,811.42

Total Fixed Assets -81,220.22 -68,408.80 -12,811.42

Other Assets
Investment in Property/Housing 1,355,061.26 1,355,061.26 0.00

Total Other Assets 1,355,061.26 1,355,061.26 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 1,314,171.93 1,338,015.81 -23,843.88

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 696.92 5,626.05 -4,929.13

Total Accounts Payable 696.92 5,626.05 -4,929.13

Other Current Liabilities
Security Deposit 1,150.00 1,150.00 0.00
Accrued Compensated Absences 6,024.15 7,856.48 -1,832.33
Accrued Payroll Liabilities

Accrued PR Liab SEP 2018 correc -18,121.93 -18,121.93 0.00
Accrued Payroll Liabilities - Other 27,694.94 26,836.47 858.47

Total Accrued Payroll Liabilities 9,573.01 8,714.54 858.47

Total Other Current Liabilities 16,747.16 17,721.02 -973.86

Total Current Liabilities 17,444.08 23,347.07 -5,902.99

Total Liabilities 17,444.08 23,347.07 -5,902.99

Equity
Unreserved Fund Balance 46,680.39 46,680.39 0.00
Opening Bal Equity 155.82 155.82 0.00
Retained Earnings 1,254,127.39 1,266,852.59 -12,725.20
Net Income -4,235.75 979.94 -5,215.69

Total Equity 1,296,727.85 1,314,668.74 -17,940.89

12:02 PM Blaine County Housing Authority

01/12/22 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2021

UNAUDITED Page 1



Dec 31, 21 Dec 31, 20 $ Change

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,314,171.93 1,338,015.81 -23,843.88

12:02 PM Blaine County Housing Authority

01/12/22 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2021
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Register: Cash in Bank:Checking US BANK

From 12/01/2021 through 02/20/2022

Sorted by: Date, Type, Number/Ref

Date Number Payee Account Memo Payment C Deposit Balance

12/03/2021 Joyce Peterson Rental Income ev X 825.00 7,114.18

12/03/2021 Vandenboorn, Christina Rental Income ev X 750.00 7,864.18

12/03/2021 LIFT TOWER LODGE LIFT TOWER LODGE INCO... maybe X 3,021.66 10,885.84

12/07/2021 Delta Dental Payroll Expenses:Medical Insur... Ann and Nathan 86.02 X 10,799.82

12/07/2021 Pacific Source Payroll Expenses:Medical Insur... Nathan only 419.00 X 10,380.82

12/07/2021 Cox Communications Telephone & Internet office 117.86 X 10,262.96

12/09/2021 Cold Springs Crossing Rental Mgmt Income Deposit X 788.58 11,051.54

12/11/2021 ach Sun Country Management HOA Dues Elkhorn 2094 & 2091 946.76 X 10,104.78

12/13/2021 Intermountain Gas LIFT TOWER LODGE Op Ex 53.00 X 10,051.78

12/13/2021 vba Payroll Expenses:Medical Insur... Nathan 44.95 X 10,006.83

12/13/2021 ACH US Bank -split- 84-1401185 3,543.56 X 6,463.27

12/14/2021 QuickBooks Payroll Service Direct Deposit Liabilities Created by Payroll S... 4,478.97 X 1,984.30

12/15/2021 DD1343 CHRISTMAS, NATALIE B -split- Direct Deposit X 1,984.30

12/15/2021 DD1344 HARVILL, NATHAN S -split- Direct Deposit X 1,984.30

12/15/2021 DD1345 SANDEFER, ANN M -split- Direct Deposit X 1,984.30

12/17/2021 Idaho State Tax Commission Accrued Payroll Liabilities 000677312-W 159.00 X 1,825.30

12/21/2021 LIFT TOWER LODGE LIFT TOWER LODGE INCO... Deposit X 700.00 2,525.30

12/22/2021 US Bank -split- 832.08 X 1,693.22

12/27/2021 City Of Ketchum Contracts for Service Deposit X 18,750.00 20,443.22

12/30/2021 QuickBooks Payroll Service Direct Deposit Liabilities Created by Payroll S... 4,468.90 X 15,974.32

12/31/2021 DD1346 HARVILL, NATHAN S -split- Direct Deposit X 15,974.32

12/31/2021 DD1347 SANDEFER, ANN M -split- Direct Deposit X 15,974.32

01/04/2022 Pacific Source Payroll Expenses:Medical Insur... Nathan only 419.00 15,555.32

01/04/2022 Delta Dental Payroll Expenses:Medical Insur... Ann and Nathan 86.02 15,469.30

01/04/2022 Cox Communications LIFT TOWER LODGE Op Ex 185.20 15,284.10

01/04/2022 Cox Communications Office expenses 117.86 15,166.24

01/04/2022 7531 Ann Sandefer Accounts Payable 677.01 14,489.23

01/04/2022 7532 Clear Creek Disposal Accounts Payable LTL extra service 23.05 14,466.18
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Register: Cash in Bank:Checking US BANK

From 12/01/2021 through 02/20/2022

Sorted by: Date, Type, Number/Ref

Date Number Payee Account Memo Payment C Deposit Balance

01/04/2022 7533 GEORGE B FISHER LLC 2... Accounts Payable JAN OFFICE RENT 1,500.00 12,966.18

01/04/2022 7534 KETCHUM WORKS Accounts Payable rent 1,500.00 11,466.18

01/04/2022 7535 L.L. Green's Hardware Accounts Payable SUPPLIES 6.99 11,459.19

01/04/2022 7536 Spence Electric Accounts Payable 768.75 10,690.44

01/11/2022 ach Sun Country Management HOA Dues Elkhorn 2094 & 2091 946.76 9,743.68

01/12/2022 US Bank -split- 84-1401185 3,543.58 6,200.10

01/13/2022 QuickBooks Payroll Service Direct Deposit Liabilities Created by Payroll S... 4,490.96 1,709.14

01/14/2022 DD1348 CHRISTMAS, NATALIE B -split- Direct Deposit X 1,709.14

01/14/2022 DD1349 HARVILL, NATHAN S -split- Direct Deposit X 1,709.14

01/14/2022 DD1350 SANDEFER, ANN M -split- Direct Deposit X 1,709.14

01/17/2022 Idaho State Tax Commission Accrued Payroll Liabilities 000677312-W 159.00 1,550.14

01/28/2022 QuickBooks Payroll Service Direct Deposit Liabilities Created by Payroll S... 4,479.92 -2,929.78

01/31/2022 DD1351 HARVILL, NATHAN S -split- Direct Deposit X -2,929.78

01/31/2022 DD1352 SANDEFER, ANN M -split- Direct Deposit X -2,929.78

02/12/2022 US Bank -split- 84-1401185 3,520.56 -6,450.34
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Dec 21 Budget Oct - Dec 21 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

LIFT TOWER LODGE INCOME 4,471.66 4,166.67 12,590.24 12,499.97 50,000.00
CH Admin Fee 0.00 833.33 0.00 2,500.03 10,000.00
Contracts for Service 18,750.00 13,583.33 36,250.00 40,750.03 163,000.00
Rental Mgmt Income 788.58 757.08 1,577.16 2,271.28 9,085.00
Rental Income 1,575.00 1,575.00 4,725.00 4,725.00 18,900.00
Interest/Investment Income 1.76 8.33 5.37 25.03 100.00

Total Income 25,587.00 20,923.74 55,147.77 62,771.34 251,085.00

Gross Profit 25,587.00 20,923.74 55,147.77 62,771.34 251,085.00

Expense
HOA Dues 946.76 1,100.00 3,514.28 3,300.00 13,200.00
LIFT TOWER LODGE Op Ex 59.99 1,662.08 1,858.46 4,986.28 19,945.00
Payroll Expenses

Wages - Exec Admin 7,916.66 23,749.98
Wages - Administrative 3,656.50 11,731.50 10,969.50 35,194.50 140,778.00
Medical Insurance 1,036.42 916.67 2,812.34 2,749.97 11,000.00
Retirement Plan (SEP) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Payroll Taxes 997.60 1,055.83 3,133.75 3,167.53 12,670.00
Direct Deposit Fees 6.00 16.67 18.00 49.97 200.00
Workers Comp Insurance 0.00 333.33 1,553.00 1,000.03 4,000.00
Payroll Expenses - Other 875.00 2,625.00

Total Payroll Expenses 14,488.18 14,054.00 44,861.57 42,162.00 168,648.00

Ads 0.00 20.83 0.00 62.53 250.00
Audit & Bookkeeping 0.00 250.00 0.00 750.00 3,000.00
Computer & Comm. Expenses 514.13 354.17 829.71 1,062.47 4,250.00
Dues and Subscriptions 0.00 250.00 0.00 750.00 3,000.00
Legal & Professional Fees 0.00 833.33 0.00 2,500.03 10,000.00
Liability Insurance 0.00 375.00 2,192.00 1,125.00 4,500.00
Mileage Reimbursement 4.48 10.42 41.44 31.22 125.00
Office expenses 311.95 583.33 961.95 1,750.03 7,000.00
Postage and Delivery 0.00 10.42 0.00 31.22 125.00
Rent 1,500.00 1,000.00 4,500.00 3,000.00 12,000.00
Repairs - Office and CH 0.00 83.33 506.25 250.03 1,000.00
Telephone & Internet 117.86 117.92 117.86 353.72 1,415.00
Travel & lodging 0.00 0.00

Total Expense 17,943.35 20,704.83 59,383.52 62,114.53 248,458.00

Net Ordinary Income 7,643.65 218.91 -4,235.75 656.81 2,627.00

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense

Capital Outlay - Computer&Furni 0.00 125.00 0.00 375.00 1,500.00
Contingency 0.00 93.92 0.00 281.72 1,127.00

Total Other Expense 0.00 218.92 0.00 656.72 2,627.00

Net Other Income 0.00 -218.92 0.00 -656.72 -2,627.00

Net Income 7,643.65 -0.01 -4,235.75 0.09 0.00
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Oct - Dec 21 Oct - Dec 20 $ Change % Change

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

LIFT TOWER LODGE INCOME 12,590.24 11,280.00 1,310.24 11.6%
CH Admin Fee 0.00 5,916.66 -5,916.66 -100.0%
Contracts for Service 36,250.00 42,000.00 -5,750.00 -13.7%
Donations Income 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 -100.0%
Rental Mgmt Income 1,577.16 2,317.74 -740.58 -32.0%
Rental Income 4,725.00 4,725.00 0.00 0.0%
Interest/Investment Income 5.37 37.72 -32.35 -85.8%

Total Income 55,147.77 68,277.12 -13,129.35 -19.2%

Gross Profit 55,147.77 68,277.12 -13,129.35 -19.2%

Expense
HOA Dues 3,514.28 3,514.28 0.00 0.0%
LIFT TOWER LODGE Op Ex 1,858.46 4,385.95 -2,527.49 -57.6%
Payroll Expenses

Wages - Exec Admin 23,749.98 23,749.98 0.00 0.0%
Wages - Administrative 10,969.50 10,650.00 319.50 3.0%
Medical Insurance 2,812.34 2,545.42 266.92 10.5%
Payroll Taxes 3,133.75 2,952.09 181.66 6.2%
Direct Deposit Fees 18.00 0.00 18.00 100.0%
Workers Comp Insurance 1,553.00 1,906.00 -353.00 -18.5%
Payroll Expenses - Other 2,625.00 2,643.00 -18.00 -0.7%

Total Payroll Expenses 44,861.57 44,446.49 415.08 0.9%

Ads 0.00 43.20 -43.20 -100.0%
Audit & Bookkeeping 0.00 2,450.00 -2,450.00 -100.0%
Computer & Comm. Expenses 829.71 259.40 570.31 219.9%
Legal & Professional Fees 0.00 4,630.72 -4,630.72 -100.0%
Liability Insurance 2,192.00 2,011.00 181.00 9.0%
Mileage Reimbursement 41.44 47.40 -5.96 -12.6%
Office expenses 961.95 538.24 423.71 78.7%
Postage and Delivery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Rent 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 0.0%
Repairs - Office and CH 506.25 470.50 35.75 7.6%
Telephone & Internet 117.86 0.00 117.86 100.0%
Travel & lodging 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Expense 59,383.52 67,297.18 -7,913.66 -11.8%

Net Ordinary Income -4,235.75 979.94 -5,215.69 -532.3%

Net Income -4,235.75 979.94 -5,215.69 -532.3%
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